

# ANNUAL REPORT AND AUDITED ACCOUNTS 2016-17



#### **NEHRU YUVA KENDRA SANGATHAN**

Ministry of Youth Affairs & Sports, Government of India

## CONTENTS

| S. No. | Description   | Page No. |
|--------|---|----------|
| 1.     | Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan-An Introduction   | 5        |
| 2.     | Core Programmes   | 13       |
| 3.     | State/Zonal Level Programmes  | 18       |
| 4.     | Celebration of Days of National and International Importance  | 25       |
| 5.     | Special Programmes and Projects   | 37       |
| 6.     | Inter State Youth Exchange Programme  | 40       |
| 7.     | Signing of MoU for Mobilization of Youth for Swachh Bharat Mission (Urban)  | 41       |
| 8.     | Youth Involvement on Demonetization Move of Government – a Programme on Yuva Soch                                     | 45       |
| 9.     | 9th Tribal Youth Exchange Programme (TYEP) 2016-17  | 46       |
| 10.    | Nationwide Declamation Contest on Patriotism and Nation Building on<br>the occasion of Republic Day Celebration, 2017 | 56       |
| 11.    | Awareness and Education on My Mobile, My Bank, My Wallet  | 61       |
| 12.    | Adolescent Health and Development Project (AHDP)  | 63       |
| 13.    | Cashless Training Project-Delhi 2016-17   | 65       |
| 14.    | Programmes Organised with Funding from NPYAD  | 66       |
| 15.    | National Youth Corps  | 71       |
| 16.    | Rajbhasha Report 2016-17  | 72       |
| 17.    | 21st Nationnal Youth Festival 2017 at Rohtak (Haryana)  | 74       |
| 18.    | Annexures   | 76       |
| 19.    | Audited Accounts  | 93       |





## NEHRU YUVA KENDRA SANGATHAN AN INTRODUCTION



Youth are a major human resource for development and thus, key agents of social change, economic development and technological innovation. This is a vital, vibrant and dynamic human resource having bearing on the future state of not only India, but also the entire world. There is, therefore, a need for youth involvement in a country, in its development programmes, as well as in activities based on the youth's specific needs, desires and aspirations.

Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan (NYKS) facilitates the mobilization of rural youth, in the age group of 15 to 29 years, towards this end. The largest grass-root level voluntary organization of its kind in the world, NYKS was established to harness and channelize the power of youth on the principles of volunteerism, self-help and participation.

Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan has 623 district offices to manage youth programmes and activities at district level, 29 State Office for



monitoring and coordinating the activities at the state level. NYKS also has village based youth clubs affiliated to it.

The principal objective of NYKS is to mobilize, motivate, organize rural youth of the country and enhance their capacities to develop democratic institutional mechanisms in the form of village based Youth Clubs. It is to further develop and empower them to become productive and responsible citizens, assume local leadership to act as active partners in the process of community development and nation building activities with the spirit of equity, secularism and voluntarism.

The purpose behind these clubs at the grassroot level is to form village-level action groups of youth that may come together for their own overall development and work with concern for the poor.

Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan strength lies in 10,081 National Youth volunteers and the vast network of Youth Clubs and Mahila Mandals at the grass-roots level. Through NYKSW, these villagebased organizations have become local pressure groups as well as catalytic agents for socioeconomic, cultural, political and environmental transformation. Many of these groups have in fact become Functional Action groups with rural sustainability and self-reliance as their hallmark.

When viewed in these terms, the role of Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan could be defined as that of not merely an organization, but that of a mass movement.

#### Genesis

The Nehru Yuva Kendra were established in 1972 with the objective of providing the rural youth with the opportunity to grow and achieve goals, The organization and mobilization of the youth for developmental work in the villages, with emphasis on Value, Vision and Voluntary action.

#### The goals of NYKS are:

- To develop the values and skills of rural youth so that they become productive, responsible citizens of modern India.
- To involve them in nation building activities.
- To work toward promoting an environment where all-irrespective of caste, colour, sex or religion- find equal opportunity to serve the nation.
- To pursue self-sufficiency in resources.
- To utilize the networks of NYKS for the development and promotion of programmes in the priority sector of employment generation, literacy and family welfare.
- To empower women through increased outreach and coverage of education, better health care and diverse income generating activities.

As a leading youth organization, NYKS functions as a non-governmental implementing body for the major quantum of mobilization and developmental activities in the sphere of nonstudent rural youth.

#### FROM AN ORGANISATION TO A MASS MOVEMENT

#### **Scope and Structure**

Considering that almost three-fourths of the Indian population is rural, the development of the nation as a whole depends on their progress



and development. The needs of the rural people, especially the youth, vary radically from their urban counterparts. It is in this context that the NYKS was formed to harness the power and empower the rural youth towards self-development and service to the society.

The youth as a group come forward to combat various local problems which ultimately should lead to rural sustainability, self-reliance and consequently, national development.

#### **Reaching Out to the Youth**

NYKS promotes leadership, character development, community service, self-reliance, secularism, democracy and patriotism as the essential features for national development. The organization conducts various programmes aimed at mobilizing the youth in this direction, thus building a sense of national identity and integration, based on eschewing fear and violence.



#### Infrastructure at the District level

For the implementation of different programmes and activities, NYKS has a trained cadre of District Youth Coordinators, National Youth Corps (NYC) Volunteers, Youth Leaders and Social Workers throughout the country. These Youth Groups come forward to tackle various local problems, which ultimately affect national development. Rural sustainability and self-reliance have become the hallmark of every active Youth Club/Mahila Mandal and they aspire to become Functional Action Groups.

## Responsiveness to the Needs of the target group

In order to fulfill the needs, desires and aspirations of non-student rural youth (target group), various progammes and activities have been organized through a trained cadre of Youth Coordinators, NYKS, Youth Leaders and Social Workers throughout the country. Moreover, different developmental agencies and department at various levels are also involved so that the benefit of various development schemes and programmes reach the needy and deprived sections of the society.

#### The Structure

The NYKS has a four-tier structure. At the helm of NYKS is a Board of Governors. The Union Minister of Youth Affairs and Sports is the ex-officio Chairperson of the Board of Governors. Director General is the executive head and is responsible for managing day-to-day affairs and activities of the Sangathan. There are 29 state level Offices headed by State Directors, who are responsible for ensuring that the policies and programmes of the Sangahan are properly implemented in the field in each State.

A Youth Coordinator heads each District level office called Nehru Yuva Kendra (NYK). His role is to spearhead the Youth movement in the field. He is assisted by the Accounts Clerk-cum-Typist, a MTS and 8-10 National Youth Volunteers, who are deployed for a period of one to two years as per



the scheme of the Ministry of Youth Affairs and Sports. The district level office with their NYVs is the most important tier of the structure where ideas are transformed into reality.

Under the Chairmanship of the District Magistrate/Collector, every district of the State has a District Advisory Committee on the Youth Programme (DACYP). The DACYP guides, supports and monitors the activities of the NYKs. It deliberates on the Annual Action Plan guidelines and approves it. The DACYP further monitoring the activities and provide necessary support to the NYK in fulfilling the laid targets. The constitution of DACYP confirms the representation of major institutions and department involved in district development so as to facilitate functional linkages and harnessing resources for effective implementation of programmes.

#### **Core Strength of NYKS**

The core strength of NYKS is a net work of 3.06 Lakh village level Youth Clubs across India with an enrolment of about 87 lakhs rural youth volunteers. It has become one of the largest Youth organizations in the world. These Youth Clubs and Mahila Mandals are engaged in the areas like education, training, awareness generation, leadership and personality development for addressing social issues, community development and social welfare activities.

The Government of India through its rural youth based flagship organization the Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan achieve the set objectives through Core Programmes which are uniformly distributed amongst the district kendras in the country; implement Schemes of Ministry of Youth Affairs & Sports; undertake Special Programmes and Projects in coordination and support of other development Agencies, Ministries and Departments of Centre and State Governments

and UNO meant for youth development and empowerment.

A paradigm shift in the utilization of the vast network of NYKS and its field units has commenced. One such role which NYKS has recently taken as a major initiative has been synergy and convergence of efforts with the Government of India as well as State Governments. Youth Clubs and NYV volunteers now provide ample opportunities and a suitable platform for outreaching various programs and schemes of the Government of India and the State Governments.

The youth associated with Nehru Yuva Kendras are not only socially aware, motivated but are also inclined towards social development work through voluntary efforts. For all these years, NYKS activities remained focused both on economic and non-economic development and welfare activities including poverty alleviation programmes with active involvement of Youth Clubs, Mahila Mandals and village communities. However, a lot more remains to be done.



## Objective of NYKS Programmes and Activities

The goal of the Programmes and Activities being undertaken by NYKS during 2016-17 is Development and Empowerment of Rural



Youth. The objective is to mobilize, motivate and organize rural youth of the country; enhance their capacities to develop democratic institutional mechanisms in the form of village based Youth Clubs with due representation of all sections of society and enable target audience to live a meaningful, productive and healthy life.

Another objective of the programmes and activities is to facilitate assuming local leadership to act as active partners in the process of community development and nation building activities with the spirit of equity, secularism and voluntarism; behave as responsible citizens and contribute towards the processes of peace building and nation building activities and addressing their needs, issues and vulnerabilities as well as structural and underlying factors.

#### **Focus and Areas being addressed**

NYKS during the financial year 2016-17 has been focusing on its 10 Core Programmes at District, State and National Level with emphasis on mobilizing the resources to provide more programmes and activities for the benefit of rural young people and village communities in general. Core Programmes aimed at strengthening the Youth Club network and capacity building of Youth Club Members. These Programmes are common to all district NYKs.

NYKS also undertook coordination activities contributing towards Poverty alleviation, employment generation, self employment, SHG formation, Civic Education, Social Issues, Environment awareness including plantation, Swachh Bharat Mission - Hygiene, Sanitation and Cleanliness Drive Campaigns; Health awareness including HIV/AIDS, Drug Abuse and Alcoholism prevention education, Blood Donation, Yoga, Voluntarism and Disaster Mitigation as well as Democratic Leadership among youth.

## Strategies adopted for achieving the objectives

- About 10,081 NYV volunteer were deployed by NYKs across the country. Out of which about 1000 were computer literate so as to facilitate district NYKs in promoting e-governance and updating Youth Clubs profiles.
- The services of the deployed NY volunteer force were optimally utilized. For this purpose, they were trained on the line with the expectations of the current NYKS Annual Action Plan, NPYAD Scheme of MoYAS, and Coordination Activities in identified focused areas as mentioned above.
- Depending upon the number of blocks and villages in a district, National Youth Volunteers were deployed on cluster of villages having Youth Clubs for implementation of NYKS Core Programmes, NPYAD Scheme and targeted Coordination Activities and follow up activities in their respective allocated areas.
- The youth who were covered under NYK
  Core Programmes were motivated and
  supported to organize similar awareness
  and education programmes in their
  respective villages. For this purpose,
  they were facilitated by designated NY
  volunteers and resource persons on
  the identified issues in which they have
  undergone exposure under NYKS Core
  Programmes.
- In order to quantify the outcome, each National Youth Volunteer was assigned targets.



#### **Coordination, Convergence and Synergy**

In order to provide more programs for the furtherance of the objectives of NYKS and in achieving the set goal; emphasis was given on coordination and establishing linkages with other development Departments, Agencies, NGOs at District, State, National and International levels. The initiatives in this direction are as follows:

- To ensure proper programme planning, coordination, implementation, transparency and monitoring for effective functioning of district NYKs with expected outcomes, meetings of District Advisory Committee on Youth Programmes (DACYP) under the Chairpersonship of Deputy Commissioner / Collector of respective districts were organized district NYKs.
- Similarly, meetings of State Advisory Committee on Youth Programmes (SACYP) headed by Hon'ble Minister of Youth Affairs and Sports of a State and Heads of development agencies and other non-official members were organized by respective State Directors.
- District and State NYKS have been asked to establish effective convergence/synergy in different programmes, functioning and other operational areas with NSS and NCC. In this regard, Action Plan highlighting extent of convergence/synergy between NYKS & NSS as well as NCC Youth, Volunteers, Cadets respectively in each others' programmes was developed.
- Linkages between developmental Ministries, Departments, and Agencies were established for sanction of projects for the development and empowerment

of youth, in the identified focus areas and local needs.

#### **Participation of Public Representatives**

There was overwhelming response and participation of Public Representatives viz. Hon'ble Ministers, MPs, MLAs, MLCs as well as Heads of Development Departments and Agencies in NYKS programmes and activities at different levels across India.

## Achievements of Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan (NYKS)

NYKS during the financial year 2016-17 focused on its 10 Core Programmes. These Programmes aimed at strengthening the Youth Club network and capacity building of Youth Club Members. These Programmes are common to all district NYKs. Besides, NYKS also implemented the schemes of Ministry of Youth Affairs & Sports as well as coordinated at District, State and National Level to mobilize additional resources so as to provide more programmes and activities for the benefit of rural young people and village communities, in general.

| ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE             |
|--------------------------------------|
| Ministry of Youth Affairs & Sports   |
| Board of Governors                   |
| Headquarter                          |
| State Offices (29)                   |
| Nehru Yuva Kendra (623)              |
| National Youth Volunteers ( 10,081 ) |
| Youth Club/Mahila Mandals            |



#### LIST OF BOG MEMBERS OF NEHRU YUVA KENDRA SANGATHAN During 2016-17

| S.N | NAME                            | POSITION HELD  | STATUS IN BOG        |
|-----|---------------------------------|--|----------------------|
| 1.  | Shri Vijay Goel                 | Minister of State for Youth Affairs and Sports (Independent Charge)              | Chairperson          |
| 2   | Dr. A.K. Dubey                  | Secretary, Department of Youth Affairs   | Sr. Vice Chairperson |
| 3   | Shri Shekhar Rao Perala         | Eminent Person   | Vice Chairperson     |
| 4   | Shri Dilip Saikia               | Eminent Person   | Vice Chairperson     |
| 5   | Shri Dinesh Pratap Singh        | Eminent Person   | Vice Chairperson     |
| 6   | Shri Pravesh Sahib Singh        | Member of Parliament<br>(Lok Sabha)  | Member               |
| 7   | Shri Nalin Kumar Kateel         | Member of Parliament<br>(Lok Sabha)  | Member               |
| 8   | Mrs. Roopa Ganguli              | Member of Parliament<br>(Rajya Sabha)  | Member               |
| 9   | Shri. Injeti Srinivas           | Secretary, Department of Sports  | Member               |
| 10  | Ms Kiran Soni Gupta             | Additional Secretary & Financial Advisor<br>Ministry of Youth Affairs and Sports | Member               |
| 11  | Lt. Gen. Vinod Vishisht         | Director General, NCC  | Member               |
| 12  | Shri Lalit Kumar Gupta          | Joint Secretary (YA)   | Member               |
| 13  | Shri Navin Agarwal              | Director<br>National Service Scheme  | Member               |
| 14  | Smt. Latha Pilai                | Director, RGNIYD   | Member               |
| 15  | Shri Rajive Kapoor              | Director<br>LBS National Academy of Admn.  | Member               |
| 16  | Shri Shivraj                    | Eminent Person   | Member               |
| 17  | Mrs. Rani Nighot Dwivedi        | Eminent Person   | Member               |
| 18  | Maj. Gen. Dilawar Singh (Retd.) | Director General - NYKS  | Member Secretary     |



#### SANCTIONED STRENGTH OF STAFF IN NYKS AS ON 17.04.2017

| S.No. | Post                            | Total Sanctioned Strength | Persons in position | on<br>Deputation | UNV<br>DYC | Vacancy |
|-------|---------------------------------|---------------------------|---------------------|------------------|------------|---------|
|       | Group A                         | <b>0</b>                  |                     |                  |            |         |
| 1     | Director General                | 1                         | 1                   |                  |            | 0       |
| 2     | Director                        | 4                         | 1                   | 1                |            | 2       |
| 3     | Joint Director                  | 1                         | 4                   |                  |            | -3      |
| 4     | State Director                  | 18                        | 10                  |                  |            | 8       |
| 5     | Dy Director                     | 56                        | 31                  |                  |            | 25      |
| 6     | Asstt Director                  | 9                         | 11                  | 2                |            | -4      |
| 7     | Dt Youth Coordinator            | 623                       | 229                 | 25               | 25         | 344     |
| 8     | Asstt Director (OL)             | 1                         | 1                   |                  |            | 0       |
|       | Sub Total (A)                   | 713                       | 288                 | 28               | 25         | 372     |
|       | Group B                         |                           |                     |                  |            |         |
| 9     | Accounts Officer                | 4                         | 0                   |                  |            | 4       |
| 10    | Admn Officer                    | 18                        | 0                   |                  |            | 18      |
| 11    | Section Officer                 | 5                         | 0                   |                  |            | 5       |
| 12    | Legal Officer                   | 1                         | 1                   |                  |            | 0       |
| 13    | PS TO DG                        | 1                         | 0                   |                  |            | 1       |
| 14    | Asst Account Officer            | 19                        | 3                   |                  |            | 16      |
| 15    | Jr Computer Programmer          | 19                        | 0                   |                  |            | 19      |
| 16    | PS To Chairman                  | 1                         | 0                   |                  |            | 1       |
| 17    | Sr Hindi Translator             | 1                         | 0                   |                  |            | 1       |
| 18    | Jr Accounts Officer/ Accountant | 23                        | 3                   |                  |            | 20      |
| 19    | Stenographer – I                | 12                        | 9                   |                  |            | 3       |
|       | Assistant                       |                           | 4                   | 2                |            |         |
| 20    | Training & Research             | 45                        |                     |                  |            | 39      |
| 21    | EDP Assistant                   | 1                         | 1                   |                  |            | 0       |
| 22    | Librarian                       | 1                         | 0                   |                  |            | 1       |
| 23    | Auditor                         | 2                         | 0                   |                  |            | 2       |
|       | Sub Total (B)                   | 153                       | 21                  | 2                |            | 130     |
|       | Group C                         |                           |                     |                  |            |         |
| 24    | Jr Accountant                   | 4                         | 0                   |                  |            | 4       |
| 25    | Computer Operator               | 4                         | 0                   |                  |            | 4       |
| 26    | Account Clerk Typist            | 688                       | 464                 |                  |            | 224     |
| 27    | Stenographer – II               | 27                        | 5                   |                  |            | 22      |
| 28    | UDC                             | 6                         | 5                   |                  |            | 1       |
| 29    | LDC                             | 30                        | 13                  | 1                |            | 16      |
| 30    | Driver                          | 70                        | 41                  |                  |            | 29      |
| 31    | MTS                             | 578                       | 514                 |                  |            | 64      |
|       | Sub Total ©                     | 1407                      | 1042                | 1                |            | 364     |
|       | Grand Total (A+B+C)             | 2273                      | 1351                | 31               | 25         | 866     |



#### **CORE PROGRAMMES**

## DETAILS OF CORE PROGRAMMES CONDUCTED BY NYKS

#### a) Core Programmes

A summary of Core Programmes along with significant achievements follow:

#### 1. Youth Club Development Programme

The programme is aimed at strengthening the existing network of Youth Clubs with representation from all sections of society, publicize the Schemes of Central Government viz. Pradhan Mantri Jan-Dhan Yojna, Swachh Bharat Mission and Construction of Toilets under Nirmal Bharat Abhiyan. The programme was implemented in campaign mode rather than a routine exercise. During the campaign, youth were made aware and mobilized about these schemes through a network of village based Youth Clubs. They were also motivated to popularize and adapt these schemes and motivate others to get the benefit out of these schemes. Team members met and interacted with youth leaders, Gram Panchayat Pradhans & Members and other opinion leaders in the villages. They also disseminated information about NYK and its Annual Action Plan 2016-17.



verified current status of Youth Clubs and updated their Youth Club's Profile, Membership details in the prescribed format. Concerned District NYKs uploaded the Youth Club Profile online which is displayed on NYKS Website. For organization of each of Youth Club Development Programmes, Rs. 15,000/- were earmarked. Achievements under this Programme are as follows:

| Target | Target   | Beneficiaries |        |        |  |
|--------|----------|---------------|--------|--------|--|
| Set    | Achieved | Male          | Female | Total  |  |
| 2118   | 1900     | 120174        | 36090  | 156264 |  |

<sup>\*</sup>State wise details of the Programmes are placed at Annexure - 1

## 2. Training on Youth Leadership and Community Development

The programme is aimed at developing leadership qualities, personality development and enhancing skills for taking up community development initiatives among the youth through 3 days training programmes so that they can act as agents of social change and dissemination of information among masses in general and youths in particular about various schemes & programmes of Govt. and other Development Departments, Agencies for youth development. For organization of each of Training on Youth Leadership and Community Development Programmes, Rs. 88,000/- were





earmarked. Achievements under this Programme are as follows:

| Target | Target   | В     | eneficiari | es    |
|--------|----------|-------|------------|-------|
| Set    | Achieved | Male  | Female     | Total |
| 2118   | 1769     | 51027 | 24562      | 75589 |

<sup>\*</sup>State wise details of the Programmes are placed at Annexure - 2

#### 3. Promotion of Sports

#### i) Sports Material to Youth Clubs

The programme is aimed at development of sports culture among the rural youth. Assistance is provided to the Youth Clubs for purchase of basic sports materials for sports activities to be undertaken on a regular basis. For providing sports material to Youth Clubs, valued at about Rs.3,000 per club (including Rs.1,000 for a football) for promotion of sports and games in the villages. Achievements under this Programme are as follows:

| Target Set | Target Achieved |
|------------|-----------------|
| 22765      | 21371           |

<sup>\*</sup>State wise details of the Programmes are placed at Annexure – 3

#### ii) Block and District Level Sports Meet

The programme is aimed at popularizing and encouraging rural sports and games among Youth Clubs established by NYKS. Another objective of the programme was to make sports activities as a



natural process and way of life in rural India and also to provide opportunities to youth to exhibit their talent. Sports events were selected by District NYKs as per sports infrastructure and play fields available in a particular block. Rs. 18,000/- and Rs. 30,000/- were provided for organizing each Block and district level Sports Meets, respectively. Duration of each Meet was of two days or as per the need of the events. Achievements under this Programme are as follows:

| Level    | Target | - 0      |        | eneficiari | es     |
|----------|--------|----------|--------|------------|--------|
|          | Set    | Achieved | Male   | Female     | Total  |
| Block    | 1933   | 1781     | 187892 | 49002      | 236894 |
| District | 623    | 519      | 73175  | 19041      | 92216  |

<sup>\*</sup>State wise details of the Programmes are placed at Annexure – 4 & 4 A.

## 4. Skill Up-gradation Training Programmes (SUTP)

The programme was implemented in all 623 Districts. The endeavor is to enhance their employability by running a variety of employable skill based training courses with the support of Trainers, reputed/recognized Skill Development Agencies. For organization of each of Skill Upgradation Training Programme, a budgetary provision of Rs.30,000/- for 4 months and Rs. 15,500/- for 2 months per course was made.





Achievements under this Programme are as follows:

| Target | Target   | В     | eneficiari | es     |
|--------|----------|-------|------------|--------|
| Set    | Achieved | Male  | Female     | Total  |
| 5112   | 4751     | 20338 | 108205     | 128543 |

<sup>\*</sup>State wise details of the Programmes are placed at Annexure - 5

#### 5. Promotion of Folk, Art and Culture

The programme is aimed to facilitate rural youth understand and appreciate their folk, art and cultural aspects as well as provide them opportunity to display their folk art cultural talent and facilitate in preserving and promoting the same. These Programmes were organized with special reference to folk songs, folk dances, folklores etc. For organization of each of Promotion of Folk, Art and Cultural Programmes,



a budgetary support of Rs. 20,000/- per district was made. Achievements under this Programme are as follows:

| Target | Target       | В     | eneficiari | es     |
|--------|--------------|-------|------------|--------|
| Set    | Set Achieved | Male  | Female     | Total  |
| 623    | 531          | 69698 | 42650      | 112348 |

<sup>\*</sup>State wise details of the Programmes are placed at Annexure - 6

## 6. Observance of Days of National and International importance

The programme is mainly focused on generation of awareness about critical issues of National



and International importance coinciding with the particular day/week including observance National Youth Day & Week. For this purpose, each of the 623 district NYKs were provided a budgetary support of Rs. 75,000/- for observance of minimum 20 days of National & International importance. Achievements under this Programme are as follows:

| Target | Target   | Beneficiaries |        |         |
|--------|----------|---------------|--------|---------|
| Set    | Achieved | Male          | Female | Total   |
| 12460  | 12322    | 859973        | 465459 | 1325432 |

<sup>\*</sup>State wise details of the Programmes are placed at Annexure - 7

#### 7. District Youth Convention

The programme is were undertaken annually by all District NYKs to provide opportunity and platform to Rural Youth Leaders to display products and express themselves, share experiences and suggest best practice programmes for youth empowerment. This programme sensitize Youth





Clubs Leaders on various issues of their interest such as Role of Youth Clubs in Nation building, generation of awareness about issues relating to available opportunities for their employment and how to take benefit of the various schemes and programmes of different Ministries, Agencies, Departments, etc. For organization of District Youth Convention, budgetary support of Rs. 30,000/- per district was made. Achievements under this Programme are as follows:

| Target | Target   | Beneficiaries |        |        |
|--------|----------|---------------|--------|--------|
| Set    | Achieved | Male          | Female | Total  |
| 623    | 543      | 105144        | 53952  | 159096 |

<sup>\*</sup>State wise details of the Programmes are placed at Annexure - 8

#### 8. Mahatma Gandhi Yuva Swachhta Abhiyan evam Shramdaan Karyakram

The Programme aimed at creating awareness among youth about need and importance of Swachhta and Water Conservation. This was a year-long programme to be organised in 150 selected Districts during 2016-17. A provision of Rs.1.00 lakh per District was made for this purpose. Achievements under this Programme are as follows:

| Target | Target   | Beneficiaries |        |       |
|--------|----------|---------------|--------|-------|
| Set    | Achieved | Male          | Female | Total |
| 150    | 85       | 10158         | 5267   | 15425 |

<sup>\*</sup> State wise details of the Programmes are placed at Annexure - 9



#### 9. Yuva Aadarsh Gram Vikas Karyakram

The Programme aimed at developing one village in selected Districts as model village by the youth for the youth. The activities included making the villages open defecation free, 100% immunization, 100% enrolment of children in primary school, cleanliness, preventive healthcare, popularisation of flagship programmes of the government, etc. This was a year-long programme to be organised in 200 selected Districts during 2016-17. Rs.50,000 per District were provided for this purpose. Achievements under this Programme are as follows:

| Target | Target   | Beneficiaries |        |       |  |
|--------|----------|---------------|--------|-------|--|
| Set    | Achieved | Male          | Female | Total |  |
| 200    | 95       | 23826         | 10620  | 34446 |  |

\* State wise details of the Programmes are placed at Annexure - 10



#### 10. Awards to Outstanding Youth Clubs

The programme is aimed to recognize the voluntary services rendered and encourage Youth Clubs to undertake community development & welfare activities. Youth Clubs which have been recognized as catalysts of social change and these Clubs can play a vital role in activities such as skill training, creation of durable community assets in villages, national integration, sports, culture, health and family welfare, environment enrichment, self-employment, women empowerment, eradication



of social evils, community development, etc. Awards were conferred at the District level, the winners were awarded a sum of Rs.25,000/- and at the State level the award was of Rs.1,00,000/- and at the National level, three awards of Rs.5,00,000/, Rs.3,00,000/- and Rs.2,00,000/-. The Youth Clubs utilize the award money in community development projects/ programmes. Achievements under this Programme are as follows:

| Level    | Target Set | Target Achieved |
|----------|------------|-----------------|
| District | 623        | 310             |
| State    | 32         | 13              |

<sup>\*</sup>State wise details of the Programmes are placed at **Annexure –** 11 & 11 A

# 11. Meetings of District Advisory Committee on Youth Programmes (DACYP)

This activity is to provide support to the youth programme and is one of the most imperative for the field functionaries to ensure proper programme planning, coordination, implementation, transparency and monitoring for effective functioning of district NYKs with expected outcomes. It also aimed at bridging gap, if any, between the District Administration and NYK for undertaking coordination programmes and mobilization of resources for youth development and empowerment. In order to render more services to the youth, NYK at district level developed linkages with the district administration, district authorities, eminent social workers and youth leaders, for guidance and facilitation.

The District Advisory Committee on Youth Programmes (DACYP) is formed in each district by the NYK to achieve the desired synergy and coordination of the kind mentioned above. It is mandatory to hold DACYP meetings twice in a year (2nd & 4th quarter) for which the initiative is taken by its Member Secretary, i.e. District Youth Coordinator of NYK. District Collector/District Magistrate Chairs the meeting and other development officers in the district attend meeting by the order of the Chairperson.

Similarly, a State Advisory Committee on Youth Programmes (SACYP) has been constituted in each State. SACYP is Chaired by Hon'ble Youth Minister of the State and it meets twice in a year. Rs. 2,000/- @ Rs. 1,000/- and Rs. 3,000/- @ Rs.1,500/- were given to each of 623 district NYKS and 29 State Offices, respectively for arranging meetings.

Numbers of meetings held are as follows:

| Level of Meeting  | Target<br>Fixed | Target<br>Achieved |
|---|-----------------|--------------------|
| District Advisory Committee on Youth Programmes (DACYP) | 1246            | 359                |
| State Advisory Committee on Youth Programmes (SACYP)    | 60              | 10                 |

<sup>\*</sup> State- wise details of the meetings of DACYP & SACYP are placed at Annexure –12 & 13



### STATE/ZONAL LEVEL PROGRAMMES

## 1. Planning, Review and follow up Meeting

The objective for organizing Planning, Review and follow up Meeting was to Review the progress of ongoing programmes & activities of NYKs and monitor the progress with constructive interventions by involving consensus on all relevant issues, to plan innovative projects & programmes for youth development and empowerment. It was also to suggest measures for strengthening the existing networks of Youth Clubs and to share information about the ongoing schemes and programmes of the Government (both State as well as Central Govt.) for youth development and expedite coordination.

Under this programme, contingency plan and strategy for implementation in case of need was

prepared and executed. Yearlong activities to be carried out by Youth Clubs were chalked out and prioritization of activities was done.

State Directors convened a minimum of 04 meetings as per the need and requirement. The duration of each of the meeting was one day. All Dy. Directors and District Youth Coordinators working in the State were invited for the meetings. Rs. 200/- per meeting and per Deputy Director & District Youth Coordinator of the State were given to State Offices.

Achievements under this programme are as follows:

| Target Set | Target Fixed |
|------------|--------------|
| 116        | 90           |

<sup>\*</sup> State - wise details of the Programmes are placed at Annexure - 14

#### b) COORDINATION WITH OTHER DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENTS AND AGENCIES

In addition to Core Programmes, NYKS organized a number of Coordination Programmes. For the first time, Coordination Programmes have been made an integral part of Annual Action Plan 2016-17 wherein NYC Volunteers who with the guidance and support of District Youth Coordinators undertook Coordination Programmes by involving Youth Clubs.

The objective for undertaking Coordination Programmes is to provide more programs for the furtherance of the objectives of NYKS and in achieving the set goal. In this context, emphasis was given on coordination and establishing linkages with other development Departments, agencies, NGOs at different levels. A brief of the Coordination activities and achievements follows:

| S. No | Programme  | Programme Unit   | Achievement made |
|-------|--|------------------|------------------|
| 1.    | Linking Youth Club Members with Employable Skill Development Trainings   | No. of Youth     | 126341           |
| 2.    | Promotion & Facilitating Villagers to get benefits under<br>Prime Minister Financial Inclusion Schemes (Pradhan<br>Mantri Jan Dhan Account, benefit under Pradhan<br>Mantri Suraksha Beema Yojna, Pradhan Mantri Jeevan<br>Jyoti Yojna, Atal Pension Yojna, MUDRA Bank | No. of villagers | 474960           |



| S. No | Programme   | Programme Unit               | Achievement made |
|-------|---|------------------------------|------------------|
|       | (Micro Units Development and Re-finance Agency),<br>Pradhan Mantri Fasal Bima Yojana, Digital India, Make<br>in India - Skill India, Start up India, Stand up India and<br>others |                              |                  |
| 3.    | Creation of new Water Bodies  | No. of Water Bodies          | 15558            |
| 4.    | Maintenance/ repair/ improvement of existing Water Bodies   | No. of water bodies          | 8772             |
| 5.    | Cleaning, Digging,, Maintenance, De-silting and repair of Ponds, natural drinking water resources, small irrigation channels, water tanks, etc.                                   | Number                       | 9032             |
| 6.    | Maintenance & repair of Cremation Grounds and Play Grounds  | Number                       | 3545             |
| 7.    | Recharging / De-silting of Wells  | Number                       | 6049             |
| 8.    | Water Harvesting in Villages  | Number                       | 6712             |
| 9.    | Construction of Bori Bandas in a Village  | Number                       | 2150             |
| 10.   | Agriculture Land Soil Cards   | Number                       | 133699           |
| 11.   | Selection of Swachhta Ambassadors at Block, District & State level  | No. of Ambassadors           | 3807             |
| 12.   | Cleanliness of School/College   | No. of Schools /<br>Colleges | 13884            |
| 13.   | Cleanliness of PHC/Sub Center/Hospitals   | Number                       | 31721            |
| 14.   | Cleanliness Drive to clean streets and common places  | Number                       | 194008           |
| 15.   | Cleaning of office complex, toilets and garbage places of district & State offices  | Number                       | 4672             |
| 16.   | Cleanliness Public Statues  | Number                       | 31104            |
| 17.   | Motivation resulting into Construction of Toilets for Open Defecation Free (ODF)  | No. of Toilets               | 56223            |
| 18.   | Sapling Plantation and their survival   | No. of Plants                | 1508223          |
| 19.   | Collection of Polythene Bags to generate awareness and facilitate in protecting environment   | No. of Villages              | 93852            |
| 20.   | Eradication of weeds e.g. (Gajar Ghas, Lantana, Water Hyacinth) in villages   | No. of Villages              | 32984            |
| 21.   | Blood Donation  | No. of Youth donated blood   | 122527           |
| 22.   | Enrolment of Voluntary Blood Donors and their Blood Grouping  | No. of Youth                 | 140790           |
| 23.   | Providing access of Iron Folic Acid Tablet to Adolescent Girls  | No. of Adolescent<br>Girls   | 210688           |
| 24.   | Motivated Girls and their Parents to postpone her marriage till attaining 18 yrs.   | No. of Girls                 | 132223           |



| S. No | Programme  | Programme Unit             | Achievement made |
|-------|--|----------------------------|------------------|
| 25.   | Motivated and Facilitated Institutionalized Deliveries                                       | No. of Women               | 48144            |
| 26.   | Immunization of Pregnant Mothers   | No. of Pregnant<br>Mothers | 70351            |
| 27.   | Motivate and Immunization of Children (0-5 yrs)  | No. of Children            | 187235           |
| 28.   | Cataract (Eye) operations  | No. of Persons             | 16620            |
| 29.   | Health Check-up Camps (DOTs, Hypertension, Diabetics and others)                             | No. of Camps               | 18439            |
| 30.   | Enrolment of children in schools   | No. of Children            | 162111           |
| 31.   | Beti Bachao - Beti Padhao  | Number                     | 338909           |
| 32.   | Facilitating into getting Voters ID Cards  | No. of Persons             | 134035           |
| 33.   | Other Programmes as per local need and priority may please be added in the Plan with targets |                            | 27115            |

#### c) Swachh Bharat Mission

On the call of Hon'ble Prime Minister of India and to realize Gandhiji's dream of a Clean India, Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan undertook Swachh Bharat Mission through 623 District NYKs, 29 State offices with involvement of 12,000 NYC Volunteers and village based Youth Clubs. The Mission was focused on participation of all sections of society to bring about mass awareness and a lasting behavioral change to achieve this goal.

In this context, NYKS launched the Mission on 25<sup>th</sup> September, 2014, the Birth Anniversary of Pt. Deendayal Upadhayaya Ji which was followed



by field level activities with participation of NYKs Youth Clubs, NYC volunteers and village communities. During the launching function, Hon'ble Ministers, MPs, MLAs, bureaucrats, eminent persons from all sections of the society were involved. Toilets and garbage places were cleaned in office complexes of 623 Districts and 29 State offices of NYKS. Global Hand Washing Day on 15<sup>th</sup> October and the World Toilet Day on 19th November were observed to spread the message of cleanliness.

The members of Youth Clubs were motivated to undertake Special Cleanliness Drive in their respective areas. Cleaning Drive includes, eradication of weeds, collection of polythene bags and plastic material for disposal, maintenance of public property (anganwadi centres, PHCs, etc.), sheds on road sides and bus stand, cleanliness of street and common places, maintenance and repair of cremation grounds, maintenance of play grounds, schools and community toilets, digging, maintenance, disinfection, de-silting and repair of ponds, wells, natural drinking water resources, small irrigation channels, water tanks, water harvesting, etc. These activities were organized



with great zeal and gaiety.

The issues of Cleanliness and Sanitation Education were made integral part of NYKS Programmes and Workshops and Training Programmes for

Youth Club Leaders/Members, NYC Volunteers and NYKS field officials were organized on "Swachh Bharat". Members of NYKs Youth Clubs and National Youth Volunteers (NYVs) motivated villagers for construction of sanitary latrines.

#### A brief on the Swachh Bharat Mission activities are as follows:

| Sr. No | Name of the programme   | No. of Programmes organized | No. of Youth<br>Clubs invited | No. of<br>Participants |
|--------|---|-----------------------------|-------------------------------|------------------------|
| 1.     | Observance of birth anniversary of Pt. Deendayal Upadhayaya for launching of Swachh Bharat Abhiyan (25 <sup>th</sup> September, 2016) | 4492                        | 8636                          | 131029                 |
| 2.     | Observance of Gandhi Jayanti on Swachhta  | 4541                        | 13595                         | 179207                 |
| 3.     | Type of Activities undertaken to observe <b>Global Hand Washing Day on 15</b> th October  | 3755                        | 13437                         | 122380                 |
| 4.     | Type of Activities undertaken to observe <b>World Toilets Day on 19<sup>th</sup> October</b>  | 3870                        | 9094                          | 75693                  |
| 5.     | Observance of Birthday of Sardar Patel as Swachh<br>Bharat Abhiyan on 31st October  | 4270                        | 14158                         | 190513                 |

\*\*\*\*\*

## d) National Young Leaders Programme (NYLP)

A new Central Sector Scheme, named National Young Leaders Programme (NYLP) for development of leadership skills among the youth has been introduced by Department of Youth Affairs, Ministry of Youth Affairs & Sports, Govt. of India during 2016-17. The National Young Leaders Programme is having the following components:

- 1. Neighborhood Youth Parliament (NYP)
- 2. Youth for Development Programme (YFDP)
- 3. National Young Leaders Awards (NYLA)
- 4. National Youth Advisory Council (NYAC) and
- National Youth Development Fund (NYDF).

The objective of the NYLP Scheme is to create an

institutional platform right up to the village level, where the youth can articulate their views on various issues and draw the attention of the local administration to such issues/ concerns affecting their lives.

During the year 2016-17, only Neighborhood Youth Parliament at Block level and Youth for Development Programme (IEC: Publicity and Media activities) were carried out by 623 district Nehru Yuva Kendras with the active participation of NYC Volunteers and NYKs Youth Clubs.

#### 1. Neighbourhood Youth Parliament

The platform of Youth Clubs is being developed further in the shape of vibrant 'neighborhood youth parliament'. The purpose is to educate the members of Youth Clubs about contemporary socio-economic development issues confronting local communities in general and the youth





in particular and to involve them in debate/discussions on such issues.

During these programmes, eminent Speakers delivered talk on contemporary issues like: Good Governance, Youth Participation in Govt. Schemes, Prime Minister Jan Dhan Yojna, Swach Bharat Mission, Construction of Toilets, etc.

Youth Leaders from different clubs were motivated that after return to their respective areas, arrange similar discussion/debate involving their club members. These Programmes were broadly structured on the pattern of 'Block Youth Parliament'. Village level Government functionaries as well as Gram Panchayat Pradhan/members, Agnawadi workers, Aasha Workers, etc. were invited to such Programmes. Village level Neighborhood Youth Parliament has been a follow-up action of block level Neighborhood Youth Parliament.

After each Programme, the recommendations were drawn up and the same were submitted to concerned Government functionaries as well as the Gram Panchayat for their consideration. In each programme, 80 youths of that particular Block participated in **Block level Neighborhood Youth Parliament**. Achievements under this Programme are as follows:

| Target<br>Set | Target<br>Achieved | Beneficiaries     |          |          |
|---------------|--------------------|-------------------|----------|----------|
| Set           | Acmeved            | Male Female Total |          | Total    |
| 11,558        | 9,530              | 5,27,650          | 2,21,657 | 7,49,307 |

In addition, **25,919** Village-level Programmes were organised, involving **5,26,632** lakh youth.

## 2. Youth for Development Programme (YFDP)

#### Objective:

The objective of the Programme is to channelize the immense youth energy towards the nation-building. This will be achieved by involving youth in Shram Daan (voluntary labour) on a large-scale all over the country. This will develop the personality and leadership qualities of the youth and promote the spirit of 'dignity of labour'.

## Components of Youth for Development Programme

It has following three components:

- a) Awareness Generation
- b) IEC component Publicity & Media Campaign
- c) Awards to Youth Clubs at Block level





#### a) Awareness Generation

The aim is to create awareness among youth about the need and importance of voluntary labour and its contribution towards social coherence and village development. It is also to enthuse in them the spirit for sustained and collective action in their respective villages.

The district NYKs Youth Clubs and Mahila Mandals under this program are mobilized, educated and motivated to undertake Shram Daan for 100 hours in 12 months with the participation of their members. It could either be 2-3 hours on Sunday, during lean working days, holidays or any other time they feel comfortable. For this purpose popular and time tested NYKs awareness creation strategies and activities be organized in the targeted villages having NYKs Youth Clubs and Mahila Mandals. During this process, they are also be suggested about the nature of activities to be taken up under the programme.

Further, to encourage the voluntary efforts and contributions of Youth Clubs and Mahila Mandals under this program, they are also briefed about the scheme of giving awards to outstanding Youth Clubs and Mahila Mandals at Block Level in the field of voluntary labour/ Shram Daan.

#### b) IEC component - Publicity & Media Campaign

In order to further strengthen awareness creation activities and popularizing the program among youth on one hand and undertake advocacy and environment building at different levels on the other hand, IEC component - Publicity & Media Campaign is the integral part of this program.

The activity was undertaken through educative pamphlets, banners, printed guidelines, handbills, talks on All India Radio, FM & AM channels, local

Media Channels, rallies, press meets, Media Circle Coverage from Village to village, documentation, publishing best practices.

A massive IEC: Publicity and Media Campaign was carried out in **270 District NYKs**.

#### c) Awards to Youth Clubs at Block level

The objective of the programme is to propagate the spirit of volunteerism, voluntary labour among NYKs Youth Clubs and Mahila Mandals and recognize their contribution.

**Operation**: The Scheme was operated at Block level and the competition was begun at the Block level.

#### Nature of Activities taken up:

Under the Programme, any activities that involve voluntary labour and are useful for the local area or community were taken up. Activities were specially focused on Swachh Bharat Mission. An illustrative list is as follows:

- a) Digging, maintenance, disinfection, desilting and repair of water bodies; cleaning of Rivers.
- b) Removal of Parthenium (Gaajar Ghas), Lantana and Water Hyacinth [these plants are a threat to the environment; Parthenium (Gaajar Ghas) is also a health hazard.
- c) Plantation of Saplings, eradication of weeds, development of village pasture land, collection of Polythene Bags and plastic material for disposal etc.
- d) Cleaning, whitewashing/ painting, repair/ maintenance of School Buildings, Gram Panchayat Buildings, PHCs, Anganwadi Centres and other Public buildings.



- e) Construction/ repair of village roads, small connecting bridges, small water harvesting structures, etc.
- f) Development and maintenance of Playgrounds, cleaning of school/ college campuses.
- g) Cleanliness drives in village streets and common places.
- h) Helping in construction of soak pit toilets for the needy persons; maintenance of school/ community toilets, etc.
- i) Preservation/ cleaning/ maintenance of heritage sites.

#### **Eligibility Criteria**

The programmes as it sounds were on voluntary basis which were undertaken by the Youth Clubs and Mahila Mandals in their respective villages and Gram Panchayats. Activities were taken up with the local initiative and resource mobilization. It not only reduced the cost of the activities but also save the time and money of the volunteers which they need to spend on their travel, boarding and lodging.

- All Youth Clubs and Mahila Mandals affiliated with District NYKs were eligible to apply.
- The award were given on the basis of the activities organized by Youth Clubs during the calendar year (i.e. January to December).
- Each of the identified village based Youth Clubs and Mahila Mandals undertook a minimum of 100 hours Shram Daan in 12 months. It could either be 2-3 hours on

Sunday, during lean working days, holidays or any other time they feel comfortable.

 Certificates were provided to all those members of Youth Clubs and Mahila Mandals those who have successfully completed 100 hours of Shram Daan.

#### **Award**

- In each block two awards to Youth Clubs/ Mahila Mandals were given
- First Prize consist of a Certificate and Rs.
   8,000/- in cash
- Second Prize consist of a Certificate and Rs. 4,000/- in cash
- Awards were given during a function at District Level.
- The Youth Clubs utilized the award money in community development projects and or for developing infrastructure of the Youth Clubs/Mahila Mandals.

In order to reward outstanding work done under the programme, awards have been given to **1,830 Youth Clubs.** 





# CELEBRATION OF DAYS OF NATIONAL AND INTERNATIONAL IMPORTANCE



# 1. Celebration of International Day of Yoga on 21st June 2016 at State, District, Block and Village Levels across India

Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan observed International Day of Yoga on 21st June, 2016 at State, District, Block and Village Levels across India in a befitting manner. For this purpose, a Video Conference with 29 State Directors and Deputy Directors was conducted by the DG, NYKS and Secretary, Youth Affairs. Director General, NYKS visited and reviewed the progress and preparations at Jammu and Punjab.

The services of NGOs and their experts, identified by M/o AYUSH and other organizations were utilized. The Booklet (both Hindi and English) and DVD provided by M/o AYUSH were circulated to all NYKs Youth Clubs and Yuvati Mandals and placed on NYKS website: www.nyks.org, for necessary guidance. NSS, NCC, Bharat Scouts & Guides, Hindustan Scouts & Guides and SAI were coordinated for joint mobilization of volunteers and infrastructure support.

The activities organized at various levels were widely covered by print and electronic media. Action photographs were placed on Face book of DG, NYKS website and URL of Ministry of AYUSH.

#### a) State Level Functions

Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan (NYKS) organized State level events on the International Day of Yoga on 21st June 2016 at 14 State Capitals i.e.



Jammu (Jammu & Kashmir), Lucknow & Varanasi (Uttar Pradesh), Hoshiarpur (Punjab), Banglore (Karnataka), Imphal (Manipur), Vijyawada (Andhra Pradesh), Bhubneshwar (Odisha), Shimla (Himachal Pradesh), Vadodara (Gujarat), Kohima (Nagaland), Aizwal (Mizoram), Agartala (Tripura) and Gangtok (Sikkim) besides large functions at District, Block and Village Levels across the entire nation. In **Mega programs**, **54,705** trained youth demonstrated Yoga as per Common Yoga Protocol.

During the program at State Capitals eminent 50 Yoga Gurus were honored. 03 Hon'ble Governors, 08 Central Ministers, Hon'ble MPs, MLAs, Mayors and other dignitaries attended these programmes.

#### b) District Level Functions and Exhibitions

Trainings on Common Yoga Protocol and preparatory activities were organized in 292 District NYKs for successful organization of mass Yoga practice and demonstration as per Common Yoga Protocol. District NYKs organized mass Yoga Demonstration as per Common Yoga Protocol. Besides this, Exhibition on Yoga, Youth Convention, Lectures by Experts on different subjects of Yoga were arranged in which 1,83,095 members of Youth Clubs and Yuvati Mandals took part.

During **District Youth Conventions**, subjects experts delivered lectures on the topics like: what schemes and programmes of New Government have reached to the youth and whether they are useful /beneficial to them, Youth personal physical and sports development, Yoga- Indian Culture and Heritage (Yoga not only develop a person's body but also the mind as well as it is key for coordination and Yoga and its importance and

usefulness in treatment of ailments) and other issues of youths' concern.

Hon'ble Central and State Govt. Ministers, MPs, MLAs, Public Representatives, DM/DCs and other Dignitaries attended the activities.

#### c) Village Level Functions

Nearly **22,102** NYKs Youth Clubs and Yuvati Mandals carried out Mass Yoga Demonstration, Honouring of Yoga Experts, talk by subject experts on Yoga and other activities in their villages by mobilizing local resources. During the Yoga Day Celebration, Gram Panchayat Pradhans, officials of Development Departments, NGOs, Social organizations and local citizens attended the activities. During this activities, **6,83,985** youth took part.

## d) Block Neighbourhood Youth Parliament - 10th to 19th June, 2016

For motivating NYKs Youth Clubs, District Nehru Yuva Kendras organized **2,563 Block level Neighbourhood Youth Parliaments** for which @
Rs. 12,000/- were provided. **2,11,342 Presidents/ Secretaries of Youth Clubs and Yuvati Mandals participated** in the programmes. One hour session was devoted on Yoga and Training. During these programmes, lecturers on benefits of Yoga, Demonstration of Yoga Practices as per Common Yoga Protocol, Documentary (DVD) show on Yoga followed by discussion were conducted.

Trained members of Youth Clubs and Yuvati Mandals participating in the Parliaments were motivated to organize Yoga Camps/Demonstrations in their villages by mobilizing local resources and Yoga experts.

The purpose for organization of Neighbourhood Youth Parliament was to educate the members



of Youth Clubs and Yuvati Mandals about contemporary socio-economic development issues confronting local communities in general and the youth in particular and to involve them in debate/ discussions on such issues.

During these programmes, eminent Speakers delivered talk on contemporary issues like: Good Governance, Youth Participation in Govt Schemes including Prime Minister Jan Dhan Yojna, Swach Bharat Mission, Construction of Toilets, etc.

Youth Leaders from different clubs were motivated that after return to their respective areas, they will arrange similar discussion/ debate involving their club members. These Programmes were broadly structured on the pattern of 'Block Youth Parliament'.

After each Programme, the recommendations were drawn up and the same were submitted to concerned Government functionaries as well as the Gram Panchayat for their consideration.

## 2. International Day against Drug Abuse observed (26th June)

District Nehru Yuva Kendras marked the International Day against Drug Abuse and Illicit Trafficking on 26th June, 2016 through its affiliated Youth Clubs.

The Youth Clubs shown their commitment to continue its efforts to raise awareness of the loss caused by drugs. Exhibitions on drugs and their dire consequences were also organized. Prominent citizens and Role model of Youths were invited for inspiring youth to not to use drugs and alcohol. The speakers were of the opinion that there is a need to spread awareness and implement meaningful policies addressing issues of drug and illicit liquor consumption.

The speakers were of the opinion that it is shameful and disappointing that the youths are consuming liquor in peer pressure which is a matter of great concern. They said that "it is easy to make speeches, but it is what solid action we take that counts".

On this occasion, activities like youth rally, cultural programmes, nukad natak and competitions like slogan writing, poster making, essay writing, collage making etc. were organized and the winners were awarded with the attractive prizes.

## 3. World Environment Day observed (5th June)

To mark the World Environment Day, the Youth Clubs affiliated with District Nehru Yuva Kendras organized a Green Pledge Signature Campaign to spread awareness on turning our village/city greener and cleaner. Graffiti boards were put up by number of clubs in the villages on which people wrote their suggestions for a better environment. Villagers were motivated to use jute/cloth bags and say no to Poly Bags. Large number of people took part in the signature campaign.

Keeping the environment clean, green and pollution free, a campaign to sensitize the youth about the climate change and environment hazards were organized. Pledge was also administered to protect the trees. A message that it is the duty of all of us to not only plant trees in abundance but to take care of them and protect them, was spread among the villagers.

On this occasion, competitions like painting, drawing, quiz, slogan writing, etc. were organized in which large number of youths took part.



## 4. World Population Day observed (11th July)

Today, population explosion is one of the major concerns of the world. As this issue of uncontrolled population growth is giving birth to other major problems in the world. Few of the major consequences of the rapid growth of population in the current time are Poverty, Unemployment, Pollution, Deforestations etc. There is severe need to check this explosion and observance of World Population Day is just a step in this direction.

July 11 is observed as World Population Day all over the world for the promotion of crucial issues such as the importance of family planning, including gender equality, poverty, maternal health and human rights. The observance of this day is a ray of light towards the growth and development in the current time of ever growing population. The day has been celebrated every year since 1989, year of its announcement.

Like previous years, this year also, District Nehru Yuva Kendras with the help of village based Youth Clubs celebrated World Population Day. Different events like seminars, discussions, educational information sessions, rallies, competitions like painting, poster making, quiz, etc were conducted to mark the day.

## 5. Tiranga Yatra - Yaad Karo Qurbani (Celebration of 70th year of Aazadi)

The objective of the programme was to rekindle the spirit of Nationalism, generate enthusiasm and infuse patriotism among youth and people in general and publicize initiatives of the Government of India.

The focus of the Tiranga Yatra was to celebrate the

attainment of Independence from colonial British Yolk; remember and pay respect to our freedom fighters as well as work together with a common resolve and live for the nation. Youth were sensitized about the importance and protocol of Tiranga. They were briefed that Tiranga is a symbol of inspiration for development, social harmony and unity.



#### **Coverage and Activities**

- a) Tiranga Yatra was organized in 113 districts covering 100% States and UTs in the country (list enclosed) with participation of youth from all walks of life.
- b) The venues of the programs were preferable the site identified with freedom fighter or at memorials associated with the martyrs. Programs started with hoisting of National Flag and singing of National Anthem.
- c) Thereafter, reputed speakers spoke on protocol of National Flag and its hoisting as well as Tiranga as a symbol of inspiration for development, social harmony and unity. They also motivated participants to surge ahead in their lives with the true spirit of nationalism and patriotism.



d) It was followed by on an average of **4.5 km Tiranga Yatra** which traversed through the main lanes and bazaars of district Headquarters. During the Yatra a large number of National Flags, banners and posters were carried by Youth Leaders and Volunteers and they chanted Patriotic Slogans and Songs, which created a *Tiranga* Mae environment.



- e) Tiranga Yatra **culminated** at a pre-decided venue preferably the site identified with freedom fighter or at memorials associated with the martyrs. Here, **following theme based activities** were conducted, which created awareness and motivated youth and others who attended the program.
- Talk on recent initiatives of Government of India
- Cultural programme, One Act Play on the theme of Freedom struggle
- Film on Freedom Movement
- Discussions on the lives of freedom fighters, martyrs and inspiration drawn
- Felicitation Kith and kin of Martyrs,
   Freedom Fighters and ex-servicemen
   who have been conferred with gallantry /
   bravery awards

f) On an average five to six activities were organized at each of the venues which were attended by 69,640 female and male youth who directly received and disseminated the messages of the program through a variety of activities.

## Dignitaries and Resource Persons attended Programs

Dignitaries such as Hon'ble Chief Minister of Madhya Pradesh, Haryana and Maharashtra, 02 Hon'ble Central Ministers, 11 Hon'ble Members of Parliament, 02 Hon'ble Speakers, State Legislative Assemblies, 06 Hon'ble Ministers of State Governments, 37 Hon'ble MLAs/MLCs, 13 Mayors/Dy Mayors, Secretary (Youth Affairs), Ministry of Youth Affairs and Sports, Director General, NYKS, Executive Director, NYKS and 17 DM/ DCs graced different activities undertaken during Tiranga Yatra Programme.

The dignitaries and resource persons presented their thoughts on life and works of Freedom Fighters, inspiration one can draw from them and Tiranga as well as motivated them to further disseminate the gained knowledge among their peers.

## 6. Swatchhta Fortnight (16th to 31st August)

The objective of observance of Swatchhta Fortnight was to encourage people to devote some hours out of their daily activities and work towards cleanliness of India.

A nation-wide intensive cleanliness & hygiene campaign under Swachhta Pakhwada from 16th to 31st August, 2016 was undertaken by all district Nehru Yuva Kendras by involving NYC volunteers, affiliated Youth Clubs, local youth and other key stake holders in the districts. NYKS sensitized the



people about the message that Swachh Bharat Abhiyaan- is not just about cleaning surroundings but also seeking the participation of people in planting tree, creating trash-free environment, providing sanitation facilities and paving a way for Swachh Bharat eventually. Swachh Bharat Abhiyan not only help citizens adopt good habits of cleanliness but also boost our image as a nation, sincerely working towards cleanliness. NYKS took following **two types of activities**:

#### A) Environment Building Activities

- Motivation The members of Youth Clubs and Youth were motivated to undertake Cleanliness Drives in their respective areas.
- Logo of Swachh Bharat Mission Logo of Swachh Bharat Mission was adopted and popularized at all levels.
- Banners to highlight the core issues of cleanliness, sanitation and hygiene were displayed at prominent places.
- Meetings of eminent citizens were organized for active support and guidance for effective implementation of Swachh Bharat Mission.
- Swachhta Shapath" (Pledge) All offices of NYKs and their affiliated Youth Clubs took the Swachhta Shapath (pledge) in public functions.
- Activities to focus public attention on this campaign and on the need for cleanliness hygiene - A variety of activities such as rallies, prabhat pheri, short run for cleanliness, seminars, lectures by Resource Persons, street plays, distribution of pamphlets and other IEC material, wall

writing and other community activities were undertaken to focus public attention on this campaign and on the need for cleanliness & hygiene.

#### B) Swachhta Fortnight Activities

On 30th Aug to 1st Sept. 2016, intensive cleaning drive was carried out by the Youth Clubs in their own village. All activities were organized through voluntary effort of Youth Clubs. Nonetheless, more and more villagers were motivated to participate to make it peoples' movement.

On 1st September, 2016, the members of Youth Clubs sensitized the people by displaying the Placards on the importance of Swachhtta on important Traffic Circles of Delhi.

The entire Swachhta Fortnight Activities was given wide coverage by the media Pan India.

## 7. Celebration of Hindi Fortnight (14th to 28th September)

Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan has observed Hindi Fortnight from 14th to 28th September, 2016 with zeal and gaiety. During this period, several competitions including Essay Writing, Slogan Writing, Sulekh, Noting & Drafting, Cultural Programmes, Seminars & Workshops, etc. were organized at various levels. The fortnight was observed by district NYKs by involving village based youth clubs.

## 8. Observance of Birthday of Pt. Deendayal Upadhayaya (25th September)

Birth anniversary of Pt. Deendayal Upadhayaya on 25th September, 2016 was observed with great zeal and gaiety by district Nehru Yuva Kendras in the country.

An intensive cleanliness & hygiene campaign was



launched by all district Nehru Yuva Kendras by involving NYC volunteers, Youth Clubs and other key stake holders in the districts.

## 9. Celebration of Gandhi Jayanti (2nd October)

Commemoration of the Gandhi Jayanti on 2nd October 2016, was organized by the Youth Clubs affiliated with District Nehru Yuva Kendras. The Programme was conducted with an objective to spread the message of goodwill, better understanding and feelings of brotherhood, social and national integration among the people, especially among the youth.



Thousands of youth from Youth Clubs as a symbol of peace and social integration took part in various functions organized at different levels. The programmes started with the **Sarva Dharm** Prathana offered by young singers. "Vaishnav jan to tene kahiye jo peer parai jane re", Gandhiji's favourate songs and bhajanas were sung.

As a part of the programme, activities such as Prabhat Pheri, Sarv Dharm Prathna, Photo Exhibition of life & works of Gandhi, Awareness Campaigns, Wall Writing, Cleanliness Drive, Work Camp (Community Development Programme), etc were organized.

10. Observance of Birth Anniversary of Late Sardar Vallabhbhai Patel as 'Rashtriya Ekta Diwas (National Unity Day)' on 31st October, 2016 / 'Rashtriya Ekta Saptah from 31st October, 2016 to 6th November, 2016

Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan organized different types of activities from **31st October to 6th November, 2016** at Village, District, State and National Hqr. These activities were organized through voluntary efforts of NYKS Youth Clubs, local youth from different walks of life and National Youth Volunteers as well as villagers were motivated to participate in the day and weeklong celebration activities.

Floral Tributes - The programmes were started with paying floral tributes to Sardar Vallabhbhai Patel. Chief Guests of the programmes urged the youth to devote themselves in Nation building, live together with unity so as to further strengthen the spirit of United India (Ek Bharat) and Foremost India (Shresth Bharat). It would enable India to become one of the greatest countries in the world.

Run for Unity programs were organized at different levels ensuring participation of large number of people especially the youth. The objective of the programme was to highlights the efforts made by Sardar Vallabhbhai Patel for uniting the country. Through this activity, awareness was increased about Rashtriya Ekta Diwas among the masses. 8,597 Youth Clubs carried out Run for Unity in their villages in which 6,87,792 persons took part.

**Pledge taking ceremony** was organized on 31st October, 2016 by all offices of NYKS, namely National Hqr., State offices in the States, District



NYKs and Youth Clubs in the villages in their respective offices and administered pledge for National Unity Day to all employees and National Youth Volunteers. Singing of National Anthem was the essential component of Celebration of Rashtriya Ekta Diwas. After conduct of the major activities, National Anthem was sung by the participants. Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan also organized lecturers and talks on **Life and Works of Sardar Vallabhbhai Patel**. The speakers highlighted different aspects of life of Sardar Vallabhbhai Patel. **6,738** programs were conducted in which **6,25,741 Youth** participated.

Pledge taking ceremony also took place at National Hqr. of NYKS under the chairmanship of Major General (Retd) Dilawar Singh, Director General.

Sports and Cultural Programmes - In order to infuse the spirit of togetherness and team building, different types of Sports & Games were carried out at village & block levels across India in which thousands of sports persons took part. For wider participation of youth and local villagers theme base cultural programs were also conducted.

In order to spread the messages of unity and security among the citizens of India as well as maintain the unity and integrity of the country, banners were displayed at prominent locations. IEC material was also distributed among the masses. Such activities were carried out in **6,572 Villages** during which **3,68,054 persons** were reached.

Competitions - Quiz, Essay and Slogan Writings - The main objective of organizing variety of programmes at this day was to promote National Integration among people of the country as well

as maintain the unity and integrity of the country. **3,588 Competitions** of Quiz, Essay and Slogan Writings, Rhyme recitation, etc. were conducted in which **1,93,752 Youth took part**. Besides a large number of people especially the youth attended the activities.



This occasion provided an opportunity to reaffirm the inherent strength and resilience of our nation to withstand the actual and potential threats to the unity, integrity and security of our country. The entire Rashtriya Ekta Week long Activities were given wide coverage by the Press and Media.

## 11. Celebration of NYKS Foundation Day (14th November)

Foundation Day of Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan was observed by District Nehru Yuva Kendras on 14th November, 2016 with the active involvement of National Youth Volunteers. On this occasion, various programmes which promote sadbhawana, peace, solidarity, national integration were organized.

Youth Clubs were motivated to organize programmes and activities in their respective villages by mobilizing local resources. As a



result of motivation, a number of Youth Clubs organized activities viz. seminars & discussions, sadbhawana rallies, pad yatras, administration of sadbhawana pledge, cultural programmes, work camps, Cleanliness Drive, sports, medical camps, etc. in their respective villages on voluntary basis.

## 12. Observance of Quami Ekta Diwas and Week (19th to 25th November)

19th November was observed as Quami Ekata Diwas and the celebration was continued upto 25th November, 2016 as a part of Quami Ekta Week. The week was observed by District NYKs with great zeal and gaiety involving National Youth Volunteers and village based Youth Clubs.

On this occasion, cultural programmes, sharamdaan shivirs, cleanliness drives, sports competitions, seminars & discussions, lectures by eminent personalities on "Role of Youth in promoting Quami Ekta", etc were organized. The youth were administered Communal Harmony Pledge.

## **13. National Constitution Day** celebrations (26th November)

Constitution Day on 26th November, 2016 was observed by district NYKs and State Offices in a befitting manner. National Youth Volunteers in position visited at least one village and briefed youth about the history and process adopted in the formation of Constitution of India as well as the key role played by Dr. B. R. Ambedkar.

The objective was to spread awareness of Indian Constitution and its architect Dr. B R Ambedkar. People were informed that on the day in 1949, constitution of India was adopted which came into force on January 26, 1950 marking the beginning of a new era in the history of free India.

The Preamble to the Constitution was read aloud followed by placing the framed copy of the Preamble in their offices. Mock Parliament Sessions on Constitution of India, were also organized at Block Level, as a part of Neighbourhood Youth Parliament.

Many Youth Clubs also organized programmes such as Youth Rallies, Essay, Quiz & Slogan writing competitions, lectures by subject experts, etc. on Constitution of India in their villages. They delivered speeches on the basic philosophy and fundamental values on which the Constitution was framed.

Director General, NYKS apprised the officials about the Constitution and its importance. He said that the constitution of India was framed to provide smooth functioning of the nation. It is a document which every citizen holds in high esteem and respect. Celebrating this day is an opportunity to inculcate the values incorporated in it among NYKS functionaries.

He further said that each Hindustani is an ambassador of hope, secularism and democracy. It is very important that the young minds are trained to be the torch bearers for the same. Rights are followed by Duties and our NYKS functionaries should understand and practice the same.

## 14. World AIDS Day observed (1st December)

World AIDS Day, observed on 1st December every year, is dedicated to raising awareness of the AIDS pandemic caused by the spread of HIV infection.

Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan observed a World AIDS Day on 1st December, 2016 through village based Youth Clubs. Essay, Seminars and Rallies



etc. were organized for creating awareness on HIV/AIDS and check its spread. Moreover, the lectures and group discussions were also held on different aspects of HIV/AIDS and importance of voluntary blood donation.

# 15. Observance of International Day of Persons with Disabilities (Accessible India Campaign- Sugamya Bharat Abhiyan) - (3rd December)

Hon'ble Prime Minister, Narendra Modi, launched an initiative called Sugamya Bharat Abhiyan (also called Accessible India Campaign) on 3rd December, 2015 at Vigyan Bhawan, New Delhi which is annually being celebrated all over the world as International Day for Persons with Disabilities.

Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan has observed International Day of Disabled Persons on 3rd December, 2016 across the country through its village based network of Youth Clubs. The day was observed as "Accessible India Campaign (Sugamya Bharat Abhiyan)" for creating universal accessibility in built environment, transport system and ICT eco—system.

The principal objective of this day celebration was to improve the understanding of the people towards the people with disability issues as well as get together to support them to improve their self esteem, well being and rights in the society. It also called for to involve all the persons with disabilities in the society in every field of life such as the political, economic, social and cultural.

As a part of observance of the day, awareness generation activities such as motivational lecturers, discussions for building enabling environment by youth, speeches, honouring of disabled persons, dissemination of the schemes

of the Government for the welfare of disabled persons, etc. were organized with the active participation of members of NYKs Youth Clubs and organizations of persons with disability.

In addition to the above, peoples were sensitized about various problems faced with disabled persons with reference to accessibility in public places like creating ramps in schools, colleges, hospitals, gram panchyat offices and other post of public places. For this purpose, Stake Holders and Service Providers were involved during the awareness generation campaign.

## 16. National Youth Day and Youth Week observed (13th to 19th January)

12th January was observed as National Youth Day and 13th to 19th January as National Youth Week with great zeal and gaiety. This year also NYKS took a leadership role in celebrating the Birth Anniversary of Swami Vivekananda in coordination with District Administration, Youth Clubs, PRIs and other organizations.



NYKS with its full strength took part in Blood Donation Camp organized on 12th January, 2017 all over the country through the Red Cross Society.

During the week long celebrations, theme based activities including Prabhat Pheri, Sarv Dharam



Prarthana, Shramdaan, cultural programmes, sports & games, competitions including painting, poster, debating, elocution, etc. were organized on the ideals propagated by Swami Vivekananda. In the programmes, a large number of people in general and youths in particular participated.

#### 17. Voters Awareness Campaign

In order to create awareness about the need to cast their vote during the forthcoming Assembly Election in Punjab, Manipur, Uttar Pradesh, Uttrakhand and Goa, massive campaign for Voters Awareness Campaign was carried out by District Nehru Yuva Kendras.

During the campaign, the activities such as Seminars, Rallies, Nukad Nataks, Scripts, Cultural Programmes, etc. were organized across the Election States. Some of the District NYKs launched a **Matdaata Jagrukta Rath** through which the voters were motivated to cast their vote. IEC material in Regional Languages was also distributed. The activities were widely covered by the Media.

Oath was administered for participation of large number of people in Electoral process judiciously. Future voters were motivated to enroll themselves as soon as attaining the age of 18 years and exercise their powerful voting right.

During the campaign, it was emphasized that people should actively participate in Electoral Process very carefully and without any influence and consideration for better future of Young and development of Nation.

## 18. Observance of Martyrs' Day (30th January 2017)

With the active participation of members of Youth Clubs, Nehru Yuva Kendras observed Martyrs'

Day - coinciding with Mahatma Gandhi's death anniversary on January 30 - with due solemnity and with better public participation. Two minutes silence was observed at 11 am on January 30. During the silence, the persons stood up.

The eminent speakers on the occasion were invited and the speeches and talks were connected with the significance of the day, particularly mentioning the role of the freedom fighters in the Independence struggle, were organized. The theme of talks and speeches was also focused on the duty and the moral obligation of citizens to preserve, protect and enrich the hard-earned freedom and to promote a sense of national integration and commitment to common goals and ideals.

To mark the occasion, cultural programmes and screen films/documentaries on the themes of Indian freedom movement, the role of martyrs and national integration were also arranged.

#### 19. International Women's Day (IWD)

District Nehru Yuva Kendras observed International Women's Day (IWD) on 8th March, 2017. Different type of programmes and activities including cultural programmes, lecturers by eminent personalities, etc. were organized to mark the achievements of women in various fields.





The eminent speakers on the occasion were invited and they dwelled largely on the issues of Health & Education, Land and Property Rights, Crimes against Women, Sexual Harassment - Eve teasing, Dowry, Child Marriage, Female Infanticide and sex selective abortion, Domestic violence, Trafficking, etc. They spoke at large the role of social activists/ reformers and had attempted on their life a several time. Large number of members of Youth Clubs took part during the women's day celebrations.







#### SPECIAL PROGRAMMES AND PROJECTS

**Programmes under Special Projects and funding from various Ministries** 

### Special Service Camp at Simhastha Kumbh Mahaparv, Ujjain

Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan has organised Special Service Camp at Simhastha Kumbh Mahaparv, Ujjain w.e.f. 22nd April 2016 to 21st May, 2016. In the Special Service Camp the programmes included Youth Seminar, Exhibition, Cultural programme, Cleanliness drive and helping the devotees.



Shri Shivraj Singh Chouhan, Hon'ble Chief Minister, Govt. of Madhya Pradesh visited the camp & interacted with the participants.

Shri Rajeev Gupta, Secretary, Department of Youth Affairs, Ministry of Youth Affairs and Sports, Govt. of India, also visited the Special Service Camp. He interacted with the participants and applauded the work of NYKS in the Special Service Camp.

Shri S.N. Subbarao, Director, National Youth Project, presented chorus on "Bharat ki Santan" depicting essence of National Integration and Brotherhood. Shri Vishnu Dutt Sharma, Hon'ble Vice Chairman, NYKS and Dr. Anoop Swaroop, Vice Chancellor, Jagran Lake City University graced the programme with other distinguished guests.

Exhibition on NYKS programme and activities, Skill Development and Entrepreneurship during the camp was found very effective. In spite of the very ferocious storm and thunderbolt, the volunteers of NYKS worked tirelessly for Swachh Bharat Mission and helping the devotees and pilgrims. Ms. Archana Chitnis, Hon'ble MLA visited the camp and participated in the lecture session. Cultural programmes were conducted on daily basis.

Shri Paras Jain, Hon'ble Minister of School Education, Govt. of Madhya Pradesh, was the Chief Guest in the concluding ceremony of Simhastha Kumbha Mahaparva at Ujjain

A total of 879 participants participated in the Special Service Camp which included selected District Youth Coordinators, ACTs, National Youth Corps Volunteers and other youth volunteers of NYKS across the country.

Run for Peace and Unity for international Yoga Day- an initiative of Brahma Kumaris, Delhi Zone in collaboration of AYUSH, Ministry of Youth Affairs and Sports and UNIC

Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan, Alipur participated in Run for Peace and Unity on the eve of International Yoga Day. The programme was organised by Brahma Kumaris, Delhi Zone in collaboration with AYUSH, Ministry of Youth Affairs and Sports and UNIC on 18th June 2016 at India Gate, New Delhi. Around 4000 participants



including Youth from NYKS, NSS, Bharat Scouts and Guides and Various Schools of Delhi participated in the Run.

Sh. Rajeev Gupta, Secretary, Department of Youth Affairs, Ministry of Youth Affairs and Sports, Govt. of India, addressed the participants and encouraged youth to take part in all such events which not only improves health but also inculcates the feeling of togetherness and unity.

A total of 300 youth from Youth Clubs and Yuvati Mandals of North Delhi, South Delhi, East Delhi, Central Delhi, North East Delhi and West Delhi districts participated in the Run for Unity and Peace programme.

### NYKS participation in Run for Rio Programme

Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan participated in Run for Rio Programme organised by the Ministry of Youth Affairs & Sports, Govt. of India, through the Sports Authority of India (SAI). The run was conducted on 31st July 2016 in the morning from Major Dhyan Chand National Stadium, New Delhi.

The "Run for Rio" was flagged off by Shri Narendra Modi, Hon'ble Prime Minister of India from Major Dhyan Chand National Stadium, New Delhi. About 20,000 youth participated in the Run for Rio Programme. Hon'ble Prime Minister on the occasion said, "I am sure our athletes will win hearts of the world and will show the world what India is about".

The objective of the Run was not only to demonstrate to the athletes that the whole country is proud of them and wishes them all the best in the forthcoming Rio Olympics competitions, but also to connect public at large, especially children and youth, with the Olympic spirit and power of sports.

A total of 2419 youth (Male-1383 and Female-1036) from youth clubs of 9 Districts, Nehru Yuva Kendras of Delhi participated in the Run for Rio programme.

### NYKS participation in Launching of Namami Gange Programme

Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan is collaborating with with National Mission for Clean Ganga, Ministry of Water Resources, River Development & Ganga Rejuvenation for contribution towards abatement of pollution and conservation of Ganga through youth and public partcipation. The project envisages to intensifying support to 52 districts, 1,651 Gram Panchayats and 118 towns along river Ganga in five States of Uttarakhand, Uttar Pradesh, Bihar, Jharkhand and West Bengal.

NYKS role to support the cause is primarily through Youth mobilization, training and participation in Creating Awareness; Undertake Cleanliness activities and Plantation Drives for medicinal plants and native tree species; Shramdaan and motivation for Construction of Toilets. Youth would also be involved in monitoring of illegal activities along the banks of River Ganga.

The Namami Gange Project was launched on 7th July 2016 by the National Mission for Clean Ganga, Ministry of Water Resources, River Development and Ganga Rejuvenation, Govt. of India.

The main function was held at Haridwar. Shri Nitin Gadkari, Hon'ble Minister of Road Transport and Highways, Govt. of India, Shri Harish Rawat, Hon'ble Chief Minister, Uttarakhand, Ms. Uma Bharti, Hon'ble Minister of State for Water Resources, River Development & Ganga Rejuvenation, Govt. of India and Dr. Mahesh Sharma, Hon'ble Minister of Culture, Tourism and Aviation, Govt. of India graced the occasion.



Shri Sanjay Baliyan, Hon'ble Union Minister of State for Food Processing Industries inaugurated the launching programme in Uttar Pradesh. Hon, ble MPs and MLAs were also invited launching the on the occasion of programme. In Varanasi, the Chief Guest of the launching function was Shri Manoj Sinha, Hon'ble Minister of State for Railways and Communication, Govt. of India. In Allahabad, Ms. Sadhvi Niranjan Jyoti, Hon'ble Minister of State for Food processing, Govt of India was the chief guest of the launching function.

The launching of the programme in Bihar was organised at, Sidhi Ghat, Hajipur (Vaishali district). Shri Ram Vilas Paswan, Hon'ble Union Minister for Consumer Affairs, Food and Public Distribution

inaugurated the launching programme. In Sonepur (Saran), Bihar, Shri Rajiv Pratap Rudy, Hon'ble Union Minister for Skill Development and Entrepreneurship has inaugurated the launching programme. Shri Ram Kripal Yadav, Hon'ble Union Minister for Drinking Water and Sanitation inaugurated launching programme at Buxar, Bihar.

NYKS mobilized 7935 youth Volunteers from District NYKs Youth Clubs who participated in launching function of Namami Gange programme at 24 allocated locations/Ghats on 7th July 2016 in the States of Uttar Pradesh, Uttarakhand, Bihar, West Bengal and Haryana.





#### INTER STATE YOUTH EXCHANGE PROGRAMME

Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan is collaborating with Department of Sports & Youth Affairs, Govt. of Meghalaya for Inter State Youth Exchange Programme in four mainland States. The main objective of the programme is to promotes National Integration, Cultural Exchange, Interaction and Exchange of ideas on culture, practices and traditions for better bonding amongst the youth.

During the month of July 2016; the Meghalaya Inter State Youth Exchange Programmes were organized by Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan, Bhubaneswar (Odisha) and Alipur (Delhi).

In Bhubaneswar, the Inter State Youth Exchange Programme was organized at Kalinga Stadium from 6th to 10th July, 2016. A group of 36 Youth sponsored by Meghalaya Govt. participated in the programme. Local NYKs Youth Volunteers also participated in the programme. The Participants were called in by Dr. S.J. Jamir, Hon'ble Governor of Odisha at Rajbhawan. They interacted with the Hon'ble Governor. Sh. Dharmendra Pradhan, Hon'ble Union Minister of Petroleum and Natural Gas interacted with participants and appreciated the efforts of Govt. of Meghalaya and Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan for organizing such programmes. The participants visited places of cultural and historical importance viz. Sun Temple, Konark; Jagannath Temple, Puri, State Museum, Nandan Kanan Zoo, KIIT University, Puri and Chandhrabhaga Sea Beach etc.

The Meghalaya Inter State Youth Exchange Programme was organised by Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan, Alipur, Delhi at Vishwa Yuvak Kendra, Chanakyapuri Delhi from 14th to 19th July, 2016.

A total of 35 participants along with 2 escorts from Meghalaya participated in the programme. NYC volunteers from Delhi also participated in the programme.

The participants visited Meghalaya House in Delhi on 17th July, 2016 and had meeting and conversation with Shri Mukul Sangma, Hon'ble Chief Minister of Meghalaya.

The participants availed the opportunity to visit Gandhi Samriti and Darshan Samiti Rajghat, New Delhi and participated in a workshop on Gandhian Constructive Voluntary Work. The participants were also taken to Indian Institute of Tourism and Travel Management (IITTM), Noida and they participated in orientation course on travel and tourism. The participants were awarded certificates for participating in the above courses by the respective institutions.

The participants had the opportunity to visit important places of historical and cultural importance in Delhi viz. India Gate, Rashtrapati Bhawan, Lotus Temple, Qutub Minar, Planetarium etc.





### Signing of MoU for Mobilization of Youth for Swachh Bharat Mission (Urban)

A Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) was signed on 30.08.2016 between Ministry of Urban Development, Govt. of India and Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan in august presence of Shri M. Venkaiah Naidu, Hon'ble Minister of Urban Development, Govt. of India and Shri Rao Inderjit Singh, Hon'ble State Minister of Urban Development.



The MoU was signed by Sh. Praveen Prakash, Joint Secretary (SBM), Ministry of Urban Development & Major General (Retd.) Dilawar Singh, Director General, NYKS.

As per the MoU NYKS will undertake awareness generation activities campaign to mobilise youth in 9 pilot ULBs of the National Capital Region with a budget of Rs. 4.70 Crore to bring behavioural change regarding healthy sanitation and waste management under Swachh Bharat Mission.

Sh. Rajeev Gupta, Secretary, Department of Youth Affairs, Ministry of Youth Affairs and Sports, Govt. of India was also present during the occasion.

### HIV/AIDs Sensitization & Training Programme

Nehru Yuva Kendra, Kathua (Jammu and Kashmir) in collaboration with State AIDS Control Society, Jammu and Kashmir and health department organised 4 one day programme during the month of Sept 2016 at various places in the district for out of the school Youth. Programmes on HIV/AIDS sensitization/training with active participation of Youth Clubs, Mahila Mandals and Rural Community were also organised very successfully.

Shri Rajiv Jasrotia, Hon'ble MLA was the Chief Guest at Village Padyari. Hon'ble MLA urged upon youth and rural community to be aware about the dreadful disease of HIV/AIDS. He further stated that Youth Club Members and Volunteers must spread the message to the rural community to take utmost care not to fall in the trap of HIV infection and adopt medically prescribed methods to wipe out HIV/AIDS from the Society.

Dr. Bharat Bhushan, Additional Deputy Commissioner, Kathua was the Chief Guest at Village Bakhta. In his address, Dr. Bharat Bhushan cautioned the youth and rural community about the dreaded/fatal impact of HIV/AIDS which is greatest health challenge all over the world affecting the mankind. HIV/AIDS is cureless disease and awareness, self —discipline, self control is the only media to check and control over the fatal disease.

The resource persons included Medical Officers, Health Officers and Social Workers working in the field of HIV/AIDS sensitization & Training Programme.



The resource persons educated and trained adolescent and youth on various aspects of personal hygiene, HIV/AIDS and its control. The adolescents and youth were also made aware on various schemes of Health welfare being implemented by Government. The youth were also made aware on various schemes of women empowerment, Beti Bachao, Beti Padhao, Ladli Yojana and Youth Development Schemes etc.

A total of 630 adolescent and youth participated in 4 one day HIV/AIDS sensitization & Training programme during the month.

## National Launching function of Youth Led Mass Awareness Drive on Swachh Bharat (Urban)

Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan in collaboration with Ministry of Urban Development, Govt. of India organized the Launching Function of Youth Led Mass Awareness Drive on Swachh Delhi NCR Project for mobilizing youth & Communities for their partnership in Swachh Bharat Mission in befitting manner at Gurugram.

The programme was inaugurated by Shri Rao Inderjeet Singh, Hon'ble Minister of State, Ministry of Urban Development, Govt. of India on 3rd Oct, 2016 at S.S. Vatika, Surat Nagar, Phase II, Gurugram. While inaugurating the programme and flagging off the campaign (in fabricated chariot) Hon'ble Minister gave a clarion call to youth for their whole heartedly involvement in Swachh Bharat Abhiyan and for fulfilling concern Swachh Bharat made by Hon'ble Prime Minister from the rampant of Red Fort in 2014. Hon'ble Minister said that cooperation of people from all walks of life is of utmost importance for the success of the campaign.

A oath taking ceremony was also organized during the occasion in which about 1500 youth took the oath for contributing towards Swachh Bharat.

Shri Umesh Agrawal, Hon'ble MLA, Gurugram, said that Gurugram should be one of the top cities under Swachh Bharat.

Sh. Major Gen (Retd.) Dilawar Singh, Director General, NYKS explained about the Swachh Delhi NCR project. Shri. T.L. Satyaprakash, Commissioner, Municipal Corporation of Gurugram (MCG) & Shri Saurabh Jain, Joint Director, SBM, MoUD & Sh. Vimal Yadav, Ex Mayor also spoke on the occasion.

Nukkad Natak on Swachh Bharat was organized by Youth during the occasion for awareness generation. Poem recitation programme was also organized by the youth club members. Health Camp & Eye Check up Camp were organized by District Administration and Red Cross Society, Gurugram, along with free distribution of spectacles.

A total of 1500 youth and general public participated in the launching programme of Swachh Delhi NCR project.

#### North East Youth Exchange Programme Organised At Nagpur From 24th – 29th November 2016

Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan collaborated with the North East Division, Ministry of Home Affairs, Govt. of India for North East Youth Exchange Programme for the year 2016-17. In this Programme, the youth were drawn from 5 North Eastern States to visit Nagpur (Maharashtra).

The basic objective of the programme was to provide an opportunity to the Youth of 6 North Eastern States to visit Nagpur (Maharashtra) to



understand the socio economic development, cultural ethos, language, lifestyles of the people depicting unity in diversity aspect of our national life.



It was also an opportunity to expose them to the technological and industrial advancement that have taken place in Nagpur (Maharashtra) with focus on various developmental activities, skill development, educational and employment opportunities available there. Besides, it was intended to help the youth of North Eastern States to develop emotional linkages with their peer groups in other part of the country and make efforts for participating and carrying out development activities in their states.

Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan, organised North East Youth Exchange Programme at Nagpur w.e.f. 24th November to 29th Nov 2016 at Dr. Hedgewar Smarak Samiti Smruti Mandir, Reshimbagh, Nagpur.

The programme was inaugurated by Shri. Prasadji Mahankar in the august presence of Shri Anilji Sole, MLC, Mrs. Rani Nighot Dwivedi, Member, BOG, NYKS, Shri. Vikasji Kumbhare, MLA and Shri Shashikant Pandey, Social Worker.

The interactive sessions were conducted on Self confidence and Leadership Development, Skill India, Standup and Start up India, Avenues and Scope for Employable Skill Development, Swach Bharat Abhiyan and other developmental issues.

Ms. Rani Nighot Dwivedi, Member, BOG, NYKS, Delhi, Ms. Shivani Dani, Social Activist, Shri. Anil Sole, MLC, Dr. Surendra Gole, Director Anant Ved Human Resource Training Firm, Dr. Ved Prakash Mishra, Vice Chancellor, Dutta Meghe Institute of Medical Sciences, Shri. Sunil Kutkaru, Dr. Vijay Jadhav, Director, Polytechnic College, Shri. Pramod Bhusari, Asst Commissioner were the main speakers and Resource Persons.

The youth were provided opportunity to watch Hon'ble Prime Minister's MANN KI BAAT programme which was aired on 27th November 2016 in which Shri. Narendraji Modi had appealed to the youth of India to become sipahis of economic Parivartan

The youth were provided opportunity to visit the Raj Bhawan, Maharajbagh, Diksha Bhumi, Matru Sewa Sangh College of social work etc.

The youth also got golden opportunity to interact with Shri Nitin Gadkari, Hon'ble Minister, Road Transport, Highways and Shipping, Govt. of India. Hon'ble Minister spoke on self employment opportunities through abundant natural resources. He also urged the North Eastern Youth to actively participate in Nation Development Activities and make effort for initiating development activities in their states.

A North East Cultural Mahotsav was organised on the occasion in which youth from Manipur, Meghalaya, Nagaland, Tripura and Assam enthralled the audience with folk dances and folk songs viz. Reang Tribal Dance of Tripura, Thangal



Dance of Manipur, Khasi Dance of Meghalaya, Thangta Dance of Manipur, Wangala Dance of Meghalaya, Kuki Dance of Nagaland, Bihu Dance of Assam, Chakma Dance of Tripura and other folk dances and folk songs. The local youth also performed few folk dances of Maharashtra i.e Lavni, Gondhal and Ganesh Vandana.

A total of 275 youth including youth from Maharashtra participated in the above programme.



നെഹ്രു യുവ കേന്ദ്രയുടെ ആഭിമുഖ്വത്തിൽ കോലാനി തോട് ശുചീകരണം ഉദ്ഘാടനം ഇടുക്കി എം. പി ജോയ്സ് ജോർജ്ജ് നിർവ്വഹിക്കുന്നു.





### Youth involvement on Demonetization move of Government – a programme on Yuva Soch

Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan organised a programme on Yuva Soch at Rajghat, New Delhi on 11th November 2016 with support of Ministry of Youth Affairs and Sports, Govt. of India



Shri Vijay Goel, Hon'ble Minist of State (Independent Charge), Youth Affairs and Sports, Govt. of India administered the oath to 500 youth of NYKS for educating & making people aware on Government initiatives on demonetization measures to check the black money, corruption, control over terrorism and naxalism, fill up the gap of disparity between poor and rich people and to accelerate the economic growth of the

He called upon the youth for their active involvement on awareness, education and popularization of demonetization move of the government among general masses.

country.

He said that the first important initiative of Hon'ble Prime Minister was on Swachhta Bharat and 2nd important initiative is on corruption free India from black money. He said that the youth should mobilize and motivate people to understand long term positive impact of demonetization, create enabling environment for adopting plastic money, adopting mobile banking for cashless money in day to day life, making social media campaign for popularizing demonetization move of government and helping elders, women and physically challenged persons for smooth cashless transactions.

A total of 500 youth from Delhi participated in the programme.



#### 9th Tribal Youth Exchange Programme (TYEP) 2016-17

The Tribal Youth Exchange Programme is organised every year in collaboration with and funding from the Ministry of Home Affairs, Govt. of India. In this Programme, selected tribal youth from districts affected by Left-wing extremist in the States of Chhattisgarh, Jharkhand, Maharashtra, Bihar, Andhra Pradesh, Telangana and Odisha are taken to other parts of the country.

The programme aims to sensitize them to rich cultural heritage of the country and to enable them to appreciate the concept of unity in diversity, to expose them to development activities and technological/ industrial advancement in other parts of the country, to enable them to develop emotional linkage with the people in other parts of the country and to develop their personality by enhancing their understanding of the core life skills, identifying their skill development needs and providing them necessary career counseling.

The 9th Tribal Youth Exchange Programme 2016-17 was organized at 10 venues covering 1995 tribal youth along with 206 Escorts from 28 LWE affected districts of the States of Chhattisgarh, Jharkhand, Maharashtra, Bihar, Andhra Pradesh, Telangana and Odisha. The venues of the programme were Gujarat, Jaipur, Lucknow, Pune, Hyderabad, Bengaluru, Jammu, Delhi and Shimla.

The venue wise brief of the programmes are as follows:-

#### Vadodara (9th to 15th Dec 2016)

Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan, Vadodara organized Tribal Youth Exchange Programme at Gujarat Institute of Cooperative Management, Rajendranagar, Dada Bhagwan Sat Sthanak, at Kelanpur, Dabhoi Road, Vadodara, from 9th Dec to 15th Dec 2016.

In Vadodara, Gujarat Shri Sh.Bharatbhai Dangar, Mayor, Vadodara Municipal Corporation inaugurated the Tribal Youth Exchange Programme. Sh. L.M. Dindor, SDM, Vadodara was also present during the inaugural function.

In the valedictory function Sh. Shekhar Rao Perala, Vice Chairperson, NYKS was the Chief Guest. The field visit was also organised at Sabarmati Ashram, Swarnim Park and CRPF Camp. An interactive meeting was organised with Sh. O.P.Kohli, Hon'ble Governor of Gujarat.

The programme included interaction with VIPs, sessions on Skill Development, Cashless Transaction, Women Empowerment, Digital Finance, India's Freedom Movement, Youth Leadership, Environment, Patriotism, Employment Generation etc.

The field visit was also organised for the participants to Sabarmati Ashram, Ahmedabad, Swarnim Park, Gandhinagar, CRPF Campus, Gandhinagar. Cultural programmes were performed daily.

The group discussions, Yoga, and physical exercises were the part of programme during entire period. A total of 221 participants including escorts participated the Tribal Youth Exchange Programme at Vadodara (Gujarat).

#### **Jaipur (21st to 27th Dec 2016)**

Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan, Jaipur organised Tribal Youth Exchange Programme at Gyan Vihar University Campus, Jagatpura, Jaipur, Rajasthan from 21st to 27th Dec 2016. 9th Tribal Youth



Exchange Programme was inaugurated on 21st December 2016 at Kalindi Sabhagar, Suresh Gyan Vigyan Vihar University, Jaipur. Dr. Dharmabuddhi, Vice Chancellor, Suresh Gyan Vihar University presided over the inaugural function while Smt. Suman Sharma, Chairperson, State Women Commission was the Chief Guest.



Shri Kailash Verma, Parliamentary Secretary, Govt. of Rajasthan, Shri Jagdish Meena, DIG, CRPF, Shri Vivesh Kholia, Vice Chairman, Scheduled Caste Commission, Govt. of Rajasthan, Shri S.P. Bhatnagar, Regional Director, NSS, Jaipur were present in the inaugural function.

Dr. Buddhiprakash in his presidential address spoke on the overall development of youth through inculcating discipline in life. He informed that two tribal youth from this camp will be selected for free education and hostel facility for perusing higher education in the Suresh Gyan Vihar University, Jaipur.

Smt. Suman Sharma, while addressing the youth informed that the youth should come forward in disseminating the information on schemes and programme of Government of India to needy persons and creating positive environment for the girls and women in the society. Sh. Vikesh Kholia stated that youth are the centre of development

and the civilization and culture of the country revolve around the youth. Sh. Kailash Verma called upon the youth to follow the teachings of Swami Vivekananda for sustainable development.

The valediction programme of 9th Tribal youth Exchange programme, Jaipur was organised on 27th December 2016. Shri Rajendra Singh Rathore, Hon'ble Minister, Rural Development and Panchayati Raj, Govt. of Rajasthan while addressing the youth emphasizes that youth are the vanguard of national development. They should come forward to show the right means and ways to the youths at large and society for participation in national development.

Shri Prabhu lal Saini, Hon'ble Minister of Agriculture, Govt. of Rajasthan stated that our country is the youngest country in the world and youth can transform the political, social, economical and cultural scenario of the nation.



Smt. Manan Chaturvedi, Chairperson, Child Protection Commission, Govt. of Rajasthan spoke on tribal culture, language, lifestyle and on their overall development through youth exchange programme.

A total of 218 tribal youth including escorts from 9 LWE districts of Chhattisgarh participated in this programme. The programme included sessions



on education, employment, cashless transaction, prevention of drug abuse and alcoholism, culture, national integration, combating naxalism. Cultural programme were performed and visit to places of historical and cultural importance were conducted.

#### Lucknow (2nd to 8th Jan 2017)

In Lucknow, Uttar Pradesh Prof. S. P. Singh, Vice Chancellor, Lucknow University, Shri Shyam Chandra Dey, Commandant CRPF, Shri I.P. Singh, Former Minister of State and Dr. Victor, Director, IMRT jointly inaugurated the Tribal Youth Exchange Programme by lighting the lamp. Shri Ram Naresh, Under Secretary, MHA, Govt. of India was also present during the inaugural function.

In the valedictory function, Sh. Arvind Kumar, Principal Secretary (Revenue), Govt. of UP, was the Chief Guest. He spoke in detail on demonetization, digital transaction and specially the employment opportunities available to youth. Shri Shyamchand, Commandant, CRPF talked on Youth leadership and Youth Empowerment.

The programme included interaction with VIPs. Sessions on skill development training programme, career guidance, counseling with reference to different career opportunities available to youths especially on hospitality and hospital management sectors were conducted. Training needs of participants under various skill development programmes and opportunities development for entrepreneurship were discussed. Sessions on Cashless Transaction and demonetization were also organised. The group discussions, Yoga, physical exercises and cultural programmes were the part of programme during the entire period. The participants were taken to IIT Training Centre where they got information on

free training by Raymond.

During the field visit, the participants got opportunity to visit important historical place Bada Imambara. The Bara Imambara of Lucknow is one of the most famous monuments. It is an important place of worship for the Muslims who come here every year to celebrate the religious festival of Muharram.

A total of 207 participants including escorts participated the Tribal Youth Exchange Programme at Lucknow (Uttar Pradesh).

#### Pune (4th to 10th January 2017)

9th Tribal Youth Exchange Programme was inaugurated on 4th January 2017 at Main Auditorium, CRPF Group Centre, Pune, Maharashtra.

Mrs. Chitratai Jagnade, President, Talengaon Municipal Council, Sh. Shekhar Rao Perala, Vice Chairperson, NYKS, Shri Krishnarao Bhegade, ExMLA, Smt. Rani Nighot Dwivedi, Member of BOG, NYKS, Maj. Gen. (Retd.) Dilawar Singh, Director General, NYKS, Brigadier R.K. Singh, Security Advisor, LWE Division, Ministry of Home Affairs, Govt. of India and Shri Arunender Pratap, DIGP were present in the inaugural function.

Shri Arunender Pratap, DIGP welcomed the participants and talked on tribal society, youth development and Nation Building.

The programme included sessions on Role of Youth in Nation Development, digital transaction, Indian freedom Movement, Swachh Bharat, Fundamental Rights and Duties, Constitutional Provision for Tribal and Social Justice, Equality and Fraternity, Career Guidance and Skill Development with reference to different career



opportunities available to youths. Yoga, Prayers, Patriotic Songs and Cultural programmes were integral part of the programme. Panel Discussion, Interactive and Question Answer sessions were also conducted for the participants

The field visit was also organised for the participnts at important IT corporates viz.TCS, Wipro, Infosys, Persistant and also to CRPF campus, Pimpri-Chinchwad Municipal Corporation, companies which developed their learning process. The participants were also taken to Wet and Joy Amusement Park and Lonavala.

The valedictory programme was organised on 10th January 2017 at Pune. Shri. Rajesh Dabare, I. R. S., Director General, BARTI, Govt. of Maharashtra, Bridg. R.K. Singh, Security Advisor, LWE Division, Ministry of Home Affairs, GOI, Shri. Arunendera Pratap, DIGP, CRPF, , Shri. Annasaheb Bodade, Dy. Commissioner, PCMC, Pune, Dr. M. K. Sinha, Chief Medical Officer, C.R.P.F., and Col. Bhist of AFEXO, Pune, were present.



Chief Guest Shri. Rajesh Dabare, I.R.S, Director General, BARTI, Govt. of Maharashtra spoke on tribal community, namely their capacity for hard work, closeness to nature, ability to bear hardships, living in adverse situations, etc make them possessors of life skills. He emphasized on

rapid educational development to bring tribals into the mainstream of the population.

Brig. R.K. Singh, Security Advisor, LWE Division, Ministry of Home Affairs, GOI addressed the participants. In his address, he focused on Education with Vocational Skills for the Tribal Youth. He appealed to the youth to take advantage of various schemes of Govt. of India being run for Tribals. The participants were also given opportunity to share their experiences during the camp. A total of 211 tribal youth including escorts participated in the programme.

#### Hyderabad (23rd to 29th January 2017)



The 9th Tribal Youth Exchange Programme was organised from 23-01-2017 to 29-01-2017 at Institute of Cooperative Management, Rajendranagar, Hyderabad with the participation of 222 tribal youth including escort officers from Chhattisgarh and Jharkhand states. Participants were drawn from LWE affected 7 Districts of Chhattisgarh and 3 districts of Jharkhand states. On 22nd January 2017 Sri. P. Shekhar Rao, Hon'ble Vice Chairman, NYKS released brochure and conducted press meet and explained about 7 days programme of 9th TYEP to the press.



Sri. K. Swamy Goud, Hon'ble Vice Chairman, Legislative Council of Telangana inaugurated the camp on 23-01-2017. Sri. K. Vishweswar Reddy, Hon'ble MP, Loksabha, Chevella Constituency attended as Guest of Honour. Sri. S.D. Pandey, DIG, CRPF, Hyderabad Sri. R. Elangovan, Director, ICM were also present in the inaugural function.

From 24th to 26th January 2017, the guest lecturers were organised on different topics viz. Career Guidance, Career planning, Social Development and leadership among Tribals etc. Interactive session with youth organization, sessions on Health Awareness, Sanitation, Role of Youth and Nation building etc were also undertaken.



On 27th Jan 2017 participants visited CRPF camp and also visited Suryalaxmi Cotton Industries at Maheshwaram Mandal followed by cultural programme. The participants were taken to Charminar, Salarjung Museum, Lumbini Park etc around Hyderabad City.

On 29th Jan 2017 Valedictory programme was conducted and the Chief Gust of the function was Sri. A. Chandulal, Hon'ble Minister for Tribal Welfare, Govt. of Telangana, Hyderabad. Sri. P. Vaidyanatha Rao, MD, SETWIN, Govt. of Telangana, Sri. R. Elangovan, Director, ICM, and Sri. Rishi Pal Singh, State Director, NYKS, AP & TS

were present during the Valedictory Function. Certificates were distributed by the Chief Guest in the presence of other dignitaries on the dais.

#### Chennai (24th to 30th January 2017)

The 9th Tribal Youth Exchange Programme was conducted at Vettri Krishnan Mahal, Chennai from 24.01.2017 to 30.01.2017. The tribal youth participants were drawn from 10 districts of Jharkhand, One district of Odisha and One district from Andhra Pradesh State. Shri K. Pandia Rajan, Hon'ble Minister of School Education, Archaeology, Sports and Youth Welfare, Govt. of Tamil Nadu inaugurated the 9th Tribal Youth Exchange Programme at Chennai, Tamil Nadu.

The participants took part in interaction sessions on issues of Tribal Development and about the ongoing Tribal Development Schemes of the Central and State Governments. They visited RGNIYD, Sriperumpudur on 27.01.2017 and attended Life Skill Education interaction sessions, group discussion with students of RGNIYD. The tribal youth visited the historical important places in and around Chennai on 29.01.2017. They visited CRPF Campus at Avadi, Chennai and attended the seminar on Recruitment Process of CRPF. Demonstration on Physical Fitness Test and cultural programme were conducted on 28.01.2017.

The valedictory function was held on 30.01.2017. Shri. Shekar Rao Perala, Vice Chairman, NYKS, Delhi and Shri. K. Muthukumar, Addl. Director General (SR), Press Information Bureau, Chennai were the Chief Guest and Guest of Honour respectively in the valedictory function. A total of 221 tribal youth including escorts participated in the programme.



#### Bangalore (4th to 10th February 2017)

In Bangalore, Karnataka, 9th Tribal Youth Exchange Programme was inaugurated by Shri T Venkataramanaiah, Hon'ble MLA, Doddabalapur, Bangalore, Shri V Prasad, Zilla Panchayat, Bangalore Rural, Shri M.K. Jagdish, Assistant Commissioner, Bangalore Rural, Shri K K Jha, Deputy Secretary (LWE), Ministry of Home Affairs, Govt. of India graced the occasion.



The subject expert Prof. Gundappa, Bangalore University, Post Graduate Centre gave lecture on Indian Constitution- Special Provisions for Tribal Community.

Dr James, Faculty for First Aids Training, St. John Ambulance Association, Bangalore conducted session on First Aid Training.

Mrs. Ramakka, Researcher addressed the participants on Career Guidance, Personality Development – Knowing about self. Mrs Anjum Agarwal, Hindi Pradhyapak, Cental Hindi Training Institute, Bangalore gave lecture on 'Need for Educating and Empowering Tribal Girls.



The programme included interaction with VIPs, session on Indian Constitution – special provisions for Tribal Community, First Aid Training, Career Guidance – Personality Development – Knowing about self, 'Need for Educating and Empowering Tribal Girls'.

The group discussions and cultural programmes were the part of programme during entire period. The participants were taken to IT Park – Wipro, Infosys, Velankani Group & HP and Lal Bagh Botanical Garden where they got very useful information.

During the field visit, the participants got opportunity to visit CRPF Group Centre and also had interface with officials of CRPF. Film Show on CRPF. Interaction/Demonstration on Eligibility – Selection Process to CRPF – Fitness Test. The participants got exposure visit to Vidhana Soudha, Jawaharlal Nehru Planetarium, Visveswaraiah Industrial Museum, ISKCON, Mysore Soap and Detergent Limited.







Sessions were held on sharing of experiences, evaluation and feedback of the participants about the programme followed by Valediction function.

A total of 230 participants including escorts



participated in the Tribal Youth Exchange Programme at Bangalore (Karnataka).

#### Delhi (22nd to 28th February, 2017)

9th Tribal Youth Exchange Programme was inaugurated on 23rd Feb 2017 at Gandhi Smriti & Darshan Samiti, Rajghat, New Delhi.

Sh. Vijay Goel, Hon'ble Minister of State (Independent Charge), Youth Affairs and Sports, Govt. of India, inaugurated the programme on 23rd Feb 2017. Dr. A.K. Dubey, Secretary, Department of Youth Affairs, Ministry of Youth Affairs and Sports, Shri Dinesh Pratap Singh, Vice Chairman, NYKS, Maj. Gen. (Retd.) Dilawar Singh,





Director General, NYKS, Shri Veerendra Mishra, Executive Director NYKS graced the occasion.

Lecture Sessions on Personality Development, Cashless Transaction, Indian Constitutions, Yoga and Fitness programme were organised followed by cultural presentation in the camp.

The Participants got opportunity to visit CRPF Camp, Old JNU Campus, New Delhi, in which the senior officers of CRPF interacted with the Tribal Youth Participants and share their experiences.

They also got opportunity to see the live demonstration of various training process and exercises of CRPF. The participants were also taken to Vasant Kunj, Shaurya Institute of CRPF where they were briefed about the establishment, Velour of CRPF and also shown documentary film on CRPF activities.

The participants were taken to India Gate, Gandhi Smriti, Raj Ghat and other important places in an around Delhi. The participants also got opportunity to enjoy the ride on metro train from Mandi House to Indraprastha station.

Shri Vinay Sahasrabuddhe, Hon'ble Member of Parliament was the chief guest in the valedictory function of 9th Tribal Youth Exchange Programme in Delhi.

A total of 227 participants including escorts participated in the Tribal Youth Exchange Programme at Delhi.

#### Jammu (19th to 25th Feb 2017)

09th Tribal Youth Exchange Programme was inaugurated on 19th Feb 2017 at Saraswati Dham, Shri Mata Vaishno Devi Shrine Board, Jammu, Jammu and Kashmir.



Dr. Jitendra Singh, Hon'ble Minister of State (Independent Charge), Ministry of Development of North Eastern Region and Union Minister of State (Independent Charge) Science and Technology, Earth Sciences, Minister of State in the Prime Minister's Office, Minister of State of Personnel Public Grievances and Pensions, Atomic Energy and Space inaugurated the programme on 18th Feb 2017.

Shri Jugal Kishore Sharma, Hon'ble Member of Parliament Lok Sabha, Shri Shamsher Singh Manhas, Hon'ble Member of Parliament Rajya Sabha, Sh. Rajesh Gupta, Hon'ble Member Legislative Assembly and Secretary, Youth Affairs and Sports graced the occasion.

Shri Binay Jha, IRS, Chief Commissioner Income Tax, Punjab and J&K, Shri Hemant Gupta, IRS, Joint Commissioner, Income Tax, J&K, Dr. Gaurav Sehgal, HOD Department of Marketing & SCN, Central University Jammu, Shri Ravi Kumar, JK Women Development Corporation, Jammu, Dr. Vinod Kumar, JKEDI, Shri T.K. Koul, Industrial Promotion Officer, DIC Jammu, Shri Santosh Saraf, Deputy CEO, KVIB, Jammu were also present during the programme.





The participants also interacted with Shri N N Vohra, Hon'ble Governor of Jammu and Kashmir at the Raj Bhawan.

The programme included interaction with VIPs, sessions on Indian Constitution, Opportunities and problems of tribal communities, Discipline and Self development, Youth Empowerment and Nation Building, Self Employment and programmes on financial and social inclusion and Career Guidance. Cultural Programmes were presented on all days by participants.

The participants got opportunity to visit Priya Gold Manufacturing Plant at Bari Brahma with Mr. Rajesh Jain, President Federation of Industry. They also visited Treat Cold Drink Juice Manufacturing Plant, Bari Brahmna with Shri Ajay Pargal, Industrialist.

The participants also got the opportunity for exposure visit to Suchetgarh Octroi Post (Indo-Pak Border Zero Line) with Shri Bhushan Lal Dogra, Vice Chairman, State Advisory Board of Welfare of Development of SC. The participants availed the opportunity to visit Mata Vaishno Devi Shrine at Katra.

In the valediction function, Shri Simrandeep Singh, IAS, Deputy Commissioner, Jammu was the Chief Guest. A total of 225 participants including

escorts participated in the programme.

#### Shimla (6th to 12th March 2017)

Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan organized Tribal Youth Exchange Programme at Shimla, Himachal Pradesh at Sood Dharamshala, Ram Mandir, Shimla, Himachal Pradesh from 6th March to 12th March 2017.



In Shimla, Himachal Pradesh, 9th Tribal Youth Exchange Programme was inaugurated on 6th March 2017 by Shri Tarun Kapoor, Additional Chief Secretary, Govt. of Himachal Pradesh. Shri Rakesh Prajapati, Additional Deputy Commission, Shimla was the Guest of Honor.

The subject expert Ms. Vibhuti Dubey, Corporate Motivator, Shri Shrinivas Joshi, Retd. IAS, Shri Ajay Kashyap, Sr. Manager, Bank of India, Dr. Pramod Sharma, Prof., Department of Management Studies, Himachal Pradesh University, Dr. Praveen Bhatia, Prof. Department of Neuro Surgery, IGMC Shimla delivered lectures on various issues of Social importance, Voices of Young People,



Concept of Leadership, Personality Development, Life Skills, Skill India, India's Freedom Movement, Health, Digital India, Swachh Bharat, Community Development, Tribal Youth Empowerment etc.

The programme included interaction with VIPs, sessions on Indian Constitution – special provisions for Tribal Community, Yoga, Sight Seeing, experience sharing, State Presentation, Group Discussion, First Aid Training, Career Guidance – Personality Development – Knowing about self, 'Need for Educating and Empowering Tribal Youth'.

Sessions were held for sharing of experiences, evaluation and feedback of the participants about the programme followed by Valediction function.

A total of 219 participants including escorts participated in the Tribal Youth Exchange Programme at Shimla (Himachal Pradesh).

In all the above mentioned venues, senior officers from Ministry of Home Affairs, Govt. of India, district Administration and eminent persons graced the programme.

#### **Details of Participants and Escorts of 9th Tribal Youth Exchange**

| S.<br>No. | Name of Host<br>State/Venue      | Dates<br>finalised             | Place/Venue   | No. of<br>Participants | No. of<br>Escort | Total |
|-----------|----------------------------------|--------------------------------|---|------------------------|------------------|-------|
| 1         | Vadodara<br>(Gujarat)            | 9th Dec to<br>15th Dec<br>2016 | Dada Bhagwan Sat Sthanak<br>At.Kelanpur, Dabhoi Road,<br>Ta & Distt : Vadodara, Gujarat                                 | 200                    | 21               | 221   |
| 2         | Jaipur<br>(Rajasthan)            | 21st to 27th<br>Dec 2016       | Gyan Vihar University Campus, 199<br>Jagatpura, Jaipur, Rajasthan   |                        | 19               | 218   |
| 3         | Lucknow (Uttar<br>Pradesh)       | 2nd Jan to 8th<br>Jan 2017     | Institute of Management<br>Research and Technology,<br>Vipul Khand - VI, Gomti Nagar,<br>Lucknow, UP                    | 186                    | 21               | 207   |
| 4         | Pune<br>(Maharashtra)            | 4th Jan to<br>10th Jan 2017    | Main Auditorium, CRPF Group<br>Centre, Talegaon, Old Mumbai,<br>Pune Highway, Ta.Maval, District<br>– Pune, Maharashtra | 191                    | 20               | 211   |
| 5         | Hyderabad<br>(Andhra<br>Pradesh) | 23rd Jan -29th<br>Jan 2017     | Institute of Cooperative<br>Management (ICM),<br>Rajendranagar, Hyderabad,<br>Andhra Pradesh                            | 202                    | 20               | 222   |
| 6         | Chennai<br>(Tamilnadu)           | 24th Jan to<br>30th Jan 2017   | Vetri Krishnan Kalyana<br>Mantapam, Youth Hostel, Adyar,<br>Chennai, Tamil Nadu   | 200                    | 21               | 221   |



| S.<br>No. | Name of Host<br>State/Venue | Dates<br>finalised              | Place/Venue   | No. of<br>Participants | No. of<br>Escort | Total |
|-----------|-----------------------------|---------------------------------|---|------------------------|------------------|-------|
| 7         | Bengaluru<br>(Karnataka)    | 4th Feb to<br>10th Feb,<br>2017 | Dr Annie Besant Scouts and<br>Guides State Training and<br>Camping Centre, Doddaballapur,<br>Bangalore, Karnataka | 206                    | 24               | 230   |
| 8         | Jammu(J&K)                  | 19th Feb to<br>25th Feb 2017    | Saraswati Dham, Shri Mata<br>Vaishno Devi Shrine Board,<br>Jammu, Jammu & Kashmir                                 | 203                    | 22               | 225   |
| 9.        | Delhi ( Delhi)              | 22nd Feb to<br>28th Feb 2017    | Gandhi Smriti & Darshan Samiti,<br>Rajghat, New Delhi   | 210                    | 17               | 227   |
| 10.       | Shimla (H.P.)               | 6th to 12th<br>March 2017       | Sood Dharamshala, Ram Mandir,<br>Shimla, Himachal Pradesh   | 198                    | 21               | 219   |
|           |                             | Total                           |   | 1995                   | 206              | 2201  |

# Nationwide Declamation Contest on Patriotism and Nation Building on the occasion of Republic Day Celebration, 2017

As per the approval of Ministry of Youth Affairs and Sports and Ministry of Defence, Govt. of India, Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan organized Declamation Contest on the subject of Patriotism and Nation Building as part of Republic Day Celebrations 2017.



The National level Declamation Contest on Patriotism and Nation Building on the occasion of Republic Day Celebration, 2017 was organised by Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan under the guidance of Ministry of Youth Affairs and Sports and Ministry of Defence, Govt. of India at Hindi Bhawan, Rouse Avenue, New Delhi on 19th -20th January, 2017.

The Declamation contest aimed at inculcating spirit of Nationalism and Patriotic feeling amongst youth and identifying youth with leadership qualities for participation in nation building activities. Prizes and certificates were awarded to the winners at District, State and National level.

A total of 25 State level 1st Prize Winners from 25 States participated in National Declamation Contest at Delhi.

The National level Declamation Contest was inaugurated by Shri Vijay Goel, Hon'ble Minister of Youth Affairs and Sports (Independent Charge),



Govt. of India by lighting the lamp. During the inaugural programme Dr. A.K. Dubey, Secretary, Department of Youth Affairs, Ministry of Youth Affairs and Sports, Govt. of India, Shri Dinesh Pratap Singh, Vice Chairperson, BOG, Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan, Maj. Gen. (Retd.) Dilawar Singh, Director General, Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan and Dr. Veerendra Mishra, Executive Director, Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan were present.

Shri Vijay Goel, Hon'ble Minister of State (Independent Charge), Ministry of Youth Affairs and Sports, Govt. of India, while inaugurating the National level Declamation Contest considered the people working for the welfare of the society and their fellow countrymen as patriots. He further encouraged the Youth to actively participate in the flagship programmes of Govt. of India launched by Hon'ble Prime Minister like Beti Bachao Beti Padhao, Swachh Bharat Mission, Cashless Transaction, Digital India, PM Skill Development Programme, Smart City, PM Jan Dhan Yojana, Start up India, Stand up India etc.

Dr. A.K. Dubey, Secretary, Department of Youth Affairs, Ministry of Youth Affairs and Sports, Govt. of India, in his speech during the occasion called upon the youth that whatever you do, you do with confidence and with the best of your abilities and perfection that will contribute towards Patriotism and Nation Building. He further said that, the youth should never give up and always keep progressing in their endeavours.

Maj Gen. (Retd.) Dilawar Singh, Director General, Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan in his welcome address during the inaugural programme stressed upon the importance of discipline, self confidence and leadership quality amongst youth which help in inculcation of Patriotism and Nation building.

He found the Declamation Contest as one of the most popular programmes of NYKS in which youth participate in large numbers voluntarily.

Dr. Veerendra Mishra, Executive Director, Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan proposed the vote of thanks and stressed the need of developing self confidence and hardworking for participation in Nation building activities.

At the National level, the contestants gave their best in the 10 minutes presentation before the august gathering and was appreciated by all present. The participants gave their presentation on Patriotism and Nation Building by assimilating the current National development issues and scenario like Youth Participation and awareness development in National flagship programmes initiated by Hon'ble Prime Minister of India like Beti Bachao Beti Padhao, Swachh Bharat Mission, Cashless Transaction, Digital India, PM Skill Development Programme, Smart City, PM Jan Dhan Yojana, Start up India, Stand up India etc. along with sharing the feeling of fellowship and essence of Patriotism and Nation Building. The life and works of Swami Vivekananda, Mahatama Gandhi, Sardar Patel, Netaji Subhash Chandra Bose and freedom fighters were quoted by the contestants in their presentation.

Mr. Ravi Gupta, Motivator talked in detail about Digital India Campaign and Cashless Transaction during the programme which helped the participants to understand about the digital and cashless transaction.

About 250 youth from NYKs, NSS and Bhartiya Vidhya Peeth participated in the function on 19th – 20th January, 2017.



The panel of eight judges evaluated the performances of the contestants and declared Ms. Seerat Baji from Jammu and Kashmir State as the first prize winner with cash award of Rs. 2,00,000/- followed by second prize winner Mr. Pratik Kumar Sharma from Chhattisgarh with cash award of Rs. 1,00,000/- and third Prize Winner Mr. Dhruv Sharma from Rajasthan with cash award of Rs. 50,000/-. Certificates were awarded to all contestants.

The prizes and certificates were presented by Shri Dinesh Pratap Singh, Vice Chairperson, BOG, Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan to the winners and participants on 20th January 2017 at Hindi Bhawan, Rouse Avenue, New Delhi.

Shri Dinesh Pratap Singh in his presidential address during the prize distribution ceremony of the National Declamation Contest programme stressed the need of hard work, sincerity, inculcating habit of respecting women, patriotism and contributing towards nation building.

Before the prize distribution ceremony, the learned panel of Judges of National Declamation Contest shared their thoughts and experiences on Patriotism and Nation building in the perspective of Youth Participation in Nation Development.

#### Felicitation of National Declamation Contest Prize Winners by Ministry of Defence, Govt. of India

The 1st, 2nd and 3rd Prize winners of National Declamation Contest were felicitated by Ministry of Defence, Govt. of India and got an opportunity to interact with Shri Subhash Bhamre Hon'ble Minister of State, Ministry of Defence, Govt. of India on 28th January 2017 at Rashtriya Rangshala Camp, Delhi Cantonment, New Delhi.

#### Conclusion:-

The Declamation Contest has been found very effective in accelerating the process of stirring the young minds for working towards developing Patriotism and Nation Building amongst general masses and also for facilitating awareness on National Flagship programmes for Nation Development. Declamation contests provided youth an opportunity to exhibit their presentation skills and art of speaking in public on one hand and created the desired environment among the entire youth community on the other by sparking healthy positive conversation among youth in India. It also activated Social Media, yielding potential Youth Leaders for awareness creation, popularization and facilitating implementation of National Flagship Programs of Government of India by igniting spirit of Nationalism. It also facilitated them the contestant to develop and refine their leadership qualities. It created very positive environment and opened vistas for healthy debate on Patriotism and Nation building thus inculcating the spirit of Patriotism and Nationalism amongst the youth.





### Participation Details of Declamation Contests on Patriotism and Nation Building as part of Republic Day Celebration, 2017

| SI. | States            | District level Contest State level Contest                  |  | National<br>Declamation           |  |                                     |
|-----|-------------------|---|--|-----------------------------------|--|-------------------------------------|
| NO. |                   | Number of Districts in which Declamation contests were held | Number of participants at District level contest | Date of<br>State level<br>contest | Number of<br>participants<br>at State level<br>contest | Contest<br>(No. of<br>Participants) |
| 1   | Andhra Pradesh    | 3   | 132  | 02.01.2017                        | 3  | 1                                   |
| 2   | Assam             | 9   | 170  | 23.12.2016                        | 8  | 1                                   |
| 3   | Bihar             | 11  | 278  | 03.01.2017                        | 11   | 1                                   |
| 4   | Chhattisgarh      | 5   | 84   | 07.01.2017                        | 5  | 1                                   |
| 5   | Delhi             | 9   | 178  | 03.01.2016                        | 9  | 1                                   |
| 6   | Gujarat           | 2   | 40   | 05.01.2017                        | 2  | 1                                   |
| 7   | Haryana           | 5   | 220  | 11.01.2017                        | 5  | 1                                   |
| 8   | Himachal Pradesh  | 4   | 86   | 29.12.2016                        | 4  | 1                                   |
| 9   | Jammu and Kashmir | 5   | 265  | 23.12.2016                        | 5  | 1                                   |
| 10  | Jharkhand         | 6   | 156  | 05.01.2017                        | 6  | 1                                   |
| 11  | Karnataka         | 5   | 81   | 05.01.2016                        | 5  | 1                                   |
| 12  | Kerala            | 5   | 62   | 26.12.2016                        | 5  | 1                                   |
| 13  | Madhya Pradesh    | 17  | 375  | 07.01.2017                        | 17   | 1                                   |
| 14  | Maharashtra       | 10  | 183  | 05.01.2017                        | 10   | 1                                   |
| 15  | Manipur           | 7   | 91   | 07.01.2016                        | 6  | 1                                   |
| 16  | Meghalaya         | 2   | 20   | 30.12.2016                        | 2  | 1                                   |
| 17  | Nagaland          | 1   | 10   | 14.12.2016                        | 1  | 0                                   |
| 18  | Odisha            | 5   | 61   | 22.12.2016                        | 5  | 1                                   |
| 19  | Punjab            | 7   | 175  | 23.12.2016                        | 6  | 1                                   |
| 20  | Rajasthan         | 8   | 225  | 25.12.2016                        | 8  | 1                                   |
| 21  | Sikkim            | 1   | 21   | 27.12.2016                        | 1  | 1                                   |
| 22  | Tamil Nadu        | 14  | 302  | 28.12.2016                        | 11   | 1                                   |
| 23  | Telangana         | 2   | 61   | 30.12.2016                        | 2  | 1                                   |
| 24  | Tripura           | 3   | 38   | 24.12.2016                        | 3  | 1                                   |
| 25  | Uttar Pradesh     | 14  | 345  | 05.01.2017                        | 11   | 1                                   |
| 26  | West Bengal       | 14  | 339  | 06.01.2017                        | 14   | 1                                   |
|     | Total             | 174   | 3,998  | 26                                | 165  | 25                                  |



### List of 1st Prize winners from State level Declamation Contest for participating in National Level Declamation Contest at New Delhi on 19th and 20th January 2017

| SI.<br>No. | State             | Name of Participant              | Father's Name                   | District      |
|------------|-------------------|----------------------------------|---------------------------------|---------------|
| 1          | Andhra Pradesh    | Mr. B. Bharath                   | Bisati Adinarayana              | Anantapuram   |
| 2          | Assam             | Lovleena Saharia                 | Shri Kulen Saharia              | Darrang       |
| 3          | Bihar             | Shri Shivendra Kumar<br>Malviya  | Shri Jainendra Kumar<br>Malviya | Gaya          |
| 4          | Chhattisgarh      | Pratik Kumar Sharma              | Sushil Sharma                   | Durg          |
| 5          | Delhi             | Shahnawaz                        | Manabbar Ali                    | East Delhi    |
| 6          | Gujarat           | Patel Anjali P                   | Pankaj Bhai                     | Gandhinagar   |
| 7          | Haryana           | Priya Sharma                     | Sham Sunder Sharma              | Ambala        |
| 8          | Himachal Pradesh  | Shiva Devi                       | Hira Lal                        | Kullu         |
| 9          | Jammu and Kashmir | Seerat Baji                      | Mushtaq Hussain                 | Jammu         |
| 10         | Jharkhand         | Shri Raja Ram Mishra             | Subodh Mishra                   | Giridih       |
| 11         | Karnataka         | Aditya Shetty Janana             | Mr. Janana Vasanth Shetty       | Mangalore     |
| 12         | Kerala            | Devika Krishnan                  | Mr. Radhakrishnan P             | Thrissur      |
| 13         | Madhya Pradesh    | Shubham Sharma                   | Madan Mohan Sharma              | Gwalior       |
| 14         | Maharashtra       | Sh. Subodh Premdas<br>Dhurandhar | Premdas                         | Amravati      |
| 15         | Manipur           | C. Thangminlal Doungel           | Paokhosei Doungel               | Churachandpur |
| 16         | Meghalaya         | Wanborlang Malngiang             | Shri Waltingroy Siangshai       | Ri-Bhoi       |
| 17         | Nagaland          |                                  |                                 |               |
| 18         | Odisha            | Rakesh Das                       | Ramakanta Das                   | Kendrapara    |
| 19         | Punjab            | Ms. Kajal Mahajan                | Ajay Mahajan                    | Gurdaspur     |
| 20         | Rajasthan         | Dhruv Sharma                     | Mr. Sitaram Sharma              | Udiapur       |
| 21         | Sikkim            | Yashal Dorjee Tamang             | Chandra Bir Tamang              | South Sikkim  |
| 22         | Tamil Nadu        | Pradeep Kumar. S                 | Senthil Kumar. V                | Salem         |
| 23         | Telanagana        | Smt. N. Anusha                   | Laxman Rao                      | Warangal      |
| 24         | Tripura           | Shri Jagat Moni Jamatia          | Paramoni Jamatia                | West Tripura  |
| 25         | Uttar Pradesh     | Smriti Suman Jha                 | Shankar Kr. Jha                 | Varanasi      |
| 26         | West Bengal       | Debadrita Samajdar               | Saumen Samajdar                 | South Kolkata |



### AWARENESS AND EDUCATION ON MY MOBILE, MY BANK, MY WALLET



The Government has recently started the demonetization measures to check the black money, corruption, control over terrorism and naxalism and fill up the gap of disparity between poor and rich people and to accelerate the economic growth of the country and to popularize transactions without cash and training to adopt this in their day today life.

Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan has organised various activities for promotion of Cashless Transaction viz.

 Training of key NYKS youth functionaries on use of Mobile for transactions without cash.

- Mobilizing and motivating people to adopt transaction without cash by means of mobile.
- Educating and developing people's capacity to start transaction through online and mobile banking.

During the month of March, 2017, 93,62,051 persons were made aware and trained on Cashless Transaction by Youth Leaders of NYKs in 512 districts across the country.



#### Compiled Report on My Mobile... My Bank..... My Wallet as on 31/03/2017

| S.No | State                          | No. of<br>Districts<br>organised<br>programme | No. of<br>NYVs<br>Oriented/<br>Trained<br>( I ) | No. of Villages<br>reached by<br>NYVs to<br>orient Youth<br>Leaders | No. of Youth<br>Leaders<br>oriented /<br>trained by<br>NYVs (II) | No. of Persons<br>Trained by<br>Youth Leaders in<br>their respective<br>villages ( III ) |
|------|--------------------------------|---|---|---|--|--|
|      |                                |   | Target<br>Achieved                              | Target<br>Achieved  | Target<br>Achieved   | Target Achieved  |
| 1    | Andhra Pradesh                 | 14  | 332   | 5332  | 63714  | 859396   |
| 2    | Arunachal Pradesh              | 3   | 43  | 67  | 270  | 420  |
| 3    | ASSAM                          | 21  | 374   | 4710  | 28120  | 472650   |
| 4    | BIHAR                          | 38  | 838   | 9992  | 49689  | 105762   |
| 5    | Chhattisgarh                   | 16  | 226   | 452   | 904  | 1808   |
| 6    | DELHI                          | 9   | 44  | 309   | 2642   | 4763   |
| 7    | GUJARAT                        | 31  | 160   | 310   | 8600   | 204530   |
| 8    | HARYANA                        | 19  | 189   | 3374  | 44465  | 189761   |
| 9    | HIMACHAL PRADESH               | 12  | 155   | 1041  | 10458  | 24022  |
| 10   | JAMMU & KASHMIR                | 14  | 327   | 5029  | 20873  | 66459  |
| 11   | JHARKHAND                      | 8   | 127   | 82  | 895  | 1270   |
| 12   | KARNATAKA                      | 20  | 187   | 1681  | 3004   | 12136  |
| 13   | KERALA                         | 16  | 210   | 3998  | 26115  | 20250  |
| 14   | MADHYA PRADESH                 | 48  | 639   | 4434  | 24974  | 141185   |
| 15   | MAHARASHTRA                    | 36  | 530   | 5465  | 48109  | 257255   |
| 16   | MANIPUR                        | 10  | 106   | 172   | 4912   | 11675  |
| 17   | MEGHALAYA                      | 1   | 15  | 10  | 40   | 40   |
| 18   | MIZORAM                        | 8   | 56  | 784   | 674  | 29873  |
| 19   | NAGALAND                       | 3   | 14  | 16  | 105  | 105  |
| 20   | ODISHA                         | 13  | 255   | 262   | 4830   | 36810  |
| 21   | PUNJAB                         | 21  | 230   | 3200  | 2300   | 49070  |
| 22   | RAJASTHAN                      | 32  | 543   | 24378   | 138189   | 337800   |
| 23   | SIKKIM                         | 4   | 57  | 195   | 3900   | 5850   |
| 24   | TAMIL NADU                     | 25  | 214   | 23617   | 3000   | 40555  |
| 25   | TELANGANA                      | 10  | 150   | 5320  | 21997  | 243709   |
| 26   | Tripura                        | 4   | 0   | 990   | 1320   | 32110  |
| 27   | UTTAR PRADESH                  | 41  | 718   | 8986  | 114065   | 1928897  |
| 28   | UTTRAKHAND                     | 11  | 125   | 2316  | 6418   | 13190  |
| 29   | WEST BENGAL                    | 24  | 722   | 9073  | 105513   | 3523019  |
|      | Total                          | 512   | 7586  | 125595  | 740095   | 8614370  |
|      | Grand Total (I+II+III) 9362051 |   |   |   |  |  |



#### ADOLESCENT HEALTH AND DEVELOPMENT PROJECT (AHDP)

The Programme was organised with the funding from UNFPA. The objective of the Project has been to empower out-of-school adolescents with (i) life skills focused experiential learning on reproductive and sexual health issues in a gendersensitive manner, (ii) linkages with education and skills building institutions for better employability; and (iii) improved access to youth friendly and gender-sensitive services in public and private sectors.

The Project was implemented in 10 identified Districts of 5 States (Maharashtra, Rajasthan, Madhya Pradesh, Odisha and Bihar) on pilot basis. Adolescents were organised in Teen Clubs and the extension work was done through trained Peer Educators. During 2016- 17 (upto 30.06.2016), 1,860 Teen Clubs were re-organized. 7,440 Peer Educators were selected and imparted necessary training.

3rd phase of Peer Educators Training was completed for 7440 peer Educators. Health Melas were organised in 193 Teen Clubs with participation of 13190 adolescents. Meeting 13 (Prayas Apna Teesra Charan) was conducted in 40 Teen Clubs with participation of 1222 adolescents. Meeting 14 (Sakaratmak Rishtho ka Sapna (Ling Bhed Bhav)) was conducted in 91 Teen Clubs with participation of 2159 adolescents. Meeting 15 (Swasthya aur Sakaratmak Rishtho ka Sapna (Takrav Suljhana) was conducted in 477 Teen Clubs with participation of 9460 adolescents. Meeting 16 was conducted in 694 Teen Clubs with participation of 14652 adolescents. Meeting 17 was conducted in 1200 Teen Clubs with participation of 40300 adolescents. Meeting 18 was conducted in 1671 Teen Clubs with

participation of 40300 adolescents. Social Action Projects was completed in 1410 Teen Clubs with the participation of 39525 adolescents. The culmination were completed in 1860 teen clubs with the participation of 65147 adolescents.

The Adolescent Health and Development Programme was finally completed on 30th June 2016.

### Exhibition organized during Pravasi Bharatiya Diwas (PBD) at Bangalore

Pravasi Bharatiya Diwas was celebrated by Ministry of External Affairs on 7, 8 and 9th of January 2017 at Bangalore. Venue of the programme was Bangalore International Exhibition Centre (BIEC).

As instructed by MYAS, GOI, NYKS Karnataka organized an Exhibition on PBD. There were two huge halls full of Exhibition arranged by all the leading Govt. and Commercial establishments of the country, in BIEC as part of PBD. MYAS was allotted 1000 sq.ft area for Exhibition in Hall No 2 of the PBD. There were two components of the Exhibition —



Yuvakriti Exhibition – There were 7 stalls of 9'X9' size in which products of selected youth clubs were exhibited. They were from the States of Assam,



Tamilnadu, Puducherry, Kerala and Karnataka. Wooden Handicrafts on roots of Coffee tree from Kerala, Assam Silk products, Leather crafts from Puducherry, Artifact from Tamilnadu attracted the visitors. Karnataka had 3 stalls - Black metal Handicrafts from Bidar, Paintings of a National Youth Awardee from Hassan, Wooden Toys and Jute Bags from Bangalore added to the attraction of the Exhibition.



**Exhibition on MYAS, NYKS, RGNIYD & NSS** 

In a hall of 400 sq.ft area adjacent to the Yuvakriti, Exhibition of the success stories of the agencies of the MYAS was arranged for the NRIs visiting the Exhibition. Panels on NYKS, RGNIYD and NSS were exhibited there. Printed materials on the agencies were also made available for the

visitors. All the major activities of NYKS, NSS and RGNIYD were highlighted on the panels. Flagship programmes of the MYAS were also brought to lime light in the Exhibition.

#### **Visitors**

Galaxy of VVIPs visited the Exhibition stalls of PBD during the programme. Prime Minister of The Republic of Portugal, Vice President of The Republic of Suriname and Minister for Youth Welfare from Malaysia were among the foreign dignitaries to visit the stalls. Chief Ministers of Maharashtra, Kerala, Chhattisgarh and Pondicherry visited the stalls along with the Chief Minister of Karnataka. Minister of State (Independent Charge) for Youth Affairs and Sports, GOI visited and interacted with the youth. Secretary, Joint Secretary, Director of Ministry of Youth Affairs and Sports were present throughout the programme.

Director General and Executive Director of NYKS were present to support and guide in the organization of the programme.

The products of the youths of NYK and the Exhibition on success stories of the agencies under MYAS did catch the attention of everyone who visited the Exhibition in PBD.





#### **CASHLESS TRAINING PROJECT-DELHI 2016-17**

Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan, Delhi State organised various activities in 10 districts of Delhi for promoting Awareness, Education and Training on Cashless Transaction.

50 Volunteers were deputed in 10 districts of Delhi ( North, North East, East, Central, South ,South East, Central, South West, West and North West ) from merit list approved and provided by NYKS HQ .

Deployed volunteers were given orientation on their roles and responsibilities for providing training to target groups on Cashless Transaction. They were given individual targets. Sh. Dinesh Pratap Singh, Vice Chairperson, NYKS and Dr. Veerendra Mishra, Executive Director addressed the Volunteers. The volunteers were provided T-Shirts, Cap, I Cards and resource kit.



Daily reporting system was developed and maintained. NYVs /ACTs were given responsibility to collect district wise reports from volunteers. The volunteers collected reports on given proforma, reports were compiled at State level.

A total of 37079 persons were trained on Cashless Transaction by Youth Volunteers of NYKs in 10 districts of Delhi.





#### PROGRAMMES ORGANISED WITH FUNDING FROM NPYAD

During 2016-17, NYKS organised the following programmes with funding from National and Adolescent Programme for Youth Development (NPYAD) of the Department of Youth Affairs:

#### 1. National Integration Camps (NICs)

The objectives of the Programme were to promote national integration by bringing together youth from different parts of the country on common platform, giving them opportunity to understand cultural heritage of the country and enabling them to recognize threads of unity in diversity which bind all Indians together. In this programme, 250 participants were provided opportunity to take part. During 2016-17, 22 NICs, involving 5637 youth were organised upto 31.3.2017.



The set objectives of the NICs were through a host of activities viz. cultural programmes, work camps, visit to historical places, family placements, all religions discourses and interactions with messages of communal harmony, oneness and brotherhood. Besides these, key issues such as Youth Concern, Democracy, Environment protection, Human rights, Constitutional rights and duties, and Development were identified for presentation, discussion and sharing during each of the NICs and were harmoniously integrated in the activities.

#### The Highlights of National Integration Camp

The **National Integration Camps** focused on:

- Understanding India, Silent features of Indian Freedom Movement, Historical prospective and the contemporary challenges.
- Understanding Indian Democracy, Silent features of constitution of India and the duties and responsibilities of citizens.
- Costume parade (Cultural Rally/Padyatra) programme.
- Disseminating the message of Sadbhavana, Peace, Development and Solidarity among the masses and for displaying the cultural variety, uniqueness and integrity of the country.
- Emphasis was given to inform the participants about National Integration, Communal Harmony, Indian Constitutions, Democracy, Rights duties and Citizens, Freedom Struggle, Personality Development, Health Awareness Programme, Disaster preparedness & Management, Environment & Climate Global warming, Change, Language learning, Know India & Knit India etc.
- Field visits to Historical important places.



#### **National Integration Camp**

| SI. No. | State/UT                                      | 2016-17      |                      |  |
|---------|---|--------------|----------------------|--|
|         |   | No. of Prog. | No. of Beneficiaries |  |
| 1       | Andhra Pradesh                                | 1            | 250                  |  |
| 2       | Arunachal Pradesh                             | 0            | 0                    |  |
| 3       | Assam   | 1            | 255                  |  |
| 4       | Bihar   | 0            | 0                    |  |
| 5       | Chattisgarh                                   | 0            | 0                    |  |
| 6       | Delhi   | 1            | 300                  |  |
| 7       | Gujarat, Dadar Nagar & Haveli and Daman & Diu | 1            | 242                  |  |
| 8       | Haryana                                       | 0            | 0                    |  |
| 9       | Himachal Pradesh                              | 2            | 540                  |  |
| 10      | Jammu & Kashmir                               | 1            | 252                  |  |
| 11      | Jharkhand                                     |              |                      |  |
| 12      | Karnataka                                     | 1            | 250                  |  |
| 13      | Kerala, Lakshadweep & Mahe                    | 0            | 0                    |  |
| 14      | Madhya Pradesh                                | 1            | 242                  |  |
| 15      | Maharashtra & Goa                             | 2            | 537                  |  |
| 16      | Manipur                                       | 1            | 250                  |  |
| 17      | Meghalaya                                     | 0            | 0                    |  |
| 18      | Mizoram                                       | 0            | 0                    |  |
| 19      | Nagaland                                      | 0            | 0                    |  |
| 20      | Odisha  | 2            | 504                  |  |
| 21      | Punjab & Chandigarh                           | 1            | 250                  |  |
| 22      | Rajasthan                                     | 1            | 254                  |  |
| 23      | Sikkim  | 0            | 0                    |  |
| 24      | Tamilnadu & Pudducherry                       | 0            | 0                    |  |
| 25      | Telangana                                     | 0            | 0                    |  |
| 26      | Tripura                                       | 0            | 0                    |  |
| 27      | Uttar Pradesh                                 | 5            | 1251                 |  |
| 28      | Uttarakhand                                   | 1            | 260                  |  |
| 29      | West Bengal and Andaman & Nicobar Island      | 0            | 0                    |  |
|         | Total   | 22           | 5637                 |  |



### 2. Youth Leadership and Personality Development Programme (YLPDP)



The objective of the Programme has been to train the youth leaders and to equip them with necessary qualities to assume responsibility for the village and the youth clubs and to act as catalysts for socio-economic and political-cultural development of the villages. The Programme included to creates awareness on social, economic, cultural and political aspects of the rural communities. This was a 30 day residential programme, with 30 youth participating in each programme. During 2016-17, 6 programmes, involving 197 youth, were organised upto 31.3.2017.

### The Highlights of **Youth Leadership and Personality Development Programmes**

The Youth Leadership and Personality Development Programmes focused on:

- Development of Leadership Qualities among rural youth.
- Inculcation of Life Skill Education and core life skills.
- Awareness and capacity building of youth on Agro based and other Vocational skills.
- Self development and Personality Management.

 Entrepreneurship Development and tips on how to begin.

- Career Counselling and Career assessment.
- Stress Management Techniques.
- Team Management and Negotiation Skills.

### 3. Life Skill Training for Adolescents (Empowerment of Adolescents)

The objective of the Programmes has been to develop among adolescents the behaviour which empower them to make healthy choices, to strengthen their Life Skills to cope up with the risky situations that they encounter in their lives, to enhance knowledge to protect them from HIV, to manage adolescent reproductive sexual health issues and concerns and to mobilise their collective potential to solve their issues. During 2016-17, 5 programmes, involving 226 adolescents, were organised upto 31.3.2017.



The Highlights of Life Skill Training for Adolescents (Empowerment of Adolescents):

The Life Skill Training for Adolescents (Empowerment of Adolescents): focused on:

Identifying activities for life skill development.



 Inculcating essential life skills to develop healthyattitudesandresponsiblebehaviour towards Adolescent Reproductive and Sexual Health (ARSH) including HIV/AIDS and substance abuse and Social issues in out of school adolescents.

- Identifying harmful aspects of traditional gender roles (violence, domination, discrimination) and effective ways for working towards gender equity in relationships.
- Increasing life skills, such as assertiveness, and communications and negotiation skills on sexual and reproductive health issues between parents and children, teachers and students.
- Increasing decision-making skills, which include moral and situational analysis skills.

 Increasing young adults' ability to exercise leadership in programmes for their benefit, specifically learning to assess problems, design responses, organize and manage programmes, and evaluate them.

### 4. Adventure Camps (Promotion of Adventure)

The Programme aimed at encouraging spirit of adventure and risk-taking amongst youth, building capacity of the youth to tackle situations during national calamities & other emergencies and inculcating spirit of appreciation of nature with emphasis on ecology and conservation of natural resources. This is a 7-day residential camp for 25 participants in each batch. During 2016-17, 2 Adventure Camps, involving 50 youth, were organised upto 31.3.2017.

The Highlights of Adventure Camps (Promotion of Adventure):





### The **Adventure Camps (Promotion of Adventure)** focused on:

- Programmes and Activities facilitating Personality Development are organized.
- Self Discipline and Strict Daily Schedule are maintained.
- Activities such as all faith prayer, community singing, physical exercise and yoga are included in daily schedule.
- Group discussions, Talks, Panel Discussions, Symposia on the youth scenario, youth problems and prospects, national and international issues are organized.

• Team building, Risk taking and risk management are discussed at length.

- Activities that promote the spirit of unity and integration are also organized.
- On the eve of completion of the camp a long session is organized wherein the participants are facilitated to share their learning experiences and consolidate their learning outcome.
- A session on how the learning experience of participation in adventure can be useful in social and personal life are also organized.







#### **NATIONAL YOUTH CORPS**

The Ministry of Youth Affairs & Sports has introduced scheme called National Youth Corps during 2010-11, after modifying the earlier schemes of NSVs (1977-78) and RSY (2005).

Objectives of NYC scheme are ...

- To setup a group of disciplined and dedicated youth who have the inclination and spirit to engage in the task of nation building.
- To facilitate the realization of inclusive growth (both social and economic)
- To act as points for dissemination of information, basic knowledge in the community
- To act as group modulators and peer group educators
- To act as role models for the younger cohort especially towards enhancement of public ethics, probity and dignity of labour.

As per the provision of the scheme, a total of 12,000 volunteers in 623 districts are being deployed every year. There is a selection

committee under Chairpersonship of DM/DC of the district for selecting volunteers. Volunteers in the age group of 18-29 years are being deployed for maximum period of 2 years duration only. Each volunteer is being paid Rs. 5000/- as monthly honorarium with effect from October 2016 earlier each volunteer was being paid the monthly honorarium of Rs- 2500/- only. During the year 2016-17, a total of 10081 volunteers were deployed across the country.

Volunteers act as link between youth club members and concerned NYK/ various other departments.

As per the provision under the scheme, 15 days Induction Training Programme for the newly deployed volunteers and 7 days Refresher Train Programme for the volunteers continued in the 2nd year have been organized.

Volunteers are taking up the task of motivating and revitalization of Youth clubs and Mahila Mandals in the village/ community level apart from implementing core programmes and special programmes of NYKS.





### **RAJBHASHA REPORT 2016-17**

Efforts were made for the implementation of official language policy as per the guidelines of Deptt. Of Official Language, Ministry of Home and the Ministry of Youth Affairs and Sports.

### 1. Meeting of Official Language Implementation Committee:

Four meetings (14-06-2016, 03-10-2016, 27-12-2016 and 14-03-2017) were held during the year 2014-15 under the chairmanship of Director General Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan as per the direction of Official Language Deptt, various issues were discussed and directions were issued to subordinate offices for implementing the decisions taken in the meetings.

### 2. Official Language Inspections:

During the year 2016-17 the inspections of NYK

Lakhimpur Kheri, Mandi, Kelong, Almora, Goa, Lakshdweep and Nagpur were done by the Parliamentary Committee on Official Language and two offices namely NYKS Raipur and NYK Manipur was inpected by the Draft and Evidence Sub-Committee of the Committee of Parliament on Official Language. Deptt. of Official Language, Ministry of Home Affairs, Ministry of Youth Affairs & Sports also inspected NYKS offices. NYK Offices were inspected by State Directors / Dy. Directors. Total 165 offices were inspected.

### 3. Organization of Hindi Workshops and Conferences:

Five workshops and two conferences were organized at different places for promoting the use of Hindi language. The details are as under:





### Workshops

- Kerla held on29-11-2016
- Manipur held on 27.03.2017

- Jharkhand held on 31.03.2017
- Tripura held on 31-03-2017

### **Conferences**

- Telangana held on 28.03.2017
- Sikkim held on 31.03.2017

### 4. Hindi Speech and Essay Competition under National Integration Camp

The National Integration Camp was organized by Nehru Yuva Kendra, Mehrauli, Delhi, from 16th to 20th March, 2017, in Gandhi Smriti and Darshan Samiti, Rajghat, New Delhi. During the camp, on 18 March 2017, Hindi Essay Competition and

Speech Competition were organized among the participants for the progressive development of the official language.

### 5. Celebration of Hindi Day/fortnight:

NYKS celebrated Hindi Divas/Pakhwara from 14 to 28 Sept 2016 at Hqrs and in the field offices also during the fortnight different competitions were organized at Hqrs like Hindi Sulekh, Hindi Noting Drafting Hindi essay writing and slogan writing all officials took part in these competitions. The prizes were distributed to winners by the Director General.

Hindi Day/fortnight was celebrated by field offices also. Various programs were organized like Hindi Diwas, Rajbhasha Pradarshani, Hindi Sulekh, Kavita Path, Kavi Sammelan, Hindi Debate, rally cultural program etc. programme were organized.





### 21ST NATIONNAL YOUTH FESTIVAL 2017 AT ROHTAK (HARYANA)



Every year National Youth Festival celebrated in different states bringing in a new dimension to the unity of youth of this country. Haryana played host this year on it's 50th Years of Golden Jubilee Celebration on the theme of "Mahari Ladoo-Mahari Shaan" and with its rich history and vibrant culture, it inspired the youth of India with values of unity, peace and positivity.

Haryana is known as the "Land of Gods". 'Haryana' is a correction of the word 'Hariana', which refers to the region as "the heaven on earth", and finds mention in a 1328 AD Sanskrit inscription kept in the Delhi Museum. In the epic Mahabharat, which gave to this region worldwide fame, Haryana is referred to as "Bahudhhanyaka," 'lands of plentiful grains' and Bahudhana,' the land of immense riches.

Agriculture is the mainstay of more than 65 percent population with a contribution of 26.4

percent in the state GDP. Haryana was the first state to conceive the establishment of a chain of tourist complexes in public sector. The state has developed a wide network of educational institutions and is fast emerging as Education Hub of India. The simple and hardworking people of Haryana pride themselves, being firm believers in equity, social harmony and peaceful coexistence of all.

21st National Youth Festival begins with the virtual presence of the Prime Minister, over ten thousand participants from across the national and Rohtak marked the opening of the 21st National Youth Festival at Rohtak, Haryana.

During the opening ceremony at Maharishi Dayanand University, Rohtak event was marked with a gala showcasing of most colourful parade by state contingents, followed by distribution of National Youth awards to Youths





for their outstanding work in the field of Youth Development and Social Service.

In his address to the august gathering of thousands of youths participating in the Festival, Prime Minister, Shri Narendra Modi through video conferencing gave a clarion call to follow the teachings of Swami Vivekananda in their life and make India "Vishwa Guru" in the field of Information Technology and focused on developing a digital economic order by promoting digital transactions. He further insisted the youth to become self-dependent and explore the message for Triple 'C', Collectivity, Connectivity and Creativity and appreciated the peoples of Haryana for their contribution towards the "Beti Bachao-Beti Padhao" Abhiyan.

Shri Vijay Goyal, Union Minister for Youth Affairs and Sports, Govt. of India welcomed everyone to yet another youth festival where the feeling stays the same but the excitement is always multiplies with each passing year. He applauded the contribution made by people of Haryana to realize the national goal of 'Food for All' and hosting the 21st National Youth Festival at Rohtak.

The NYKS organized biggest event, in which Yuvakriti, the handicrafts and Social development fair, Adventure Programme, Exhibition on Swami Vivekananda, the Youth icon of India, Food

Festival, Skill Development Fair and Security Expo, Young Artists Camp etc. was organized. A large number of participants participated from all over the country i.e. various states and Union Territories included Andhra Pradesh, Assam, Bihar, Chhattisgarh, Dadra and Nagar Haveli, Daman and Diu, Delhi, Gujarat, Himachal Pradesh, Jammu and Kashmir, Karnataka, Kerala, Madhya Pradesh, Maharashtra, Manipur, Meghalaya, Nagaland, Odisha, Pudducherry, Punjab, Rajasthan, Sikkim, Tamilnadu, Telangana, Tripura, Uttar Pradesh, Uttrakhand and West Bengal.

The 05 days National Youth Festival-2017 was organized successfully in the personal guidance and patronize Shri Manohar Lal Khattar, Chief Minister, Haryana and in most benign presence of senior officials of Ministry of Youth Affairs & Sports, Govt. of India and Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan and other dignitaries like Shri Anil Viz, Youth Affairs & Sports Minister, Shri Manish Kumar Grover, Minister of State for Cooperation, Govt. of Haryana, Dr. A.K. Dubey, Secretary Youth Affairs, Shri L.K. Gupta, Joint Secretary Youth Affairs, Govt. of India, Shri D.S. Dhesi, Chief Secretary, Govt. of Haryana, Dr. B.K. Punia, Chancellor, Mehrishi Dayanand University, Rohtak, Shri C.R. Parela, Shri Dinesh Pratap Singh, Shri Dilip Saikia, Vice-Chairpersons, Ms. Rani Dwivedi Nighot, Member BoG, Major General Dilawar Singh, Director General, Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan and various other officers.





### **ANNEXURES**



Annual Progress Report for the Period: 01-04-2016 to 31-03-2017

Annexure - 1

1 Youth Club Development Programme (YCDP)

| 4.6         All mode with post of the post of                                |          | i                     | Target | Target   |       | SC     |       |       | R      |       |       | Minority |       |       | OBC    |       | Ğ     | Gen./Others | ýs    |        | Grand Total | <u> </u> |
|--|----------|-----------------------|--------|----------|-------|--------|-------|-------|--------|-------|-------|----------|-------|-------|--------|-------|-------|-------------|-------|--------|-------------|----------|
| Heating   Heat |          | State                 | Set    | Achieved | Male  | Female | Total | Male  | Female | Total | Male  | Female   | Total | Male  | Female | Total | Male  | Female      | Total | Male   | Female      | Total    |
| Hand    | Ā        | ndhra Pradesh         | 45     | 36       | 375   | 175    | 550   | 310   | 150    | 460   | 180   | 165      | 345   | 424   | 164    | 288   | 370   | 270         | 640   | 1659   | 924         | 2583     |
| 1  | Ā        | unachal Pradesh       | 34     | 25       | 40    | 0      | 40    | 25    | 15     | 40    | 56    | 10       | 36    | 30    | 25     | 55    | 54    | 25          | 79    | 175    | 75          | 250      |
| 1  | Ass      | am                    | 95     | 91       | 297   | 53     | 350   | 222   | 59     | 281   | 255   | 118      | 373   | 410   | 198    | 809   | 029   | 421         | 1001  | 1867   | 853         | 2720     |
| Mark Diagner   Mark | 뚪        | ar                    | 136    | 136      | 152   | 16     | 168   |       |        | 0     | 31    | 3        | 34    | 703   | 29     | 759   | 458   | 33          | 491   | 1344   | 108         | 1452     |
| Mark Diago   Mar | Š        | attisgarh             | 20     | 49       | 610   | 180    | 790   | 410   | 212    | 622   | 340   | 268      | 809   | 521   | 245    | 99/   | 280   | 249         | 829   | 2461   | 1154        | 3615     |
| Part   | <u>B</u> | Ē                     | 33     | 27       | 70    | 15     | 35    | 18    | 10     | 28    | 30    | 24       | 54    | 40    | 34     | 74    | 28    | 20          | 48    | 136    | 103         | 239      |
| E-H 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1  | Güj      | arat & Daman & Diu    | 91     | 53       | 155   | 105    | 260   | 128   | 76     | 204   | 165   | 110      | 275   | 135   | 75     | 210   | 307   | 240         | 547   | 890    | 613         | 1503     |
| esh         43         44         43         26         65         44         45         45         45         276         48         4   | 쿋        | yana                  | 65     | 64       | 1087  | 105    | 1192  | 1083  | 140    | 1223  | 1105  | 174      | 1279  | 1010  | 154    | 1164  | 1150  | 120         | 1270  | 5435   | 693         | 6128     |
| 11   11   11   12   13   13   13   13  | ≟        | nachal Pradesh        | 43     | 43       |       | 26     | 65    |       |        | 0     |       |          | 0     | 31    | 18     | 49    | 1620  | 726         | 2346  | 1690   | 770         | 2460     |
| SM         SSS         1376         SSS         1376         ASS         ASS         1376         ASS         ASS         1376         ASS   | 蓉        |                       | 19     | 54       | 415   | 219    | 634   | 360   | 180    | 540   | 252   | 86       | 350   | 381   | 84     | 465   | 2240  | 1015        | 3255  | 3648   | 1596        | 5244     |
| ody         64         64         64         405         646         405         640         405         640         405         640         405         640         405         640         405         640         640         405         405         405         405         405         405         405         405         405         405         405         405   | Jha      | rkhand                | 72     | 58       |       | 086    | 3560  | 2740  | 849    | 3589  | 2352  | 745      | 3097  | 3652  | 910    | 4562  | 3360  | 1015        | 4375  | 14684  | 4499        | 19183    |
| cka         136         616         617         680         113         681         612         617         680         113         681         612         614         614         617         619         617         619         617         619 <td>Kar</td> <td>nataka</td> <td>84</td> <td>29</td> <td>485</td> <td>480</td> <td>965</td> <td>624</td> <td>330</td> <td>954</td> <td>640</td> <td>405</td> <td>1045</td> <td>612</td> <td>640</td> <td>1252</td> <td>029</td> <td>525</td> <td>1195</td> <td>3080</td> <td>2403</td> <td>5483</td>   | Kar      | nataka                | 84     | 29       | 485   | 480    | 965   | 624   | 330    | 954   | 640   | 405      | 1045  | 612   | 640    | 1252  | 029   | 525         | 1195  | 3080   | 2403        | 5483     |
| to         110         410         420         920         332         237         435         436   | Ker      | ala & Lakshdweep      | 53     | 55       | 225   | 146    | 371   | 610   | 29     | 229   | 280   | 113      | 693   | 612   | 234    | 846   | 410   | 333         | 743   | 2437   | 893         | 3330     |
| Commodity         130         0430         0445         1435         1020         410         1430         470   | Mac      | dhya Pradesh          | 176    | 140      | 2405  | 920    | 3325  | 2390  | 890    | 3280  | 2375  | 975      | 3350  | 2455  | 940    | 3395  | 2413  | 1058        | 3471  | 12038  | 4783        | 16821    |
| 43         43         825         430         1255         820         410         1230         480         480  | Mał      | narashtra & Goa       | 130    | 130      |       | 445    | 1435  | 1020  | 410    | 1430  | 740   | 475      | 1215  | 1120  | 521    | 1641  | 1137  | 380         | 1517  | 5007   | 2231        | 7238     |
| 48         48<   | Mar      | nipur                 | 43     | 43       |       | 430    | 1255  | 820   | 410    | 1230  | 750   | 480      | 1230  | 810   | 422    | 1232  | 933   | 434         | 1367  | 4138   | 2176        | 6314     |
| Adjust         118<  | Mec      | ghalaya               | 22     | 21       | 85    | 20     | 135   | 45    | 38     | 83    | 110   | 40       | 150   | 105   | 62     | 167   | 105   | 55          | 160   | 450    | 245         | 695      |
| digath         21         24         49         31         86         46         66         65         33         98         36         36         36         36         36         36         36         36         46         67         46         173         118         38         156         146         174         118         38         156         141         61         36         178         118         38         156         141         61         452         117         118  | Miz      | oram                  | 18     | 18       |       |        | 0     | 120   | 160    | 280   |       |          | 0     |       |        | 0     |       |             | 0     | 120    | 160         | 280      |
| digath         71         68         110         62         165 <td>Nag</td> <td>laland</td> <td>27</td> <td>24</td> <td>49</td> <td>31</td> <td>80</td> <td>36</td> <td>40</td> <td>9/</td> <td></td> <td>33</td> <td>86</td> <td>30</td> <td>28</td> <td>28</td> <td>25</td> <td>50</td> <td>75</td> <td>205</td> <td>182</td> <td>387</td>  | Nag      | laland                | 27     | 24       | 49    | 31     | 80    | 36    | 40     | 9/    |       | 33       | 86    | 30    | 28     | 28    | 25    | 50          | 75    | 205    | 182         | 387      |
| widgath         71         60         1154         0         452         115         460         1857         313         2170         1554         998         16539         2910           widgath         110         110         110         110         110         115 <t< td=""><td>Oris</td><td>sa</td><td>84</td><td>84</td><td>110</td><td>25</td><td>162</td><td>95</td><td>20</td><td>145</td><td>124</td><td>49</td><td>173</td><td>118</td><td>38</td><td>156</td><td>141</td><td>63</td><td>204</td><td>288</td><td>252</td><td>840</td></t<>   | Oris     | sa                    | 84     | 84       | 110   | 25     | 162   | 95    | 20     | 145   | 124   | 49       | 173   | 118   | 38     | 156   | 141   | 63          | 204   | 288    | 252         | 840      |
| 110         110         980         118         118         115         125         342         119         461         1396         150         75         469         119         461         1396         150         75         342         119         461         1396         150         75         118         461         130         75         118         75         118         75         118         75         118         75         118         75         118         75         118         75         118         75         118         75         118         75         118         75 </td <td>Pun</td> <td>jab &amp; Chandigarh</td> <td>71</td> <td>69</td> <td>11250</td> <td>292</td> <td>11542</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>452</td> <td>17</td> <td>469</td> <td>1857</td> <td>313</td> <td>2170</td> <td>15541</td> <td>866</td> <td>16539</td> <td>29100</td> <td>1620</td> <td>30720</td>   | Pun      | jab & Chandigarh      | 71     | 69       | 11250 | 292    | 11542 | 0     | 0      | 0     | 452   | 17       | 469   | 1857  | 313    | 2170  | 15541 | 866         | 16539 | 29100  | 1620        | 30720    |
| 11         12<   | Raja     | asthan                | 110    | 102      | 086   | 108    | 1088  | 1121  | 136    | 1257  | 342   | 119      | 461   | 1396  | 108    | 1504  | 756   | 110         | 998   | 4595   | 581         | 5176     |
| 122         132         1346         1356         1356         1570         990         315         1305         670         248         918         918         1305 <td>Sik</td> <td>dim</td> <td>13</td> <td>13</td> <td></td> <td>70</td> <td>155</td> <td>20</td> <td>47</td> <td>46</td> <td>75</td> <td>57</td> <td>132</td> <td>96</td> <td>70</td> <td>166</td> <td>9/</td> <td>80</td> <td>156</td> <td>382</td> <td>324</td> <td>200</td>  | Sik      | dim                   | 13     | 13       |       | 70     | 155   | 20    | 47     | 46    | 75    | 57       | 132   | 96    | 70     | 166   | 9/    | 80          | 156   | 382    | 324         | 200      |
| na         33         27         310         55         366         384         305         40         345         289         40         345         289         58         58         58         11         490         115         490         11         40         365         389         380 <t< td=""><td>집</td><td>il Nadu &amp;<br/>dicherry</td><td>122</td><td>103</td><td>1021</td><td>345</td><td>1366</td><td>750</td><td>320</td><td>1070</td><td>066</td><td>315</td><td>1305</td><td>029</td><td>248</td><td>918</td><td>1206</td><td>440</td><td>1646</td><td>5106</td><td>2083</td><td>7189</td></t<>  | 집        | il Nadu &<br>dicherry | 122    | 103      | 1021  | 345    | 1366  | 750   | 320    | 1070  | 066   | 315      | 1305  | 029   | 248    | 918   | 1206  | 440         | 1646  | 5106   | 2083        | 7189     |
| adesh 28 218 218 219 219 219 219 219 219 219 219 219 219   | Tela     | ıngana                | 33     | 27       | 310   | 22     | 365   | 280   | 94     | 374   | 305   | 40       | 345   | 289   | 20     | 339   | 375   | 115         | 490   | 1559   | 354         | 1913     |
| 3         3         5         4         5         5         4         5         5         4         5         5         4         5         5         4         5  | Trip     | ura                   | 18     | 18       |       | 31     | 111   | 75    |        | 75    | 68    |          | 89    | 99    | 20     | 98    | 110   | 48          | 158   | 420    | 66          | 519      |
| N 118 118 1190 2816 119 645 319 119 645 319 119 645 319 119 645 319 119 645 319 119 645 319 119 645 319 119 645 319 3461 119 645 319 3461 119 645 319 3461 119 645 319 3461 119 645 319 3461 119 645 319 3461 119 645 319 3461 119 645 319 3461 119 119 119 119 119 119 119 119 119 1  | Utte     | ır Pradesh            | 238    | 212      | 2730  | 066    | 3720  | 2540  | 920    | 3460  | 2687  | 1018     | 3705  | 2840  | 847    | 3687  | 2865  | 1184        | 4049  | 13662  | 4959        | 18621    |
| N 118 119 665 111 6450 112 777 309 93 401 1504 6408 130 578 465 2197 2187 20978 6877 27855 38499 10535 49034 120174 1  | Utt      | akhand                | 36     | 27       | 96    | 19     | 115   | 80    |        | 80    | 236   | 102      | 338   | 100   | 103    | 203   | 145   | 283         | 428   | 657    | 202         | 1164     |
| 2118 1900 28161 6450 34611 16261 5696 21957 15744 6083 21827 20978 6877 27855 38499 10535 49034 120174   | We       | st Bengal & A& N      | 118    | 114      | 999   | 112    | 777   | 309   | 93     | 405   | 448   | 130      | 278   | 465   | 270    | 735   | 754   | 245         | 666   | 2641   | 850         | 3491     |
|  |          | Total                 | 2118   | 1900     |       | 6450   | 34611 | 16261 | 2696   | 21957 | 15744 | 6083     | 21827 | 20978 | 6877   | 27855 | 38499 | 10535       | 49034 | 120174 | 36090       | 156264   |



Annexure - 2

Training on Youth Leadership and Community Development (TYLCD)

| S  |                             | Target | Target   |       | SC     |       |      | ST     |       |      | Minority |       |       | OBC    |       | Ğ     | Gen./Others | Š     |       | Grand Total | <u></u> |
|----|-----------------------------|--------|----------|-------|--------|-------|------|--------|-------|------|----------|-------|-------|--------|-------|-------|-------------|-------|-------|-------------|---------|
| 2  | State                       | Set    | Achieved | Male  | Female | Total | Male | Female | Total | Male | Female   | Total | Male  | Female | Total | Male  | Female      | Total | Male  | Female      | Total   |
| -1 | Andhra Pradesh              | 42     | 39       | 170   | 125    | 295   | 175  | 112    | 287   | 180  | 164      | 344   | 155   | 141    | 296   | 190   | 151         | 341   | 870   | 693         | 1563    |
| 2  | Arunachal Pradesh           | 34     | 0        | 0     | 0      | 0     | 0    | 0      | 0     | 0    | 0        | 0     | 0     | 0      | 0     | 0     | 0           | 0     | 0     | 0           | 0       |
| 3  | Assam                       | 95     | 06       | 65    | 41     | 103   | 72   | 51     | 123   | 213  | 102      | 315   | 401   | 184    | 282   | 965   | 408         | 1373  | 1730  | 791         | 2521    |
| 4  | Bihar                       | 136    | 136      | 628   | 46     | 674   | 11   |        | 11    | 216  | 6        | 225   | 2378  | 88     | 2467  | 2001  | 62          | 2063  | 5234  | 206         | 5440    |
| 2  | Chattisgarh                 | 20     | 49       | 195   | 134    | 329   | 204  | 112    | 316   | 188  | 79       | 267   | 182   | 105    | 287   | 225   | 135         | 360   | 994   | 292         | 1559    |
| 9  | Delhi                       | 33     | 29       | 130   | 86     | 228   | 119  | 99     | 185   | 144  | 78       | 222   | 136   | 105    | 241   | 195   | 121         | 316   | 724   | 468         | 1192    |
| 7  | Gujarat & Daman & Diu       | 91     | 35       | 127   | 135    | 262   | 120  | 129    | 249   | 149  | 114      | 263   | 128   | 158    | 286   | 229   | 129         | 358   | 753   | 999         | 1418    |
| œ  | Haryana                     | 9      | 65       | 633   | 341    | 974   | 0    | 0      | 0     | 2    | m        | 2     | 299   | 345    | 944   | 704   | 308         | 1012  | 1938  | 266         | 2935    |
|    | Himachal Pradesh            | 43     | 42       | 135   | 74     | 209   | 106  | 72     | 178   |      |          | 0     | 145   | 94     | 239   | 794   | 415         | 1209  | 1180  | 655         | 1835    |
| 10 | J&K                         | 61     | 45       | 166   | 121    | 287   | 293  | 352    | 645   | 155  | 31       | 186   | 114   | 84     | 198   | 429   | 193         | 622   | 1157  | 781         | 1938    |
| Ξ  | Jharkhand                   | 72     | 57       | 334   | 125    | 459   | 294  | 120    | 414   | 351  | 130      | 481   | 368   | 125    | 493   | 417   | 137         | 554   | 1764  | 637         | 2401    |
| 12 | Karnataka                   | 84     | 29       | 166   | 150    | 316   | 145  | 105    | 250   | 152  | 184      | 336   | 559   | 245    | 804   | 494   | 443         | 937   | 1534  | 1135        | 2669    |
| 13 | Kerala & Lakshdweep         | 53     | 52       | 541   | 165    | 206   | 390  | 112    | 505   | 387  | 144      | 531   | 969   | 337    | 1033  | 490   | 249         | 739   | 2504  | 1007        | 3511    |
| 14 | Madhya Pradesh              | 176    | 123      | 755   | 240    | 995   | 740  | 202    | 945   | 089  | 267      | 947   | 730   | 249    | 626   | 800   | 236         | 1036  | 3705  | 1197        | 4902    |
| 15 | Maharashtra & Goa           | 130    | 126      | 780   | 255    | 1035  | 720  | 207    | 927   | 621  | 208      | 829   | 825   | 169    | 994   | 910   | 345         | 1255  | 3856  | 1184        | 5040    |
| 16 | Manipur                     | 43     | 33       | 180   | 112    | 292   | 131  | 92     | 223   | 106  | 74       | 180   | 145   | 124    | 569   | 195   | 161         | 356   | 757   | 563         | 1320    |
| 17 | Meghalaya                   | 22     | 18       | 88    | 48     | 136   | 57   | 73     | 130   | 102  | 96       | 198   | 111   | 74     | 185   | 124   | 89          | 213   | 482   | 380         | 862     |
| 18 | Mizoram                     | 18     | 18       | 86    | 06     | 188   | 61   | 63     | 124   | 110  |          | 110   | 91    |        | 91    | 141   | 99          | 207   | 501   | 219         | 720     |
| 19 | Nagaland                    | 27     | 26       | 150   | 110    | 260   | 145  | 66     | 244   | 128  | 113      | 241   | 197   | 134    | 331   | 135   | 164         | 299   | 755   | 929         | 1375    |
| 70 | Orissa                      | 84     | 80       | 418   | 225    | 643   | 335  | 210    | 545   | 422  | 234      | 929   | 408   | 211    | 619   | 497   | 240         | 737   | 2080  | 1120        | 3200    |
| 21 | Punjab & Chandigarh         | 71     | 71       | 750   | 069    | 1440  |      |        | 0     | 25   | 10       | 35    | 275   | 285    | 260   | 820   | 465         | 1285  | 1870  | 1450        | 3320    |
| 22 | Rajasthan                   | 110    | 101      | 735   | 176    | 911   | 874  | 8      | 896   | 70   | 25       | 95    | 947   | 104    | 1021  | 832   | 201         | 1033  | 3458  | 009         | 4058    |
|    | Sikkim                      | 13     | 13       | 69    | 118    | 181   | 28   | 78     | 136   | 52   | 105      | 157   | 44    | 94     | 138   | 68    | 132         | 221   | 306   | 527         | 833     |
| 24 | Tamil Nadu &<br>Pondicherry | 122    | 102      | 884   | 739    | 1623  | 225  | 291    | 516   | 93   | 241      | 334   | 485   | 213    | 869   | 303   | 315         | 618   | 2061  | 1908        | 3969    |
|    | Telangana                   | 33     | 26       | 172   | 89     | 261   | 179  | 48     | 227   | 181  | 61       | 242   | 142   |        | 142   | 202   | 78          | 283   | 879   | 276         | 1155    |
| 56 | Tripura                     | 18     | 18       | 101   | 78     | 179   | 141  | 22     | 163   | 86   |          | 86    | 110   |        | 110   | 121   | 41          | 162   | 571   | 141         | 712     |
| 27 | Uttar Pradesh               | 238    | 174      | 1060  | 395    | 1455  | 1042 | 360    | 1402  | 1010 | 384      | 1394  | 1121  | 410    | 1531  | 1062  | 418         | 1480  | 5295  | 1967        | 7262    |
| 28 | Uttrakhand                  | 36     | 18       | 118   | 70     | 188   | 77   | 63     | 140   | 89   | 8        | 92    | 109   | 4      | 153   | 109   | 72          | 181   | 481   | 257         | 738     |
| 59 | West Bengal & A& N          | 118    | 116      | 715   | 775    | 1490  | 563  | 612    | 1175  | 069  | 546      | 1236  | 784   | 770    | 1554  | 836   | 850         | 1686  | 3588  | 3553        | 7141    |
|    | Total                       | 2118   | 1769     | 10354 | 5765   | 16119 | 7727 | 3748   | 11025 | 6593 | 3410     | 10003 | 12385 | 4893   | 17278 | 14312 | 6624        | 20936 | 51027 | 24562       | 75589   |
|    |                             |        |          |       |        |       |      |        |       |      |          |       |       |        |       |       |             |       |       |             |         |



### **3 Sports Materials to Youth Club**

### **Annexure - 3**

| SI No | State                    | Target Set | Target Achieved |
|-------|--------------------------|------------|-----------------|
| 1     | Andhra Pradesh           | 460        | 425             |
| 2     | Arunachal Pradesh        | 360        | 200             |
| 3     | Assam                    | 1020       | 1020            |
| 4     | Bihar                    | 1495       | 1495            |
| 5     | Chattisgarh              | 515        | 525             |
| 6     | Delhi                    | 360        | 360             |
| 7     | Gujarat & Daman & Diu    | 995        | 690             |
| 8     | Haryana                  | 710        | 710             |
| 9     | Himachal Pradesh         | 465        | 465             |
| 10    | J&K                      | 625        | 590             |
| 11    | Jharkhand                | 770        | 730             |
| 12    | Karnataka                | 915        | 845             |
| 13    | Kerala & Lakshdweep      | 560        | 560             |
| 14    | Madhya Pradesh           | 1890       | 1725            |
| 15    | Maharashtra & Goa        | 1410       | 1410            |
| 16    | Manipur                  | 440        | 440             |
| 17    | Meghalaya                | 230        | 230             |
| 18    | Mizoram                  | 190        | 190             |
| 19    | Nagaland                 | 280        | 280             |
| 20    | Orissa                   | 885        | 885             |
| 21    | Punjab & Chandigarh      | 750        | 750             |
| 22    | Rajasthan                | 1195       | 1193            |
| 23    | Sikkim                   | 140        | 160             |
| 24    | Tamil Nadu & Pondicherry | 1300       | 1153            |
| 25    | Telangana                | 350        | 350             |
| 26    | Tripura                  | 185        | 185             |
| 27    | Uttar Pradesh            | 2620       | 2325            |
| 28    | Uttrakhand               | 410        | 285             |
| 29    | West Bengal & A& N       | 1240       | 1195            |
|       | Total                    | 22765      | 21371           |



Annexure - 4

| =                       |
|-------------------------|
| യ                       |
| ~                       |
| യ                       |
| _                       |
| 5                       |
| _                       |
|                         |
| S                       |
| ŭ                       |
| ~                       |
| _                       |
| $\overline{}$           |
| $\mathbf{v}$            |
| $\mathbf{c}$            |
| _                       |
| ഗ                       |
| •,                      |
| _                       |
| <u>a</u>                |
| w                       |
| •                       |
|                         |
| a)                      |
| _                       |
|                         |
| •                       |
| _                       |
| $\overline{\mathbf{o}}$ |
| $\mathbf{z}$            |
| 0                       |
| _                       |
|                         |
| <b></b>                 |
| _                       |
|                         |
|                         |

| ß   | Ct-to                       | Target | Target   |       | SC     |       |       | ST     |       |       | Minority |       |       | OBC    |       | 9     | Gen./Others | ıs    |        | Grand Total | le le  |
|-----|-----------------------------|--------|----------|-------|--------|-------|-------|--------|-------|-------|----------|-------|-------|--------|-------|-------|-------------|-------|--------|-------------|--------|
| No  | סומום                       |        | Achieved | Male  | Female | Total | Male  | Female | Total | Male  | Female   | Total | Male  | Female | Total | Male  | Female      | Total | Male   | Female      | Total  |
| п   | Andhra Pradesh              | 40     | 40       | 720   | 280    | 1000  | 693   | 260    | 923   | 715   | 255      | 970   | 693   | 314    | 726   | 847   | 305         | 1152  | 3608   | 1414        | 5022   |
| 2   | Arunachal Pradesh           | 34     |          |       |        | 0     |       |        | 0     |       |          | 0     |       |        | 0     |       |             | 0     | 0      | 0           | 0      |
| 3   | Assam                       | 98     | 82       | 234   | 51     | 285   | 259   | 99     | 325   | 544   | 125      | 699   | 588   | 154    | 742   | 1322  | 436         | 1758  | 2947   | 832         | 3779   |
| 4   | Bihar                       | 125    | 125      | 1128  |        | 1128  |       |        | 0     | 207   |          | 207   | 1954  | 328    | 2282  | 1118  | 221         | 1339  | 4407   | 549         | 4956   |
| 2   | Chattisgarh                 | 45     | 45       | 930   | 441    | 1371  | 910   | 461    | 1371  | 921   | 466      | 1387  | 952   | 422    | 1374  | 896   | 491         | 1459  | 4681   | 2281        | 6962   |
| 9   | Delhi                       | 30     | 28       | 625   | 294    | 919   | 610   | 274    | 884   | 579   | 233      | 812   | 537   | 248    | 785   | 774   | 124         | 868   | 3125   | 1173        | 4298   |
| 7   | Gujarat & Daman & Diu       | 85     | 69       | 1738  | 440    | 2178  | 1670  | 369    | 2039  | 1569  | 410      | 1979  | 1674  | 357    | 2031  | 1769  | 431         | 2200  | 8420   | 2007        | 10427  |
| ∞   | Haryana                     | 09     | 09       | 2798  | 783    | 3581  | 367   | 321    | 889   | 24    | 22       | 81    | 3411  | 348    | 3759  | 4430  | 106         | 5331  | 11030  | 2410        | 13440  |
| 6   | Himachal Pradesh            | 39     | 39       | 150   | 20     | 200   | 150   | 20     | 200   |       |          | 0     | 250   | 100    | 350   | 695   | 265         | 096   | 1245   | 465         | 1710   |
| 101 | J&K                         | 51     | 4        | 417   | 54     | 471   | 684   | 279    | 963   | 489   | 175      | 664   | 217   | 78     | 295   | 1933  | 210         | 2143  | 3820   | 962         | 4616   |
| 11  | Jharkhand                   | 99     | 63       | 3044  | 490    | 3534  | 2932  | 542    | 3474  | 2328  | 438      | 2766  | 3119  | 446    | 3565  | 3121  | 644         | 3765  | 14544  | 2560        | 17104  |
| 12  | Karnataka                   | 79     | 89       | 1045  | 299    | 1712  | 886   | 202    | 1493  | 6963  | 733      | 1696  | 1044  | 689    | 1733  | 1153  | 702         | 1855  | 5304   | 3361        | 8665   |
| 13  | Kerala & Lakshdweep         | 48     | 46       | 622   | 102    | 724   | 441   | 80     | 521   | 292   | 28       | 593   | 545   | 238    | 783   | 845   | 293         | 1138  | 3018   | 741         | 3759   |
| 41  | Madhya Pradesh              | 158    | 144      | 3802  | 902    | 4707  | 3781  | 866    | 4779  | 3662  | 793      | 4455  | 3860  | 695    | 4555  | 3905  | 986         | 4891  | 19010  | 4377        | 23387  |
| 15  | Maharashtra & Goa           | 118    | 118      | 2133  | 835    | 2968  | 2184  | 750    | 2934  | 2048  | 292      | 2816  | 2155  | 845    | 3000  | 2370  | 896         | 3338  | 10890  | 4166        | 15056  |
| 16  | Manipur                     | 36     | 36       | 430   | 302    | 735   | 410   | 281    | 691   | 358   | 267      | 625   | 447   | 334    | 781   | 497   | 329         | 856   | 2142   | 1546        | 3688   |
| 17  | Meghalaya                   | 20     | 20       | 515   |        | 515   | 498   | 165    | 663   | 205   |          | 205   | 447   |        | 447   | 630   |             | 630   | 2592   | 165         | 2757   |
| 18  | Mizoram                     | 18     | 18       |       |        | 0     | 1060  | 20     | 1080  |       |          | 0     |       |        | 0     |       |             | 0     | 1060   | 20          | 1080   |
| 19  | Nagaland                    | 26     | 25       | 390   | 330    | 720   | 372   | 290    | 662   | 388   | 308      | 969   | 369   | 365    | 734   | 453   | 360         | 813   | 1972   | 1653        | 3625   |
| 70  | Orissa                      | 79     | 76       | 1680  | 710    | 2390  | 1660  | 702    | 2362  | 1564  | 269      | 2133  | 1290  | 663    | 1953  | 2101  | 911         | 3012  | 8295   | 3555        | 11850  |
| 21  | Punjab & Chandigarh         | 64     | 64       | 5140  | 450    | 2290  |       |        | 0     |       |          | 0     |       |        | 0     | 7360  | 975         | 8335  | 12500  | 1425        | 13925  |
| 22  | Rajasthan                   | 101    | 102      | 2742  | 141    | 2883  | 2099  | 98     | 2185  | 480   | 104      | 584   | 4650  | 150    | 4800  | 3839  | 378         | 4217  | 13810  | 829         | 14669  |
| 23  | Sikkim                      | 12     | 13       | 140   | 84     | 224   | 122   | 18     | 140   | 117   |          | 117   | 138   |        | 138   | 187   | 108         | 295   | 704    | 210         | 914    |
| 24  | Tamil Nadu &<br>Pondicherry | 108    | 101      | 4597  | 909    | 5103  | 314   | 87     | 401   | 440   | 182      | 622   | 3270  | 514    | 3784  | 1589  | 185         | 1774  | 10733  | 1516        | 12249  |
| 25  | Telangana                   | 30     | 28       | 720   | 111    | 831   | 701   | 41     | 742   | 719   |          | 719   | 621   | 06     | 711   | 1104  | 174         | 1278  | 3865   | 416         | 4281   |
| 56  | Tripura                     | 15     | 16       | 375   | 180    | 222   | 300   | 133    | 433   | 129   | 121      | 250   | 443   | 166    | 609   | 634   | 536         | 933   | 1881   | 899         | 2780   |
| 27  | Uttar Pradesh               | 222    | 183      | 4194  | 1366   | 5560  | 3436  | 995    | 4431  | 4185  | 1141     | 5326  | 2394  | 1146   | 3540  | 7286  | 1420        | 8706  | 21495  | 8909        | 27563  |
| 28  | Uttrakhand                  | 36     | 26       | 523   | 382    | 902   | 70    | 47     | 117   | 14    | 1        | 15    | 285   | 122    | 407   | 1420  | 918         | 2338  | 2312   | 1470        | 3782   |
| 59  | West Bengal & A& N          | 102    | 102      | 3079  | 509    | 3588  | 2031  | 159    | 2190  | 1004  | 289      | 1293  | 1124  | 296    | 1420  | 1244  | 815         | 2059  | 8482   | 2068        | 10550  |
|     | Total                       | 1933   | 1781     | 43911 | 10466  | 54377 | 28712 | 6262   | 36691 | 24514 | 7463     | 31977 | 36447 | 9108   | 45555 | 53594 | 13879       | 67473 | 187892 | 49002       | 236894 |
|     |                             |        |          |       |        |       |       |        |       |       |          |       |       |        |       |       |             |       |        |             |        |



### 5 District level Sports Meet

| S  |                             | Target | Target   |       | SC     |       |       | ST     |       |      | Minority |       |       | OBC    |       | Ğ     | Gen./Others | 'n    |       | Grand Total |       |
|----|-----------------------------|--------|----------|-------|--------|-------|-------|--------|-------|------|----------|-------|-------|--------|-------|-------|-------------|-------|-------|-------------|-------|
| §  | State                       | Set    | Achieved | Male  | Female | Total | Male  | Female | Total | Male | Female   | Total | Male  | Female | Total | Male  | Female      | Total | Male  | Female      | Total |
| 1  | Andhra Pradesh              | 14     | 13       | 300   |        | 450   | 243   | 77     | 320   | 166  | 152      | 318   | 268   | 112    | 380   | 498   | 569         | 792   | 1475  | 760         | 2235  |
| 2  | Arunachal Pradesh           | 15     |          |       |        | 0     |       |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |       |        | 0     |       |             | 0     | 0     | 0           | 0     |
| 3  | Assam                       | 27     | 25       | 80    | 15     | 95    | 121   | 38     | 159   | 271  | 43       | 314   | 322   | 20     | 372   | 1023  | 367         | 1390  | 1817  | 513         | 2330  |
| 4  | Bihar                       | 38     | 38       | 41    | 210    | 251   |       | 204    | 204   |      | 160      | 160   |       | 144    | 144   | 78    | 367         | 445   | 119   | 1085        | 1204  |
| 2  | Chattisgarh                 | 16     | 13       | 311   | 140    | 451   | 263   | 124    | 387   | 290  | 184      | 474   | 198   | 110    | 308   | 415   | 162         | 577   | 1477  | 720         | 2197  |
| 9  | Delhi                       | 6      | 6        | 240   | 110    | 350   | 212   | 66     | 311   | 236  | 45       | 281   | 277   | 131    | 408   | 230   | 179         | 409   | 1195  | 564         | 1759  |
| 7  | Gujarat & Daman & Diu       | 28     | 15       | 480   | 110    | 290   | 463   | 22     | 518   | 470  | 41       | 511   | 412   | 87     | 499   | 614   | 196         | 810   | 2439  | 489         | 2928  |
| 8  | Haryana                     | 19     | 19       | 1301  | 150    | 1451  | 228   | 148    | 376   | 237  | 120      | 357   | 410   | 217    | 627   | 786   |             | 786   | 4974  | 1189        | 6163  |
| 6  | Himachal Pradesh            | 12     | 11       | 130   |        | 130   | 172   |        | 172   | 208  |          | 208   | 164   |        | 164   | 506   | 350         | 556   | 880   | 350         | 1230  |
| 10 | J&K                         | 14     | 10       | 347   | 49     | 396   | 694   | 62     | 756   | 238  |          | 238   | 214   | 51     | 265   | 728   | 82          | 810   | 2221  | 244         | 2465  |
| 11 | Jharkhand                   | 22     | 18       | 896   | 250    | 1218  | 842   | 130    | 972   | 947  | 124      | 1071  | 910   | 261    | 1171  | 1104  | 485         | 1589  | 4771  | 1250        | 6021  |
| 12 | Karnataka                   | 27     | 21       | 355   | 202    | 260   | 362   | 195    | 557   | 180  | 210      | 390   | 366   | 222    | 288   | 468   | 200         | 899   | 1731  | 1032        | 2763  |
| 13 | Kerala & Lakshdweep         | 16     | 16       | 425   | 22     | 480   | 114   | 10     | 124   | 148  | 35       | 183   | 134   | 43     | 177   | 471   | 68          | 260   | 1292  | 232         | 1524  |
| 14 | Madhya Pradesh              | 48     | 36       | 1168  | 190    | 1358  | 1036  | 125    | 1161  | 1085 | 151      | 1236  | 1162  | 204    | 1366  | 1338  | 306         | 1644  | 5789  | 926         | 6765  |
| 15 | Maharashtra & Goa           | 36     | 34       | 260   | 220    | 780   | 564   | 141    | 705   | 552  | 154      | 200   | 547   | 199    | 746   | 265   | 282         | 879   | 2820  | 966         | 3816  |
| 16 | Manipur                     | 10     | 10       | 200   | 75     | 275   | 102   | 98     | 188   | 119  | 45       | 164   | 163   |        | 163   | 160   | 114         | 274   | 744   | 320         | 1064  |
| 17 | Meghalaya                   | 7      | 9        | 89    |        | 89    | 42    |        | 42    | 19   |          | 61    | 22    |        | 22    | 131   |             | 131   | 324   | 0           | 324   |
| 18 | Mizoram                     | 8      | 8        | 270   | 69     | 339   | 161   | 40     | 201   | 236  |          | 236   | 238   |        | 238   | 446   | 88          | 534   | 1351  | 197         | 1548  |
| 19 | Nagaland                    | 11     | 11       | 398   | 280    | 829   | 369   | 760    | 629   | 377  | 255      | 632   | 345   | 268    | 613   | 514   | 337         | 851   | 2003  | 1400        | 3403  |
| 20 | Orissa                      | 30     | 28       | 280   | 250    | 088   | 266   | 223    | 789   | 524  | 214      | 738   | 250   | 267    | 817   | 720   | 306         | 1026  | 2940  | 1260        | 4200  |
| 21 | Punjab & Chandigarh         | 21     | 21       | 3387  | 445    | 3832  | 620   | 120    | 740   | 79   | 3        | 82    | 630   | 230    | 860   | 4784  | 602         | 5386  | 9500  | 1400        | 10900 |
| 22 | Rajasthan                   | 32     | 27       | 857   | 17     | 874   | 699   | 7      | 676   | 115  | 2        | 117   | 1935  | 83     | 2018  | 880   | 97          | 977   | 4456  | 206         | 4662  |
| 23 | Sikkim                      | 4      | 4        | 99    |        | 99    | 24    |        | 24    | 22   |          | 22    | 34    |        | 34    | 82    | 24          | 106   | 228   | 24          | 252   |
| 24 | Tamil Nadu &<br>Pondicherry | 32     | 30       | 1974  | 250    | 2224  | 377   | 84     | 461   | 149  | 88       | 237   | 1204  | 366    | 1570  | 1168  | 142         | 1310  | 2098  | 933         | 6031  |
| 25 | Telangana                   | 10     | 8        | 300   |        | 300   | 366   |        | 366   | 241  |          | 241   | 272   |        | 272   | 521   |             | 521   | 1700  | 0           | 1700  |
| 26 | Tripura                     | 4      | 4        | 117   | 89     | 185   | 55    | 4      | 66    | 52   |          | 52    | 84    |        | 84    | 102   | 88          | 190   | 410   | 200         | 610   |
| 27 | Uttar Pradesh               | 71     | 49       | 1632  | 420    | 202   | 1454  | 411    | 1865  | 1077 | 368      | 1445  | 1258  | 405    | 1660  | 5689  | 481         | 3170  | 8110  | 2082        | 10192 |
| 28 | Uttrakhand                  | 13     | 7        | 177   | 69     | 246   | 52    | 41     | 93    | 10   | 2        | 12    | 92    | 35     | 111   | 157   | 86          | 255   | 478   | 251         | 729   |
| 29 | West Bengal & A& N          | 29     | 28       | 747   | 96     | 843   | 520   | 48     | 268   | 461  | 4        | 501   | 436   | 02     | 206   | 699   | 114         | 783   | 2833  | 368         | 3201  |
|    | Total                       | 623    | 519      | 17479 | 3893   | 21372 | 10691 | 2772   | 13463 | 8551 | 2436     | 10987 | 12631 | 3552   | 16183 | 21579 | 5825        | 27404 | 73175 | 19041       | 92216 |
|    |                             |        |          |       |        |       |       |        |       |      |          |       |       |        |       |       |             |       |       |             |       |



| State         Tanget         Active ved Active | Male   Fel   80   80   63   63   63   52   52 | rotal Male | ST le Female | 140     | Male | Minority |       | ole M  | OBC    | Total | _     | Gen./Others | S     |       | Grand Tota | EZ     |
|--|---|------------|--------------|---------|------|----------|-------|--------|--------|-------|-------|-------------|-------|-------|------------|--------|
| Ardineved         Male         Fennale         Transity           Andhra Pradesh         108         105         540           Arunachal Pradesh         98         56         80         240           Assam         226         223         45         1175           Bihar         326         326         324         1204           Bihar         122         116         63         524           Chattisgarh         122         116         63         524           Delhi         78         78         32         402           Gujarat & Daman & Diu         226         178         110         783           Himachal Pradesh         102         102         0         500           Jakk         132         147         124         735           Karala & Daman & Diu         226         178         36         56           Jakk         102         107         0         500           Jak         118         128         132         788           Machalaya         54         45         55         110           Macharashtra & Goa         308         1425         136         170   | Male Ren 80 80 63 63 52 52                    | 0 0        |              | Total P | Male | Clampin  |       | oleM   | Female | Total | ol-14 |             |       |       |            |        |
| Andhra Pradesh         108         105         540           Arunachal Pradesh         98         56         80         240           Assam         226         223         45         1175           Bihar         326         326         1204         1204           Chattisgarh         122         116         63         524           Dellhi         78         78         52         402           Gujarat & Daman & Diu         226         178         110         783           Himachal Pradesh         102         102         0         500           Jharkhand         176         147         124         735           Karnataka         112         187         114         114           Madhya Pradesh         112         187         114         114           Madhya Pradesh         112         147         124         735           Madhya Pradesh         112         187         148         148           Maghadhya Pradesh         142         145         132         146           Maghalaya         54         45         55         110           Maghalad         74         72   | 63 63   | 540        |              | 0.0     |      |          | Total | ם<br>ס | ,      | lotal | Маје  | Female      | Total | Male  | Female     | Total  |
| Arunachal Pradesh         98         56         80         240           Assam         226         223         45         1175           Bihar         326         326         1204         1105           Chattisgarh         112         116         63         524           Delhi         78         78         78         402           Gujarat & Daman & Diu         226         178         110         78           Himachal Pradesh         102         102         0         500           Jak         130         117         66         560           Himachal Pradesh         102         102         0         500           Jak         130         117         66         560           Jak         130         117         66         560           Jak         130         117         66         560           Madhya Pradesh         112         187         132         78           Meghalaya         54         45         55         110           Mizoram         52         40         170         110           Madiyar         60         56         136         136<  | 63 65   | 0,00       | 520          | 220     |      | 511      | 511   |        | 521    | 521   | 70    | 603         | 673   | 70    | 2692       | 2765   |
| Assam         226         223         45         1175           Bihar         326         326         1204           Chattisgarh         122         116         63         524           Delhi         78         78         52         402           Gujarat & Daman & Diu         226         178         110         783           Haryana         158         158         30         849           Himachal Pradesh         102         102         0         500           18K         130         117         66         560           1harkhand         176         147         124         735           Karala & Lakshdweep         128         126         130         148           Madnya Pradesh         412         368         169         1788           Madnya Pradesh         412         368         169         1788           Madnya Pradesh         412         368         169         1788           Madnya Pradesh         412         368         169         178           Madnya Padesh         412         368         169         178           Magaland         74         75         <  | 63  | 320        | 69 221       | 290     | 88   | 264      | 352   | 28     | 222    | 280   | 125   | 411         | 536   | 420   | 1358       | 1778   |
| Bihar         326         326         126         1204           Chattisgarh         122         116         63         524           Delhi         78         78         52         402           Gujarat & Daman & Diu         226         178         110         783           Hanyana         158         188         30         849           Himachal Pradesh         102         102         0         500           Jharkhand         176         147         124         735           Kerala & Lakshdweep         128         112         768           Macharashtra & Goa         308         1425         113         114           Madhya Pradesh         412         368         169         178           Maharashtra & Goa         308         1425         132         78           Maharashtra & Goa         308         1425         130         170           Majadland         52         40         170         170           Nizoram         52         40         170         180           Orissa         218         22         40         170           Rajasthan         32         22  | 63  | 1220       | 81 1105      | 1186    | 199  | 1089     | 1288  | 151    | 1130   | 1281  | 278   | 1199        | 1477  | 805   | 5870       | 9299   |
| Chattisgarh         122         116         63         524           Delhi         78         78         52         402           Gujarat & Daman & Diu         226         178         110         783           Haryana         158         158         30         849           Himachal Pradesh         102         102         0         500           Jak         130         117         66         560           Jharkhand         176         147         124         735           Kerala & Lakshdweep         128         126         178         114           Madhya Pradesh         412         368         169         1788           Maharashtra & Goa         308         308         1425         1320           Majalandr         52         40         170         170           Nagaland         74         72         49         186           Orrissa         218         171         376         186           Orrissa         218         27         49         186           Orrissa         210         25         29         1376           Sikkim         36         120  | 63  | 1204       | 21           | 21      |      | 328      | 328   |        | 2306   | 2306  |       | 2161        | 2161  | 0     | 6020       | 6020   |
| Delhi         78         78         52         402           Gujarat & Daman & Diu         226         178         110         783           Haryana         158         158         30         849           Himachal Pradesh         102         102         0         500           19&         176         147         124         735           Karnataka         176         147         124         758           Karnataka         112         187         114         114           Madhya Pradesh         412         368         169         1788           Madhya Pradesh         412         368         169         1788           Madhya Pradesh         54         55         110         178           Madhya Pradesh         54         55         110         178           Madhya Pradesh         54         55         110         170           Majaland         74         72         49         186           Orissa         218         27         249         186           Punjab & Chandigarh         170         170         164         164           Telangana         80         12  | 25  | 287        | 442          | 442     |      | 452      | 452   |        | 359    | 359   | 55    | 422         | 477   | 118   | 2199       | 2317   |
| Gujarat & Daman & Diu         226         178         110         783           Haryana         158         158         30         849           Himachal Pradesh         102         102         0         500           Jakk         130         117         66         560           Jharkhand         176         147         124         735           Kerala & Lakshdweep         128         126         114           Madhya Pradesh         412         368         169         1788           Maharashtra & Goa         308         308         1425         1320           Maharashtra & Goa         308         308         1425         1320           Majaland         54         45         55         110           Maghalaya         52         40         170         170           Nagaland         74         72         49         186           Orrissa         218         21         1520           Punjab & Chandigarh         170         170         15         1520           Rajasthan         266         254         292         1376         253         164           Talangana         80<   |   | 454        | 360 390      | 426     | 51   | 366      | 417   | 61     | 322    | 383   | 48    | 503         | 551   | 248   | 1983       | 2231   |
| Haryana         158         158         30         849           Himachal Pradesh         102         102         0         500           Jakk         130         117         66         560           Jharkhand         176         147         124         735           Karnataka         212         187         132         768           Karnataka         212         187         132         768           Madhya Pradesh         412         368         169         1788           Madhya Pradesh         412         368         169         1788           Madhya Pradesh         412         368         169         1788           Madhya Pradesh         54         45         55         110           Madhya Pradesh         54         45         55         110           Majaland         52         40         170         186           Orissa         218         21         49         186           Orissa         210         170         15         1520           Rajasthan         266         254         292         1376           Telangana         80         120         <   | 110   | 893        | 81 771       | 852     | 83   | 684      | 797   | 8      | 885    | 696   | 152   | 964         | 1116  | 510   | 4087       | 4597   |
| Himachal Pradesh         102         102         0         500           Jakk         130         117         66         560           Jharkhand         176         147         124         735           Karnataka         212         187         132         768           Kerala & Lakshdweep         128         126         114           Madhya Pradesh         412         368         169         1788           Maharashtra & Goa         308         308         1425         1320           Manipur         92         92         171         358           Meghalaya         54         45         55         110           Meghalaya         52         40         170         170           Nagaland         74         72         49         186           Orissa         218         210         335         875           Punjab & Chandigarh         170         170         15         1520           Rajasthan         266         254         292         1376           Sikkim         32         26         27         60         580           Trainil Nadu & Pondicherry         280  | 30  | 879        | 39 858       | 897     | 59   | 870      | 929   | 43     | 879    | 922   | 25    | 943         | 896   | 196   | 4399       | 4595   |
| Jakk         130         117         66         560           Jharkhand         176         147         124         735           Karnataka         212         187         132         768           Karnataka         128         126         131         114           Madhya Pradesh         412         368         169         1788           Maharashtra & Goa         308         308         1425         1320           Manipur         92         92         171         358           Manipur         52         40         170         170           Nagaland         74         72         49         186           Orissa         218         210         335         875           Punjab & Chandigarh         170         170         15         1520           Rajasthan         266         254         292         1376           Sikkim         32         29         71         64           Telangana         80         120         580           Tripura         38         38         166           Tripura         38         166         273           Tripural  | 0   | 200        | 100          | 100     |      | 20       | 20    |        | 029    | 650   |       | 1760        | 1760  | 0     | 3060       | 3060   |
| Jharkhand         176         147         124         735           Karnataka         212         187         132         768           Kerala & Lakshdweep         128         126         131         114           Madhya Pradesh         412         368         169         1788           Maharashtra & Goa         308         308         1425         1320           Manipur         92         92         171         358           Meghalaya         54         45         55         110           Mizoram         52         40         170         170           Nagaland         74         72         49         186           Orissa         218         210         335         875           Punjab & Chandigarh         170         170         15         1520           Rajasthan         266         254         292         1376           Sikkim         32         29         71         64           Tamil Nadu & Pondicherry         280         253         261         1699           Tripura         38         38         166         273           Manisan         38         166<  | 99  | 979        | 15 366       | 381     | 36   | 564      | 009   |        | 570    | 570   | 71    | 764         | 835   | 188   | 2834       | 3022   |
| Karnataka     212     187     132     768       Kerala & Lakshdweep     128     126     131     114       Madhya Pradesh     412     368     169     1788       Maharashtra & Goa     308     308     1425     1320       Manipur     92     92     171     358       Manipur     52     40     170     170       Nagaland     74     72     49     186       Orissa     218     210     335     875       Punjab & Chandigarh     170     170     15     1520       Rajasthan     266     254     292     1376       Sikkim     32     29     71     64       Telangana     80     120     60     580       Tripura     38     38     166   | 124   | 829        | 75 704       | 779     | 28   | 722      | 780   | 71     | 642    | 713   | 151   | 698         | 1020  | 479   | 3672       | 4151   |
| Kerala & Lakshdweep     128     126     131     114       Madhya Pradesh     412     368     169     1788       Maharashtra & Goa     308     308     1425     1320       Manipur     92     92     171     358       Meghalaya     54     45     55     110       Mizoram     52     40     170       Nagaland     74     72     49     186       Orrissa     218     210     335     875       Punjab & Chandigarh     170     170     15     1520       Rajasthan     266     254     292     1376       Sikkim     32     29     71     64       Tamil Nadu & Pondicherry     280     253     261     1699       Telangana     80     120     580       Tripura     38     38     166  | 132   | 006        | 88 552       | 640     | 69   | 611      | 089   | 110    | 1511   | 1621  | 246   | 1014        | 1260  | 672   | 4552       | 5224   |
| Madhya Pradesh         412         368         169         1788           Maharashtra & Goa         308         308         1425         1320           Maharashtra & Goa         308         1425         1320           Manipur         52         45         55         110           Mizoram         52         40         170         170           Nagaland         74         72         49         186           Orissa         218         210         335         875           Punjab & Chandigarh         170         170         15         1520           Rajasthan         266         254         292         1376           Sikkim         32         26         71         64           Tamil Nadu & Pondicherry         280         253         261         1699           Tripura         38         38         166         580           Tripura         38         38         166  | 131   | 245        | 42 210       | 252     | 63   | 310      | 373   | 120    | 252    | 672   | 182   | 836         | 1018  | 538   | 2022       | 2560   |
| Maharashtra & Goa         308         308         1425         1320           Manipur         92         92         171         358           Meghalaya         54         45         55         110           Mizoram         52         40         170         170           Nagaland         74         72         49         186           Orrissa         218         210         335         875           Punjab & Chandigarh         170         170         15         1520           Rajasthan         266         254         292         1376           Sikkim         32         29         71         64           Tamil Nadu & Pondicherry         280         253         261         1699           Tripura         38         38         166         580   | 169   | 1957       | 79 1672      | 1751    | 110  | 1466     | 1576  | 115    | 1776   | 1891  | 134   | 1892        | 2026  | 209   | 8594       | 9201   |
| Manipur         92         92         171         358           Meghalaya         54         45         55         110           Mizoram         52         40         7         170           Nagaland         74         72         49         186           Orissa         218         210         335         875           Punjab & Chandigarh         170         170         15         1520           Rajasthan         266         254         292         1376           Sikkim         32         29         71         64           Tamil Nadu & Pondicherry         280         253         261         1699           Tripura         38         38         166         580           Tripura         38         38         166  | 1425  | 2745 13    | 1389 1288    | 2677    | 1440 | 1197     | 2637  | 1299   | 1369   | 2668  | 1577  | 1441        | 3018  | 7130  | 6615       | 13745  |
| Meghalaya         54         45         55         110           Mizoram         52         40         170         170           Nagaland         74         72         49         186           Orissa         218         210         335         875           Punjab & Chandigarh         170         170         15         1520           Rajasthan         266         254         292         1376           Sikkim         32         29         71         64           Tamil Nadu & Pondicherry         280         253         261         1699           Tripura         38         120         580         580           Tripura         38         38         166   | 171   | 529        | 149 330      | 479     | 147  | 324      | 471   | 150    | 336    | 486   | 243   | 392         | 635   | 860   | 1740       | 2600   |
| Mizoram         52         40         170           Nagaland         74         72         49         186           Orissa         218         210         335         875           Punjab & Chandigarh         170         170         15         1520           Rajasthan         266         254         292         1376           Sikkim         32         29         71         64           Tamil Nadu & Pondicherry         280         253         261         1699           Tripura         38         38         166         580           Tripura         38         38         166         570   | 55  | 165        | 52 90        | 142     | 42   | 125      | 167   | 30     | 110    | 140   | 75    | 244         | 319   | 254   | 629        | 933    |
| Nagaland         74         72         49         186           Orissa         218         210         335         875           Punjab & Chandigarh         170         170         15         1520           Rajasthan         266         254         292         1376           Sikkim         32         29         71         64           Tamil Nadu & Pondicherry         280         253         261         1699           Tripura         38         120         580         1166   |   | 170        | 10 124       | 134     |      | 135      | 135   |        | 171    | 171   | 10    | 230         | 240   | 20    | 830        | 850    |
| Orissa         218         210         335         875           Punjab & Chandigarh         170         170         15         1520           Rajasthan         266         254         292         1376           Sikkim         32         29         71         64           Tamil Nadu & Pondicherry         280         253         261         1699           Telangana         80         120         60         580           Tripura         38         38         166   | 49  | 235        | 188          | 188     |      | 166      | 166   | 71     | 175    | 246   |       | 245         | 245   | 120   | 096        | 1080   |
| Punjab & Chandigarh     170     170     1520       Rajasthan     266     254     292     1376       Sikkim     32     29     71     64       Tamil Nadu & Pondicherry     280     253     261     1699       Telangana     80     120     60     580       Tripura     38     38     166   | 335   | 1210 3     | 320 864      | 1184    | 310  | 838      | 1148  | 355    | 846    | 1201  | 342   | 910         | 1252  | 1662  | 4333       | 5995   |
| Rajasthan     266     254     292     1376       Sikkim     32     29     71     64       Tamil Nadu & Pondicherry     280     253     261     1699       Telangana     80     120     60     580       Tripura     38     38     166  | 15  | 1535       |              | 0       | 2    | 15       | 17    |        |        | 0     | 48    | 3216        | 3264  | 65    | 4751       | 4816   |
| Sikkim     32     29     71     64       Tamil Nadu & Pondicherry     280     253     261     1699     1       Telangana     80     120     60     580     1       Tripura     38     38     166     166   | 292   | 1668 1     | 54 422       | 276     | 78   | 248      | 326   | 327    | 2487   | 2814  | 247   | 1051        | 1298  | 1098  | 5584       | 6682   |
| Tamil Nadu & Pondicherry         280         253         261         1699           Telangana         80         120         60         580           Tripura         38         38         166  | 71  | 135        | 42 71        | 113     | 17   | 99       | 83    |        | 80     | 80    | 108   | 186         | 294   | 238   | 467        | 705    |
| Telangana 80 120 60 580 Tripura 38 38 166  | 261   | 1960       | 98 62        | 165     | 63   | 126      | 189   | 117    | 2157   | 2274  | 158   | 850         | 1008  | 706   | 5067       | 5773   |
| Tripura 38 38 166  | 09  | 640        | 602          | 605     |      | 644      | 644   |        | 348    | 348   | 112   | 099         | 772   | 172   | 2834       | 3006   |
| 207  |   | 166        | 215          | 215     |      | 233      | 233   |        | 142    | 142   | 23    | 236         | 259   | 23    | 992        | 1015   |
| 351 25/0   | 500 351 2570                                  | 2921 3     | 331 2478     | 2809    | 325  | 2560     | 2885  | 268    | 2305   | 2573  | 461   | 2940        | 3401  | 1736  | 12853      | 14589  |
| 28 Uttrakhand 98 75 20 344 36-   | 20  | 364        | 274          | 274     | 2    | 138      | 140   | 19     | 174    | 193   | 110   | 911         | 1021  | 151   | 1851       | 2002   |
| 29 West Bengal & A& N 262 258 189 1271 146   | 189   | 1460       | 168 610      | 8//     | 144  | 711      | 855   | 178    | 896    | 1146  | 573   | 1744        | 2317  | 1252  | 5304       | 9229   |
| Total 5112 4751 4296 22791 2708  | 4296 22791                                    | 27087 3299 | 99 15574     | 18873   | 3386 | 15813    | 19199 | 3627   | 23993  | 27620 | 5624  | 29597       | 35221 | 20338 | 108205     | 128543 |



Annexure - 6

District Level Promotion of Folk, Art & Cultural Programme & Yuva Kriti

| 6         Total         Male         Female         Total         Male           70         400         195         164         359         175           80         400         195         164         359         175           11         0         38         108         189           11         119         0         28         177         29         178           10         400         255         132         387         248           11         119         0         28         10         28           11         113         88         214         422         218           12         475         208         214         422         218           13         250         115         88         203         124           14         1531         169         150         128         120         128           15         440         25         120         134         42         205         134           15         45         123         145         87         143         143           16         130         130         23  | ;   |                          |     | ,        |       | SC     |       |      | ST     |       |      | Minority |       |       | OBC    |       | Ğ     | Gen./Others | S     |       | Grand Total | E      |
|--|-----|--------------------------|-----|----------|-------|--------|-------|------|--------|-------|------|----------|-------|-------|--------|-------|-------|-------------|-------|-------|-------------|--------|
| Authorize Problem  | n S | State                    | Set | Achieved | Male  | Female | Total | Male | Female | Total | Male | Female   | Total | Male  | Female | Total | Male  | Female      | Total | Male  | Female      | Total  |
| According frozential frozzential frozzenti | н   | Andhra Pradesh           | 14  | 12       | 210   |        | 400   | 195  | 164    | 359   | 175  | 148      | 323   | 157   | 199    | 356   | 315   | 267         | 582   | 1052  | 896         | 2020   |
| Methods of the continuence o                        | 2   | Arunachal Pradesh        | 15  | 0        |       |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |       |        | 0     |       |             | 0     | 0     | 0           | 0      |
| Obligation Problems         3         1.05         1.05         1.05         1.05         1.05         1.05         1.05         1.05         1.05         1.05         1.05         1.05         1.05         1.05         1.05         2.05  | 3   | Assam                    | 27  | 25       | 41    | 33     | 74    | 70   | 38     | 108   | 189  | 29       | 248   | 500   | 181    | 390   | 723   | 603         | 1326  | 1253  | 921         | 2174   |
| Definition by the contribution of the contribution by the contribu | 4   | Bihar                    | 38  | 38       | 108   |        | 119   |      |        | 0     | 28   | 4        | 32    | 322   | 53     | 375   | 332   | 34          | 366   | 790   | 102         | 892    |
| Helphane No. 1   | 2   | Chattisgarh              | 16  | 14       | 260   |        | 400   | 255  | 132    | 387   | 248  | 129      | 377   | 267   | 166    | 433   | 285   | 151         | 436   | 1315  | 718         | 2033   |
| Honorable Growth & Damen & Dun (all properties)         11         236         475         286         475         287         475         489         489         489         689         689         189         689 <th>9</th> <td>Delhi</td> <td>6</td> <td>6</td> <td>125</td> <td></td> <td>305</td> <td>122</td> <td>177</td> <td>299</td> <td>128</td> <td>146</td> <td>274</td> <td>119</td> <td>189</td> <td>308</td> <td>143</td> <td>215</td> <td>358</td> <td>637</td> <td>206</td> <td>1544</td>   | 9   | Delhi                    | 6   | 6        | 125   |        | 305   | 122  | 177    | 299   | 128  | 146      | 274   | 119   | 189    | 308   | 143   | 215         | 358   | 637   | 206         | 1544   |
| Hamerhal Francesty S 12 S 12 S 15 S 15 S 15 S 15 S 15 S 15   | 7   | Gujarat & Daman & Diu    | 28  | 17       | 230   |        | 475   | 208  | 214    | 422   | 218  | 261      | 479   | 227   | 227    | 454   | 281   | 296         | 577   | 1164  | 1243        | 2407   |
| Methods of the control of th                        | ∞   | Haryana                  | 19  | 19       | 890   |        | 1531  | 169  |        | 169   | 150  | 17       | 167   | 488   | 695    | 1183  | 619   | 873         | 1492  | 2316  | 2226        | 4542   |
| Meximative         11         120         115         220         220         115         220         1  | 9   | Himachal Pradesh         | 12  | 12       | 20    |        | 70    | 30   | 20     | 80    |      | 250      | 250   | 100   | 250    | 350   | 338   | 240         | 578   | 488   | 840         | 1328   |
| Methodrich of Sein Sign (1)         496         360         496         476<   | 10  | J&K                      | 14  | 10       | 137   | 113    | 250   | 115  | 88     | 203   | 124  | 89       | 192   | 184   | 96     | 280   | 297   | 198         | 495   | 857   | 563         | 1420   |
| Medicalested Series         12         6.6         6.9         6.8         6.10  | 11  | Jharkhand                | 22  | 17       | 490   |        | 850   | 474  | 322    | 296   | 428  | 348      | 776   | 478   | 327    | 805   | 909   | 455         | 1060  | 2475  | 1812        | 4287   |
| Methales brinked brink of the color of the colo                        | 12  | Karnataka                | 27  | 25       | 069   |        | 1230  | 889  | 520    | 1208  | 512  | 510      | 1022  | 669   | 410    | 1109  | 828   | 725         | 1583  | 3447  | 2705        | 6152   |
| Methy Pradesh         48  | 13  | Kerala & Lakshdweep      | 16  | 15       | 213   | 105    | 318   | 163  | 45     | 202   | 137  | 40       | 177   | 114   | 72     | 186   | 241   | 87          | 328   | 898   | 346         | 1214   |
| Meghalayer         3.6         3.5         6.4         1.3         6.0         1.3         6.9         1.3         4.9         1.3         6.9         1.3         4.9         1.3         6.9         1.3         1.1         1.3   | 14  | Madhya Pradesh           | 48  | 36       | 910   |        | 1370  | 810  | 335    | 1145  | 874  | 418      | 1292  | 759   | 451    | 1210  | 086   | 637         | 1617  | 4333  | 2301        | 6634   |
| Machinare Ministry         10         7         48         12         69         53         112         28         112         48         12 <th>15</th> <td>Maharashtra &amp; Goa</td> <td>36</td> <td>35</td> <td>2640</td> <td></td> <td>4010</td> <td>2370</td> <td>1320</td> <td>3690</td> <td>2310</td> <td>1180</td> <td>3490</td> <td>2588</td> <td>1247</td> <td>3835</td> <td>2750</td> <td>1731</td> <td>4481</td> <td>12658</td> <td>6848</td> <td>19506</td>   | 15  | Maharashtra & Goa        | 36  | 35       | 2640  |        | 4010  | 2370 | 1320   | 3690  | 2310 | 1180     | 3490  | 2588  | 1247   | 3835  | 2750  | 1731        | 4481  | 12658 | 6848        | 19506  |
| Meghalaya         7         48         7         48         7         48         7         48         7         48         7         48         7         48         7         48         15         48         15         48         15         48         15         48         15         48         15         48         15         48         15         48         15         48         15         48         15         48         15         48 </th <th>16</th> <td>Manipur</td> <td>10</td> <td>7</td> <td>102</td> <td></td> <td>159</td> <td>45</td> <td>31</td> <td>73</td> <td>69</td> <td>53</td> <td>122</td> <td>28</td> <td>18</td> <td>46</td> <td>78</td> <td>54</td> <td>132</td> <td>319</td> <td>213</td> <td>532</td>   | 16  | Manipur                  | 10  | 7        | 102   |        | 159   | 45   | 31     | 73    | 69   | 53       | 122   | 28    | 18     | 46    | 78    | 54          | 132   | 319   | 213         | 532    |
| Mode and the control of the                         | 17  | Meghalaya                | 7   | 5        | 48    |        | 120   | 28   | 20     | 48    | 15   |          | 15    | 19    | 32     | 51    | 39    | 29          | 106   | 149   | 191         | 340    |
| Modelland         11         34         345         685         284         473         279         775         775         785         785         785         787  | 18  | Mizoram                  | 8   | 8        | 150   |        | 390   | 124  | 205    | 329   | 177  | 190      | 367   | 134   | 247    | 381   | 175   | 310         | 485   | 260   | 1192        | 1952   |
| Orissa         30         440         170         610         410         115         525         311         168         499         149         496         440         440         440         440         440         440         440         450         450         450         440         450         440         450 </th <th>19</th> <td>Nagaland</td> <td>11</td> <td>11</td> <td>340</td> <td></td> <td>685</td> <td>228</td> <td>245</td> <td>473</td> <td>278</td> <td>297</td> <td>575</td> <td>313</td> <td>282</td> <td>262</td> <td>548</td> <td>378</td> <td>976</td> <td>1707</td> <td>1547</td> <td>3254</td>   | 19  | Nagaland                 | 11  | 11       | 340   |        | 685   | 228  | 245    | 473   | 278  | 297      | 575   | 313   | 282    | 262   | 548   | 378         | 976   | 1707  | 1547        | 3254   |
| Punjab & Chandigarth         21         2797         1398         4190         424         1794         215         360         810         1205         1205         1305         1407         845         1204         215         360         2105         360         1207         360  | 20  | Orissa                   | 30  | 30       | 440   |        | 610   | 410  | 115    | 525   | 311  | 168      | 479   | 349   | 147    | 496   | 640   | 250         | 890   | 2150  | 850         | 3000   |
| Sakkim         32         31         131         472         1784         4794         1794         1794         1794         189         1804  | 21  | Punjab & Chandigarh      | 21  | 21       | 2797  | 1393   | 4190  |      |        | 0     | 550  | 300      | 850   | 2105  | 1250   | 3355  | 7048  | 1407        | 8455  | 12500 | 4350        | 16850  |
| Stikkim         4 </th <th>22</th> <td>Rajasthan</td> <td>32</td> <td>31</td> <td>1315</td> <td></td> <td>1787</td> <td>1340</td> <td>454</td> <td>1794</td> <td>215</td> <td>154</td> <td>369</td> <td>1809</td> <td>1273</td> <td>3082</td> <td>1216</td> <td>818</td> <td>2034</td> <td>5895</td> <td>3171</td> <td>9906</td>   | 22  | Rajasthan                | 32  | 31       | 1315  |        | 1787  | 1340 | 454    | 1794  | 215  | 154      | 369   | 1809  | 1273   | 3082  | 1216  | 818         | 2034  | 5895  | 3171        | 9906   |
| Triburate & Pondicherry         32         6.25         8.86         1483         9.4         7.25         6.16         1.86         9.80         6.14         1.89         6.14         1.89         6.16         1.89         6.16         1.89         6.16         1.89         1.80         1.89         1.80<   | 23  | Sikkim                   | 4   | 4        |       |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |       |        | 0     | 80    | 119         | 199   | 08    | 119         | 199    |
| Telangana         10         8         250         110         360         237         66         303         288         91         379         241         110         351         248         110         351         126         446         126         112         58         86         86         77         163         134         190         324         446         477           Uttar Pradesh         71         48         116         78         116         78         116         78         164         108         615         169         165         1712         126         1712         126         1712         126         1712         126         1712         126         1712         189         389         5  | 24  | Tamil Nadu & Pondicherry | 32  | 32       | 625   |        | 1483  | 98   | 79     | 173   | 122  | 64       | 186   | 086   | 614    | 1594  | 435   | 425         | 860   | 2361  | 2175        | 4536   |
| Tripura         4         105         128         23         63         49         112         58         28         8         8         8         6         7         163         134         194         446         447         1164         78         1164         78         1164         1080         615         1695         1050         662         1712         1269         1090         2359         5489         3895         589         489         486         867         168         167         168         168         168         168         168         168         168         168         168         168         168         168         168   | 25  | Telangana                | 10  | 8        | 250   |        | 360   | 237  | 99     | 303   | 288  | 91       | 379   | 241   | 110    | 351   | 248   | 196         | 444   | 1264  | 573         | 1837   |
| Uttrakhand         13         148         156         154         157         157         158         158         1674         1679         16  | 26  | Tripura                  | 4   | 4        | 105   |        | 233   | 63   | 49     | 112   | 28   | 28       | 98    | 98    | 77     | 163   | 134   | 190         | 324   | 446   | 472         | 918    |
| Uttrakhand         13         16         155         318         45         52         10         17         18         18         18         10         16         18   | 27  | Uttar Pradesh            | 71  | 48       | 1164  | 780    | 1944  | 976  | 748    | 1674  | 1080 | 615      | 1695  | 1050  | 662    | 1712  | 1269  | 1090        | 2359  | 5489  | 3895        | 9384   |
| West Bengal & A.B. N.         23         53         6409         383         792         241         154         395         256         85         1471         14731         4830         2369         2152         34098         4869   | 28  | Uttrakhand               | 13  | 10       |       |        | 318   | 49   | 54     | 103   | 110  | 77       | 187   | 19    | 48     | 29    | 194   | 256         | 450   | 535   | 290         | 1125   |
| 623 531 14872 9601 24473 9451 5622 15073 9050 5697 14747 14330 9359 23689 21869 12229 34098 69698 42650  | 29  | West Bengal & A& N       | 29  | 28       | 409   |        | 792   | 241  | 154    | 395   | 256  | 82       | 338   | 486   | 36     | 522   | 866   | 157         | 1155  | 2390  | 812         | 3202   |
|  |     | Total                    | 623 | 531      | 14872 | 1096   | 24473 | 9451 | 5622   | 15073 | 9050 | 2692     | 14747 | 14330 |        |       | 21869 | 12229       | 34098 | 86969 | 42650       | 112348 |



| S  |                          | Target | Target |        | SC     |        |        | ST     |        |        | Minority |        |        | OBC    |       | 8      | Gen./Others | S      |        | <b>Grand Total</b> | Ital    |
|----|--------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|----------|--------|--------|--------|-------|--------|-------------|--------|--------|--------------------|---------|
| No | State                    | Set    |        | Male   | Female | Total  | Male   | Female | Total  | Male   | Female   | Total  | Male   | Female | Total | Male   | Female      | Total  | Male   | Female             | Total   |
| 1  | Andhra Pradesh           | 280    | 277    | 2698   | 1680   | 4378   | 2457   | 1445   | 3902   | 2394   | 1677     | 4071   | 2569   | 1568   | 4137  | 2866   | 2044        | 4910   | 12984  | 8414               | 21398   |
| 2  | Arunachal Pradesh        | 300    | 54     | 1173   | 470    | 1643   | 1079   | 168    | 1090   | 1058   | 455      | 1513   | 1175   | 363    | 1538  | 1185   | 974         | 2159   | 5670   | 2430               | 8100    |
| e  | Assam                    | 540    | 531    | 1742   | 892    | 2634   | 1866   | 832    | 2698   | 2114   | 1231     | 3345   | 2254   | 1474   | 3728  | 3974   | 4492        | 8466   | 12334  | 9045               | 21379   |
| 4  | Bihar                    | 260    | 798    | 6489   | 984    | 7473   | 122    |        | 122    | 2672   | 498      | 3170   | 27894  | 5487   | 33381 | 24493  | 5343        | 29836  | 61670  | 12312              | 73982   |
| 2  | Chattisgarh              | 320    | 308    | 2946   | 1740   | 4686   | 2455   | 1678   | 4133   | 2366   | 1355     | 3721   | 2589   | 1488   | 4077  | 3204   | 2426        | 5630   | 13560  | 8687               | 22247   |
| 9  | Delhi                    | 180    | 225    |        |        | 4404   | 2080   | 1988   | 4068   | 2079   | 1847     | 3926   | 1889   | 2268   | 4157  | 2480   | 2472        | 4952   | 10664  | 10843              | 21507   |
| 7  | Gujarat & Daman & Diu    | 260    | 472    | 5789   | 4955   | 10744  | 5584   | 4977   | 10561  | 5497   | 4585     | 10082  | 5278   | 4187   | 9465  | 8699   | 5989        | 12647  | 28806  | 24693              | 53499   |
| 8  | Haryana                  | 380    | 514    | 7350   | 11661  | 19011  | 8316   | 9875   | 18191  | 279    | 218      | 497    | 17140  | 10941  | 28081 | 16972  | 1817        | 18789  | 50057  | 34512              | 84569   |
| 6  | Himachal Pradesh         | 240    | 240    | 1500   | 1000   | 2500   | 200    | 400    | 006    | 100    | 100      | 200    | 200    | 300    | 800   | 3288   | 2094        | 5382   | 5888   | 3894               | 9782    |
| 10 | J&K                      | 280    | 207    | 1013   | 785    | 1798   | 3362   | 3122   | 6484   | 459    | 437      | 968    | 671    | 467    | 1138  | 3890   | 2047        | 5937   | 9395   | 6858               | 16253   |
| 11 | Jharkhand                | 440    | 445    | 7160   | 4581   | 11741  | 0869   | 3210   | 10190  | 6728   | 3118     | 9846   | 6749   | 3698   | 10447 | 8214   | 5124        | 13338  | 35831  | 19731              | 55562   |
| 12 | Karnataka                | 540    | 467    | 5129   | 3895   | 9024   | 2652   | 2429   | 5081   | 3698   | 3666     | 6364   | 6154   | 5693   | 11847 | 6551   | 5298        | 11849  | 24560  | 20213              | 44773   |
| 13 | Kerala & Lakshdweep      | 320    | 400    |        | 1105   | 2908   | 843    | 633    | 1476   | 2375   | 1160     | 3535   | 6158   | 1405   | 7563  | 7946   | 3559        | 11505  | 19125  | 7862               | 26987   |
| 14 | Madhya Pradesh           | 096    | 867    | 23504  | 9180   | 32684  | 22587  | 6668   | 31586  | 21779  | 7468     | 29247  | 22698  | 9805   | 32503 | 24180  | 10447       | 34627  | 114748 | 45899              | 160647  |
| 15 | Maharashtra & Goa        | 720    | 904    | 8044   | 4760   | 12804  | 7451   | 3851   | 11302  | 7256   | 4201     | 11457  | 7185   | 3922   | 11107 | 8560   | 4620        | 13180  | 38496  | 21354              | 59850   |
| 16 | Manipur                  | 200    | 200    | 2490   | 1770   | 4260   | 2468   | 1746   | 4214   | 2505   | 1733     | 4238   | 2347   | 1655   | 4002  | 2721   | 1986        | 4707   | 12531  | 0688               | 21421   |
| 17 | Meghalaya                | 140    | 135    | 610    | 225    | 835    | 524    | 199    | 723    | 577    | 148      | 725    | 489    | 169    | 658   | 765    | 371         | 1136   | 2962   | 1112               | 4077    |
| 18 | Mizoram                  | 160    | 160    | 7990   | 4180   | 12170  | 7425   | 4090   | 11515  | 7811   | 3996     | 11807  | 7104   | 4191   | 11295 | 8544   | 4450        | 12994  | 38874  | 20907              | 59781   |
| 19 | Nagaland                 | 220    | 222    | 2961   | 1615   | 4576   | 2445   | 1445   | 3890   | 2447   | 1670     | 4117   | 2844   | 1363   | 4207  | 3478   | 1982        | 5460   | 14175  | 8075               | 22250   |
| 50 | Orissa                   | 900    | 718    | 5025   | 3260   | 8285   | 4988   | 2963   | 7951   | 4931   | 3171     | 8102   | 4982   | 2884   | 2866  | 5204   | 3492        | 8696   | 25130  | 15770              | 40900   |
|    | Punjab & Chandigarh      | 420    | 428    | 25540  | 6635   | 32175  | 4048   | 4251   | 8299   | 1252   | 450      | 1702   | 4460   | 5746   | 10206 | 30987  | 21105       | 52092  | 66287  | 38187              | 104474  |
| 22 | Rajasthan                | 640    | 089    | 18785  | 7023   | 25808  | 11015  | 6112   | 17127  | 2533   | 6822     | 9355   | 32012  | 13298  | 45310 | 20443  | 9658        | 30101  | 84788  | 42913              | 127701  |
| 23 | Sikkim                   | 80     | 45     | 260    | 410    | 970    | 489    | 358    | 847    | 477    | 326      | 803    | 542    | 400    | 942   | 268    | 209         | 1375   | 2836   | 2101               | 4937    |
| 54 | Tamil Nadu & Pondicherry | 640    | 611    | 10963  | 5530   | 16493  | 1540   | 117    | 1657   | 619    | 434      | 1053   | 7045   | 9259   | 13571 | 5435   | 3061        | 8496   | 26480  | 16188              | 42668   |
| 25 | Telangana                | 200    | 174    | 1160   | 260    | 1720   | 1069   | 340    | 1409   | 1058   | 554      | 1612   | 1194   | 373    | 1567  | 1340   | 978         | 2318   | 5821   | 2805               | 8626    |
| 56 | Tripura                  | 80     | 80     | 890    | 520    | 1410   | 845    | 511    | 1356   | 877    | 482      | 1359   | 869    | 475    | 1344  | 971    | 614         | 1585   | 4452   | 2602               | 7054    |
| 27 | Uttar Pradesh            | 1420   | 1265   | 21338  | 10840  | 32178  | 202    | 10601  | 31553  | 20661  | 10875    | 31536  | 20990  | 10992  | 31982 | 21380  | 10502       | 31882  | 104931 | 54200              | 159131  |
|    | Uttrakhand               | 260    | 196    | 2815   | 2502   | 5317   | 1016   | 1014   | 2030   | 156    | 746      | 905    | 1845   | 1199   | 3044  | 2955   | 2507        | 5462   | 8818   | 7970               | 16788   |
| 53 | West Bengal & A& N       | 280    | 669    | 3620   | 1936   | 5556   | 1512   | 1074   | 2586   | 1748   | 1024     | 2772   | 3362   | 1180   | 4542  | 7855   | 1778        | 9633   | 18097  | 6992               | 25089   |
|    | Total                    | 12460  | 12322  | 183223 | 96962  | 280185 | 128280 | 78818  | 206941 | 108506 | 63447    | 171953 | 200988 | 103517 | 3E+05 | 237307 | 121837      | 359144 | 859973 | 465459             | 1325432 |
|    |                          |        |        |        |        |        |        |        |        |        |          |        |        |        |       |        |             |        |        |                    |         |



**District Youth Convention** 

N Y K S

| Andhras Prodesh         14         12         395         279         665         378         261         639         369         247         615         388           Anumachal Prodesh         15         12         224         120         344         266         133         401         661         217         878         581           Blaar         38         4987         1428         6415         428         842         1270         1492         82         156         864         842         1270         1492         881         1570         149         881         1570         149         881         1570         149         881         1570         149         881         1570         149         881         1570         149         881         1570         149         881         1470         1570         149  |     | State                  | Target<br>Set | Target<br>Achieved |       | SC   |      |      | ST  |      | Minority | ority |     | OBC | <u> </u>    |         | Gen./Others | Others |           | Gra    | Grand Total |        |
|--|-----|------------------------|---------------|--------------------|-------|------|------|------|-----|------|----------|-------|-----|-----|-------------|---------|-------------|--------|-----------|--------|-------------|--------|
| Section   15   15   15   15   15   15   15   1   | Auc | Ihra Pradesh           | 14            | 12                 | 395   | 270  | 999  | 378  | 261 | 639  |          |       |     |     | 259 (       | 647     | 448         | 310    | 758       | 1978   | 1347        | 3325   |
| Section   Sect   | Arr | ınachal Pradesh        | 15            |                    |       |      | 0    |      |     | 0    |          |       | 0   |     |             | 0       |             |        | 0         | 0      | 0           | 0      |
| Age and Age a  | Ass | sam                    | 27            | 25                 | 224   | 120  | 344  | 268  | 133 | 401  |          |       |     |     | 274 8       | 855     | 653 7       | 765 1  |           | 2424   | 1528        | 3952   |
| amily path         16         16         391         285         676         382         269         651         347         244         591         375           R Damana R Dlu         28         28         260         540         266         228         248         496         244         530         474         275           R Damana R Dlu         28         18         385         210         595         330         198         528         218         620         77            | ᇤ   | ar                     | 38            | 38                 | 4987  | 1428 | 6415 | 428  |     | 1270 | 1482     |       |     |     | 814 94      | 9456 5  | 5462 11     | 1162 6 | 6624 2    | 21001  | 4328        | 25329  |
| R Demand & Diu         SB         269         540         268         268         269         244         249         474         275         47         275           B Demand & Diu         28         118         385         110         595         330         198         528         118         16         380         277         380         277         380         277         380         277         380         277         380         277         380         277         380         277         380         277         380         277         380         277         380  | ਚੁੱ | attisgarh              | 16            | 16                 | 391   | 285  | 929  | 382  | 569 | 651  |          | 244   |     |     | 304         | 930     | 469         | 327    | 962       | 1915   | 1429        | 3344   |
| R Deman & Diu         28         118         385         120         595         330         198         528         118         380         277         1140         8         8         1         7         7         7         7         1140         8         1         7         7         7         1140         8         1         9         8         1         9         8         1         9         8         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1 <td>De</td> <td>lhi</td> <td>6</td> <td>6</td> <td>280</td> <td>260</td> <td>540</td> <td>268</td> <td>228</td> <td>496</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>218</td> <td>493</td> <td>329 4</td> <td>442</td> <td>771</td> <td>1396</td> <td>1378</td> <td>2774</td>  | De  | lhi                    | 6             | 6                  | 280   | 260  | 540  | 268  | 228 | 496  |          |       |     |     | 218         | 493     | 329 4       | 442    | 771       | 1396   | 1378        | 2774   |
| al Pradesh         19         1129         519         1648         9         7         7         7         1140           al Pradesh         12         12         120         200         350         118         150         208         77         77         77         82           and         12         12         120         200         350         1164         744         1908         1189         718         376         216           and         22         13         1180         75         121         77         77         77         77         78           and         22         13         1180         75         120         1164         744         1908         1189         718         1214         121         1190         205         1164         744         1908         118         718         121         121         1164         744         1908         118         718         121         119         205         125         225         225         224         121         119         240         72         46         114         38         413         414         30         30         30         <   | ng  | Daman &                | 28            | 18                 | 385   | 210  | 595  | 330  | 198 | 528  |          | 162   |     |     | 142         | 419     | 463 3       | 320    | 783       | 1673   | 1032        | 2705   |
| Indicaction of the production  | 모   | ryana                  | 19            | 19                 | 1129  | 519  | 1648 |      |     | 0    |          | 7     |     |     | 590 1       | 1730    | 1426 7      | 718 2  | 2144      | 3695   | 1834        | 5529   |
| had be brigged by the control of the | 莹   | nachal Pradesh         | 12            | 12                 | 150   | 200  | 350  | 118  | 150 | 268  |          | 77    | 77  |     | 128         | 210     | 620 5       | 580 1  | 1200      | 970    | 1135        | 2105   |
| Indicated         22         19         1189         75         1930         1164         744         1908         1189         718         1907         1214           Indicated         27         21         761         758         1519         515         539         1054         576         237         813         1431           Indicated         27         21         761         758         1519         512         151         353         621         359         1579         1341         1431           Indicated         16         16         422         325         747         162         191         359         1534         359         1534         359         1534         359         1534         359         1541         359         354         1362         354         1362         354         1362         354         1362         354         1362         354         1362         354         1362         354         1362         354         1362         354         1362         354         1362         354         1362         354         1372         354         1372         354         1372         354         1372         354 </td <td>38</td> <td>¥</td> <td>14</td> <td>11</td> <td>279</td> <td>221</td> <td>200</td> <td>908</td> <td></td> <td>1627</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>190</td> <td>406</td> <td>1237 4</td> <td>454 1</td> <td>1691</td> <td>2746</td> <td>1854</td> <td>4600</td>   | 38  | ¥                      | 14            | 11                 | 279   | 221  | 200  | 908  |     | 1627 |          |       |     |     | 190         | 406     | 1237 4      | 454 1  | 1691      | 2746   | 1854        | 4600   |
| Nea         27         21         761         758         1519         515         515         515         515         353         621         359         890         1254           Neakshdweep         16         16         422         325         747         162         191         353         621         359         980         1254           Intrackesh         48         38         147         575         2052         1369         522         1891         1438         541         1979         1341           shradesh         36         34         396         135         548         1303         948         394         1342         968           r         10         8         141         108         249         120         58         178         113         549         178         178         157         177           aya         2         44         121         119         240         72         69         141         108         394         123         124         394         123         48         66         141         58         48         100         101         58         48         100  | 뉴   | arkhand                | 22            | 19                 | 1180  | 750  | 1930 | 1164 |     | 1908 |          |       |     |     | 745 19      |         | 1267 7      |        | 2061      | 6014   | 3751        | 9765   |
| R Lakshdweep         16         42         325         747         162         191         353         621         359         189         1854           P Pradesh Altra & Goal         48         38         1477         575         2052         1369         522         1891         1438         541         1979         1341           shtra & Goal         36         34         1477         575         2052         1369         522         1891         1438         541         1979         1341           shtra & Goal         36         34         132         946         395         1355         955         348         1303         948         341         1372         949           n         10         8         141         108         249         120         56         141         58         141         168         249         120         56         141         58         148         150         150         57         49         170         58         45         100         103         58         171         240         250         451         451         451         452         452         452         451         158  | ਨ   | ırnataka               | 27            | 21                 | 761   | 758  | 1519 | 515  |     | 1054 |          |       |     |     | 863 22      | 2294 1  | 1176 10     | 1066 2 | 2242      | 4565   | 3565        | 8130   |
| Fibrical State & Goal State & Goal State & Soal State & Soal State & Soal State & Goal State & G | 조   | erala & Lakshdweep     | 16            | 16                 | 422   | 325  | 747  | 162  | 191 | 353  |          |       |     |     | 626 18      | 1880    | 1469 6      | 612 2  | 2081      | 3928   | 2113        | 6041   |
| shtra & Goal         36         394         1355         355         348         1303         948         394         132         968         395         1355         348         1303         948         394         1303         394         1342         368         137         127         368         177         127         368         178         112         65         117         127         127         127         127         368         188         188         118         118         118         124         289         141         58         48         106         66         177         127         127         127         127         127         127         127         127         128         128         128         128         128         128         129         127         247         996         1230         2226         978         128         663         223         224         128         224         123         224         224         226         225         263         888         662         286         230         230         230         230         230         230         230         230         230         230         230  | Σ̈́ | adhya Pradesh          | 48            | 38                 | 1477  | 575  | 2052 | 1369 |     | 1891 |          |       |     |     | 566 19      | 1907    | 1586 6      | 677 2  | 2263      | 7211   | 2881        | 10092  |
| r         10         8         141         108         249         120         58         178         112         65         177         127         127         128         128         129         120   | Ĕ   | iharashtra & Goa       | 36            | 34                 | 096   | 395  | 1355 | 955  |     | 1303 |          |       |     |     | 369 13      | 1337    | 984 4       | 479 1  | 1463      | 4815   | 1985        | 0089   |
| aya         7         4         121         119         240         72         69         141         58         48         106         66           n         8         8         135         124         259         55         45         100         103         50         153         77           nd         11         116         1312         2472         996         1230         2226         978         1286         2526         978         1286         262         264         106         1312         2472         996         1230         2226         978         1286         662         263         263         263         263         126         263         264         263         264         263 <th< td=""><td>Ψ</td><td>anipur</td><td>10</td><td>8</td><td>141</td><td>108</td><td>249</td><td>120</td><td>28</td><td>178</td><td>112</td><td>65</td><td></td><td>127</td><td></td><td>127</td><td>176 1</td><td>138</td><td>314</td><td>9/9</td><td>369</td><td>1045</td></th<>  | Ψ   | anipur                 | 10            | 8                  | 141   | 108  | 249  | 120  | 28  | 178  | 112      | 65    |     | 127 |             | 127     | 176 1       | 138    | 314       | 9/9    | 369         | 1045   |
| nd light short light should know light should kn | Σ   | ghalaya                | 7             | 4                  | 121   | 119  | 240  | 72   | 69  | 141  | 28       |       | 106 | 99  | 56          | 95      | 134         | 124    | 258       | 451    | 386         | 837    |
| nd         11         11         1160         1312         2472         996         1230         2226         978         1286         2264         1068         1068         1068         110         1160 <td>Ξ</td> <td>zoram</td> <td>8</td> <td>8</td> <td>135</td> <td>124</td> <td>259</td> <td>55</td> <td>45</td> <td>100</td> <td>103</td> <td></td> <td>153</td> <td>77</td> <td>49</td> <td>126</td> <td>129</td> <td>114</td> <td>243</td> <td>499</td> <td>382</td> <td>881</td>   | Ξ   | zoram                  | 8             | 8                  | 135   | 124  | 259  | 55   | 45  | 100  | 103      |       | 153 | 77  | 49          | 126     | 129         | 114    | 243       | 499    | 382         | 881    |
| & Chandigarth         21         689         306         995         663         221         884         625         263         888         662           & Chandigarth         21         1950         980         2930         73         651         648         30         678         978           and         32         31         854         157         1011         578         73         651         648         30         678         978           adu & Pondicherry         32         29         2076         1522         3598         618         78         1402         862         556         1418         1164         1164           ina         32         29         2076         1522         3598         618         784         1402         862         556         1418         1164         1164           ina         4         4         110         79         189         796         2354         168         748         247         474           and         11         60         1634         810         244         1558         796         2354         1689         748         247         1474      <  | Na  | galand                 | 11            | 11                 | 1160  | 1312 | 2472 |      |     | 2226 |          |       |     |     | 1210 23     | 2278 1. | 1269 13     | 1369 2 | 2638      | 5471   | 6407        | 11878  |
| & Chandigarth         21         1950         980         2930         7         651         648         30         678         1385           anh         32         31         854         157         1011         578         73         651         648         30         678         978           adu & Pondicherry         32         31         122         184         43         28         71         24         51         75         114         116           and & Pondicherry         32         20         2076         1522         3598         618         784         1402         862         556         1418         1164         1164           and & Pondicherry         32         20         341         158         618         784         499         369         55         421         388           and & 10         8         390         177         567         341         158         499         369         52         421         388           and edesh         71         60         153         796         2354         168         748         747         747           and Bull         71         72  | ŏ   | issa                   | 30            | 29                 | 689   | 306  | 995  | 663  | 221 | 884  |          |       |     |     | 274         | 936     | 810 4       | 415 1  | 1225      | 3449   | 1479        | 4928   |
| adu & Pondicherry         32         31         854         157         1011         578         73         651         648         30         678         978           adu & Pondicherry         4         4         112         72         184         43         28         71         24         51         75         75           adu & Pondicherry         32         20         2076         1522         3598         618         784         1402         862         556         1418         1164           inal         10         8         390         177         567         341         158         499         369         52         421         388           radesh         71         60         1634         810         244         1558         796         2354         1689         748         1474           and         13         9         512         220         732         159         48         198         748         52         383           andesh         13         9         512         220         732         150         48         198         748         52         383           and   | Pu  | njab & Chandigarh      | 21            | 21                 | 1950  | 086  | 2930 |      |     | 0    | 150      |       |     |     | 831 22      | 2216 1  | 1467        | 362 1  | 1829      | 4952   | 2253        | 7205   |
| adu & Pondicherry         32         29         2076         1522         3598         618         784         1402         862         556         1418         1164           and         10         8         390         177         567         341         158         499         369         52         421         388           radesh         4         4         110         79         189         106         32         138         102         33         135         74           radesh         71         60         1634         810         244         1558         796         2354         1689         748         2437         1474           and         13         9         512         220         732         150         48         198         18         34         52         383           engal & A&N         29         23         112         343         755         292         1047         375  | Ra  | jasthan                | 32            | 31                 | 854   | 157  | 1011 | 578  | 73  | 651  | 648      |       |     |     | 277 13      | 1255    | 643 2       | 208    | 851       | 3701   | 745         | 4446   |
| 1 & Pondicherry         32         29         2076         1522         3598         618         784         1402         862         556         1418         1164           esh         10         8         390         177         567         341         158         499         369         52         421         388           esh         71         60         1634         810         2444         1558         796         2354         1689         748         2437         1474           1         13         9         512         220         732         150         48         198         18         34         52         383           all & A&N         29         274         157         31         112         343         755         292         1047         375   | iš  | kim                    | 4             | 4                  | 112   | 72   | 184  | 43   | 78  | 71   | 24       | 51    | 75  |     |             | 0       | 123         | 98     | 500       | 302    | 237         | 539    |
| esh         71         567         341         158         499         369         52         421         388           esh         4         4         110         79         189         106         32         138         102         33         135         74           1         60         1634         810         2444         1558         796         2354         1689         748         2437         1474           1         13         9         512         220         732         150         48         198         18         34         52         383           all & A& N         29         748         217         965         231         112         343         755         292         1047         375  | Та  | mil Nadu & Pondicherry | 32            | 29                 | 2076  | 1522 | 3598 | 618  |     | 1402 |          |       |     |     | 882 20      | 2046 1  | 1458 7      | 793 2  | 2251      | 9009   | 4560        | 10860  |
| adesh 71 60 1634 810 2444 1558 796 2354 1689 748 2437 1474 and 13 69 189 217 948 158 796 2354 1689 748 2437 1474 and 29 512 220 732 150 48 198 18 34 52 383 and 29 748 217 965 231 112 343 755 292 1047 375  | 亘   | angana                 | 10            | 8                  | 390   | 177  | 292  | 341  | 158 | 499  | 369      |       |     |     | 119         | 202     | 480         | 163    | 643       | 1968   | 699         | 2637   |
| AAR N         29         748         217         965         231         112         343         755         756         2354         1689         748         2437         1474           AAR N         29         748         217         965         231         112         343         755         292         1047         375   | Έ   | pura                   | 4             | 4                  | 110   | 79   | 189  | 106  | 32  | 138  | 102      | 33    | 135 | 74  | 18          | 92      | 112 1       | 114    | 226       | 504    | 276         | 780    |
| 13         9         512         220         732         150         48         198         18         34         52         383           29         29         748         217         965         231         112         343         755         292         1047         375  | ∄   | tar Pradesh            | 71            | 09                 | 1634  | 810  | 2444 | 1558 |     |      |          |       |     |     | 754 22      | 2228 2  | 2112        | 983 3  | 3095      | 8467   | 4091        | 12558  |
| 29 29 748 217 965 231 112 343 755 292 1047 375   | ∄   | rakhand                | 13            | 6                  | 512   | 220  | 732  | 150  |     | 198  | 18       | 34    |     |     | 141         | 524     | 480 2       | 261    | 741       | 1546   | 704         | 2250   |
|  | ×   | sst Bengal & A& N      | 29            | 29                 | 748   | 217  | 965  | 231  | 112 | 343  |          |       |     |     | 275 (       | . 059   | 418 3       | 338    | 756       | 2527   | 1234        | 3761   |
| Total 623 543 23652 12519 36171 12674 8900 21574 14794 7271 22065 26356 109  | 卢   | tal                    | 623           | 543                | 23652 |      |      |      |     |      |          |       |     |     | 10944 37300 |         | 27400 14174 |        | 41574 108 | 105144 | 53952 1     | 159096 |



Annexure - 9

Mahatma Gandhi Yuva Swachhta Abhiyan Evam Shramdaan Karyakram

| Ū        |                          | Tardot | Target   |      | SC     |       |      | ST     |       |      | Minority |       |      | OBC    |       | Ger  | Gen./Others |       |       | Grand Total | <u>ra</u> |
|----------|--------------------------|--------|----------|------|--------|-------|------|--------|-------|------|----------|-------|------|--------|-------|------|-------------|-------|-------|-------------|-----------|
| <u>ء</u> | State                    | Set    | Achieved | Male | Female | Total | Male | Female | Total | Male | Female   | Total | Male | Female | Total | Male | Female      | Total | Male  | Female      | Total     |
| -        | Andhra Pradesh           | 2      | 1        |      |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 37   | 13          | 20    | 37    | 13          | 20        |
| 7        | Arunachal Pradesh        | 0      |          |      |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0     | 0           | 0         |
| ε        | Assam                    | 9      | 9        | 31   | 6      | 40    | 72   | 8      | 35    | 143  | 24       | 167   | 119  | 37     | 156   | 152  | 74          | 226   | 472   | 152         | 624       |
| 4        | Bihar                    | 9      | 0        |      |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0     | 0           | 0         |
| 2        | Chattisgarh              | 4      | 2        | 29   | 22     | 68    | 22   | 26     | 48    | 30   |          | 30    |      |        | 0     | 26   | 37          | 93    | 175   | 85          | 260       |
| 9        | Delhi                    | c      |          |      |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0     | 0           | 0         |
| 7        | Gujarat & Daman & Diu    | 4      |          |      |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0     | 0           | 0         |
| ∞        | Haryana                  | 5      | 3        | 9/   | 2      | 78    |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     | 118  | 2      | 120   | 140  | 9           | 146   | 334   | 10          | 344       |
| 6        | Himachal Pradesh         | 4      | 4        | 20   | 20     | 40    | 10   | 10     | 20    |      |          | 0     | 20   | 20     | 4     | 87   | 75          | 162   | 137   | 125         | 262       |
| 10       | J&K                      | 9      | 2        | 4    | 9      | 10    | 120  | 280    | 400   |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 2    | 30          | 32    | 126   | 316         | 442       |
| 11       | Jharkhand                | 4      | 1        | 138  | 103    | 241   | 108  |        | 108   | 68   |          | 88    | 77   |        | 17    | 178  | 112         | 290   | 290   | 215         | 805       |
| 12       | Karnataka                | 5      | 2        | 52   | 38     | 06    | 28   | 37     | 9     | 23   | 43       | 99    |      |        | 0     | 71   | 42          | 113   | 210   | 170         | 380       |
| 13       | Kerala & Lakshdweep      | 5      | 5        | 74   | 34     | 108   | 11   | 29     | 40    | 22   | 70       | 42    |      |        | 0     | 102  | 32          | 134   | 210   | 115         | 325       |
| 41       | Madhya Pradesh           | 18     | 5        | 440  | 289    | 729   | 390  | 233    | 623   | 321  | 125      | 446   | 489  | 261    | 750   | 585  | 387         | 972   | 2225  | 1295        | 3520      |
| 15       | Maharashtra & Goa        | 6      | 7        | 115  |        | 115   | 20   |        | 20    |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 120  | 65          | 185   | 285   | 65          | 350       |
| 16       | Manipur                  | 7      | 2        | 157  | 112    | 269   | 102  | 57     | 159   | 64   | 23       | 87    | 96   | 29     | 125   | 178  | 135         | 313   | 297   | 356         | 953       |
| 17       | Meghalaya                | 1      |          |      |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0     | 0           | 0         |
| 18       | Mizoram                  | 0      |          |      |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0     | 0           | 0         |
| 19       | Nagaland                 | 1      | 1        |      |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 56   | 17          | 43    | 56    | 17          | 43        |
| 20       | Orissa                   | 2      | 2        | 350  | 178    | 528   | 321  | 108    |       | 356  | 121      | 477   | 347  | 131    | 478   | 376  | 212         | 588   | 1750  | 750         | 2500      |
| 21       | Punjab & Chandigarh      | 4      | 3        | 80   | 30     | 110   |      |        | 0     | 40   | 10       | 20    |      |        | 0     | 330  | 110         | 440   | 450   | 150         | 009       |
| 22       | Rajasthan                | 9      | 4        | 34   | 6      | 43    | 21   | 0      | 21    | 0    | 1        | 1     | 111  | 28     | 139   | 77   | 11          | 88    | 243   | 49          | 292       |
| 23       | Sikkim                   | 1      | 1        |      |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 31   | 45          | 9/    | 31    | 45          | 9/        |
| 24       | Tamil Nadu & Pondicherry | 12     | 10       | 233  | 180    | 413   | 137  | 151    | 288   | 143  |          | 143   | 164  | 320    | 149   | 317  | 249         | 266   | 1007  | 933         | 1940      |
| . 52     | Telangana                | 3      | 2        | 32   |        | 32    |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 86   | 20          | 118   | 130   | 20          | 150       |
| . 97     | Tripura                  | 3      | ε        | 52   |        | 53    |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 66   | 39          | 138   | 128   | 39          | 167       |
| 27       | Uttar Pradesh            | 15     | 1        |      |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 48   | 2           | 20    | 48    | 2           | 50        |
| 28       | Uttrakhand               | 0      |          |      |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0     | 0           | 0         |
| 29       | West Bengal & A& N       | 11     | 10       | 259  | 89     | 327   | 112  | 44     | 156   | 142  | 49       | 191   | 146  | 72     | 218   | 288  | 112         | 400   | 947   | 345         | 1292      |
|          | Total                    | 150    | 85       | 2191 | 1100   | 3291  | 1459 | 983    | 2013  | 1373 | 416      | 1789  | 1687 | 900    | 2252  | 3398 | 1825        | 5223  | 10158 | 5267        | 15425     |
|          |                          |        |          |      |        |       |      |        |       |      |          |       |      |        |       |      |             |       |       |             |           |

N Y K S

Annexure - 10

11 Yuva Aadarsh Gram Vikas Karyakrram

| ū   |                          | + C C C C | Taract   |      | SC     |       |      | ST          |       |      | Minority |       |      | OBC    |       | 6    | Gen./Others | sirs  |       | Grand Total |       |
|-----|--------------------------|-----------|----------|------|--------|-------|------|-------------|-------|------|----------|-------|------|--------|-------|------|-------------|-------|-------|-------------|-------|
| S & | State                    | Set       | Achieved | Male | Female | Total | Male | Fe-<br>male | Total | Male | Female   | Total | Male | Female | Total | Male | Female      | Total | Male  | Female      | Total |
| 1   | Andhra Pradesh           | 2         | 1        |      |        | 0     |      |             | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 28   | 42          | 100   | 82    | 42          | 100   |
| 2   | Arunachal Pradesh        | 0         |          |      |        | 0     |      |             | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0     | 0           | 0     |
| т   | Assam                    | 6         | 6        | 81   | 16     | 26    | 89   | 12          | 80    | 341  | 40       | 381   | 286  | 99     | 352   | 460  | 252         | 712   | 1236  | 386         | 1622  |
| 4   | Bihar                    | 11        |          |      |        | 0     |      |             | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0     | 0           | 0     |
| 2   | Chattisgarh              | 2         | 2        | 9    | 38     | 103   | 42   | 23          | 92    |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 73   | 49          | 122   | 180   | 110         | 290   |
| 9   | Delhi                    | С         |          |      |        | 0     |      |             | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |             |       | 0     | 0           | 0     |
| 7   | Gujarat & Daman & Diu    | 9         |          |      |        | 0     |      |             | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0     | 0           | 0     |
| 8   | Haryana                  | 2         | 2        | 16   | 7      | 23    |      |             | 0     |      |          | 0     | 17   | 2      | 19    | 36   |             | 36    | 69    | 6           | 78    |
| 6   | Himachal Pradesh         | 4         | 4        | 20   | 20     | 40    | 10   | 10          | 20    |      |          | 0     | 20   | 20     | 40    | 88   | 72          | 160   | 138   | 122         | 260   |
| 10  | J&K                      | 10        | 1        |      |        | 0     |      |             | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0     | 0           | 0     |
| 11  | Jharkhand                | 9         | 3        | 278  | 96     | 374   | 214  | 52          | 592   | 228  | 72       | 300   | 246  | 91     | 337   | 378  | 145         | 523   | 1344  | 456         | 1800  |
| 12  | Karnataka                | 2         | 2        | 9/   | 145    | 221   | 26   | 116         | 142   |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 98   | 170         | 256   | 188   | 431         | 619   |
| 13  | Kerala & Lakshdweep      | 5         | 5        | 85   | 35     | 120   | 26   | 20          | 46    |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 66   | 09          | 159   | 210   | 115         | 325   |
| 14  | Madhya Pradesh           | 18        | 3        | 59   | 47     | 106   | 69   |             | 69    |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 96   | 78          | 174   | 224   | 125         | 349   |
| 15  | Maharashtra & Goa        | 12        | 11       | 167  | 88     | 255   | 134  | 79          | 213   |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 194  | 117         | 311   | 495   | 284         | 779   |
| 16  | Manipur                  | 7         | 2        | 136  | 70     | 206   | 98   | 52          | 138   |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 170  | 110         | 280   | 392   | 232         | 624   |
| 17  | Meghalaya                | 2         | 2        |      |        | 0     | 109  | 55          | 164   |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 109   | 55          | 164   |
| 18  | Mizoram                  | 0         |          |      |        | 0     |      |             | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0     | 0           | 0     |
| 19  | Nagaland                 | 1         | 1        |      |        | 0     |      |             | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 34   | 18          | 52    | 34    | 18          | 52    |
| 20  | Orissa                   | 5         | 5        | 1796 | 842    | 2638  | 1685 | 295         | 2247  | 1854 | 689      | 2543  | 1461 | 677    | 2138  | 1954 | 980         | 2934  | 8750  | 3750        | 12500 |
| 21  | Punjab & Chandigarh      | 7         | 2        | 1129 | 310    | 1439  | 826  | 268         | 1226  | 689  | 233      | 922   | 896  | 175    | 1143  | 1456 | 499         | 1955  | 5200  | 1485        | 9899  |
| 22  | Rajasthan                | 6         | 5        | 70   | 48     | 118   | 52   | 39          | 91    |      |          | 0     | 38   | 35     | 73    | 430  | 205         | 635   | 290   | 327         | 917   |
| 23  | Sikkim                   | 1         | 1        |      |        | 0     |      |             | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 41   | 52          | 93    | 41    | 52          | 93    |
| 24  | Tamil Nadu & Pondicherry | 14        | 7        | 468  | 241    | 602   | 214  | 127         | 341   | 161  | 49       | 210   | 158  | 113    | 271   | 415  | 198         | 613   | 2814  | 1759        | 4573  |
| 25  | Telangana                | 3         | 2        | 88   |        | 88    |      |             | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 106  | 20          | 126   | 195   | 20          | 215   |
| 56  | Tripura                  | 3         | æ        | 116  |        | 178   | 80   | 24          | 104   |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 146  | 112         | 258   | 342   | 198         | 540   |
| 27  | Uttar Pradesh            | 16        | 1        | 6    | 52     | 149   | 24   |             | 24    |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 118  | 4           | 162   | 239   | 96          | 335   |
| 28  | Uttrakhand               | 0         |          |      |        | 0     |      |             | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0     | 0           | 0     |
| 29  | West Bengal & A& N       | 16        | 11       | 144  | 154    | 298   | 59   | 47          | 106   | 165  | 39       | 204   | 132  | 94     | 226   | 478  | 214         | 692   | 978   | 548         | 1526  |
|     | Total                    | 185       | 95       | 4892 | 2271   | 7163  | 3856 | 1486        | 5342  | 3438 | 1122     | 4560  | 3326 | 1273   | 4599  | 6916 | 3437        | 10353 | 23826 | 10620       | 34446 |
|     |                          |           |          |      |        |       |      |             |       |      |          |       |      |        |       |      |             |       |       |             |       |



### 12 Awards to Outstanding Youth Club at District Level

### **Annexure - 11**

| SI No | State                    | Target Set | Target Achieved |
|-------|--------------------------|------------|-----------------|
| 1     | Andhra Pradesh           | 14         | 13              |
| 2     | Arunachal Pradesh        | 15         | 0               |
| 3     | Assam                    | 27         | 25              |
| 4     | Bihar                    | 38         | 5               |
| 5     | Chattisgarh              | 16         | 9               |
| 6     | Delhi                    | 9          | 0               |
| 7     | Gujarat & Daman & Diu    | 28         | 1               |
| 8     | Haryana                  | 19         | 14              |
| 9     | Himachal Pradesh         | 12         | 12              |
| 10    | J&K                      | 14         | 1               |
| 11    | Jharkhand                | 22         | 4               |
| 12    | Karnataka                | 27         | 17              |
| 13    | Kerala & Lakshdweep      | 16         | 16              |
| 14    | Madhya Pradesh           | 48         | 9               |
| 15    | Maharashtra & Goa        | 36         | 32              |
| 16    | Manipur                  | 10         | 9               |
| 17    | Meghalaya                | 7          | 4               |
| 18    | Mizoram                  | 8          | 8               |
| 19    | Nagaland                 | 11         | 9               |
| 20    | Orissa                   | 30         | 9               |
| 21    | Punjab & Chandigarh      | 21         | 20              |
| 22    | Rajasthan                | 32         | 20              |
| 23    | Sikkim                   | 4          | 4               |
| 24    | Tamil Nadu & Pondicherry | 32         | 24              |
| 25    | Telangana                | 10         | 9               |
| 26    | Tripura                  | 4          | 4               |
| 27    | Uttar Pradesh            | 71         | 11              |
| 28    | Uttrakhand               | 13         |                 |
| 29    | West Bengal & A& N       | 29         | 21              |
|       | Total                    | 623        | 310             |



### 12 List of Youth Clubs Selected for State Level Youth Club Award 2016-17

### **Annexure - 11A**

| S.<br>No. | State       | District    | Name & Address of the Awardee Youth Clubs  |
|-----------|-------------|-------------|--|
| 1.        | Assam       | Cachar      | Shib Durga Club, Vill. Dugrubasti, P.O. Palonghat, P.S. Dholai , District- Cachar, Assam   |
| 2.        | Haryana     | Kaithal     | Gramin Yuva Vikas Mandal, Village Patti Afgan,<br>District Kaithal , Haryana   |
| 3.        | Karnataka   | Mangalore   | Sri Vidya Vinayaka Yuvaka Mandala, Halengadi,<br>Mangalore Karnataka   |
| 4.        | Kerala      | Malapuram   | Navakerala Samsakarikavedi, Kolapuram, A.R. Nagar,<br>Vengara Block, Malapuram, Kerala   |
| 5.        | Manipur     | Bishanpur   | Network of Economy and Welfare Services (NEWS) ,<br>Kumbi, Kangeibung, Mapal, B.P.O. & P.S. Kumbi P.O.<br>Moirang, Bishanpur District, Manipur |
| 6.        | Mizoram     | Koasib      | Young Mizo Association, Kualmawi Branch,<br>Bilkhwthlier, District Kolasib, Mizoram  |
| 7.        | Nagaland    | Mokokchung  | Telong jem SC, Vill. Longkhum, Mokokchung,<br>Nagaland   |
| 8.        | Puducherry  | Mahe        | Archana Kala Samithy, Arracooldotrh Colony, P.O. Pallor, Mahe, Puducherry  |
| 9.        | Punjab      | Ropar       | Ek Noor Kalan Club (Reg.), Village Gag, P.O. Jindwari<br>Tehsil - Nangal, Distt. Ropar, Punjab   |
| 10.       | Rajasthan   | Jalore      | Nehru Yuva Mandal, Ummedabad, PS – Sayna, Tehsil<br>& District Jalore , Rajasthan  |
| 11.       | Tamilnadu   | Krishnagiri | Pasumai Paravaigal Elainagar Narpani Sangam, K.<br>Indhira Nagar, Kandhikuppam P.O., Bargur Taluk,<br>Krishnagiri District, Tamilnadu          |
| 12.       | Tripura     | Gomati      | Achin Baba Sangha, Garjee Bazar, Udaipur, Gomati<br>District, Tripura  |
| 13.       | West Bengal | Barasat     | Gorainagar Agnibina Sangha, Vill. Gorainagar, P.O.<br>Haroa, District- Barasat, West Bengal  |

\*\*\*\*



Annexure - 12

13 Meetings of District Advisory Committee on Youth Programme (DACYP)

| S  | State                    | Target | Target   |      | ည      |       |      | ST     |       |      | Minority |       |      | OBC    |       | <b>8</b> | Gen./Others | Ş,    |      | Grand Total |       |
|----|--------------------------|--------|----------|------|--------|-------|------|--------|-------|------|----------|-------|------|--------|-------|----------|-------------|-------|------|-------------|-------|
| ŝ  |                          | Set    | Achieved | Male | Female | Total | Male | Female | Total | Male | Female   | Total | Male | Female | Total | Male     | Female      | Total | Male | Female      | Total |
|    | Andhra Pradesh           | 28     | 8        | 15   |        | 15    |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 21       | 11          | 32    | 36   | 11          | 47    |
| 2  | Arunachal Pradesh        | 30     | 11       |      |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     |          |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0     |
| 3  | Assam                    | 54     | 40       |      |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     |          |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0     |
| 4  | Bihar                    | 9/     | 3        |      |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 15       | т           | 18    | 15   | т           | 18    |
| 2  | Chattisgarh              | 32     | 1        |      |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 22       | 7           | 29    | 22   | 7           | 29    |
| 9  | Delhi                    | 18     |          |      |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     |          |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0     |
| 7  | Gujarat & Daman & Diu    | 92     | 2        |      |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 14       | П           | 15    | 14   | П           | 15    |
| ∞  | Haryana                  | 38     | н        | 77   |        | 27    |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 22       | 5           | 27    | 49   | 5           | 72    |
| 6  | Himachal Pradesh         | 24     | 9        | 20   | 8      | 28    |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 25       | 12          | 37    | 45   | 20          | 65    |
| 10 | J&K                      | 28     | 4        |      |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 11       | 5           | 16    | 11   | 5           | 16    |
| 11 | Jharkhand                | 4      | 12       | 42   | 18     | 09    | 25   | 8      | 33    |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 63       | 31          | 8     | 130  | 22          | 187   |
| 12 | Karnataka                | 52     | 17       | 36   | 21     | 57    | 13   | 11     | 24    |      | 8        | 8     |      |        | 0     | 28       | 31          | 89    | 107  | 71          | 178   |
| 13 | Kerala & Lakshdweep      | 32     | 28       |      |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     |          |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0     |
| 14 | Madhya Pradesh           | 96     | 10       | 15   |        | 15    |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 38       | 16          | 54    | 53   | 16          | 69    |
| 15 | Maharashtra & Goa        | 72     | 42       | 129  | 21     | 150   | 78   | 18     | 96    | 93   | 12       | 105   | 83   | 7      | 06    | 163      | 89          | 231   | 546  | 126         | 672   |
| 16 | Manipur                  | 20     | 19       | 52   | 42     | 94    | 31   | 22     | 53    |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 89       | 47          | 136   | 172  | 111         | 283   |
| 17 | Meghalaya                | 14     | 7        |      |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 49       | 20          | 69    | 49   | 20          | 69    |
| 18 | Mizoram                  | 16     | 12       | 46   |        | 46    |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 78       | 12          | 06    | 124  | 12          | 136   |
| 19 | Nagaland                 | 22     | 11       |      |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 45       | 22          | 102   | 45   | 22          | 102   |
| 20 | Orissa                   | 09     | 5        |      |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 43       | 12          | 55    | 43   | 12          | 55    |
| 21 | Punjab & Chandigarh      | 42     | 33       | 63   | 28     | 91    | 48   | 12     | 09    |      |          | 0     | 20   | 6      | 29    | 94       | 36          | 130   | 225  | 85          | 310   |
| 22 | Rajasthan                | 64     | 24       | 6    | 27     | 124   | 59   | 22     | 81    |      |          | 0     | 44   | 14     | 28    | 131      | 46          | 177   | 331  | 109         | 440   |
| 23 | Sikkim                   | 8      | 4        |      |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 19       | 17          | 36    | 19   | 17          | 36    |
| 24 | Tamil Nadu & Pondicherry | 64     | 9        | 20   |        | 20    |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 27       | 12          | 39    | 47   | 12          | 29    |
| 25 | Telangana                | 20     | T        |      |        |       |      |        |       |      |          |       |      |        |       | 7        |             |       | 7    | 0           | 7     |
| 26 | Tripura                  | 8      | 9        | 23   |        | 23    |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 34       | 8           | 42    | 22   | 8           | 65    |
| 27 | Uttar Pradesh            | 142    | 11       | 4    | 11     | 22    | 35   | 7      | 45    |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 71       | 21          | 92    | 150  | 39          | 189   |
| 28 | Uttrakhand               | 26     | 1        |      |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 19       | С           | 22    | 19   | т           | 22    |
| 29 | West Bengal & A& N       | 28     | 34       | 48   | 12     | 09    | 31   | 3      | 34    |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0     | 118      | 26          | 144   | 197  | 41          | 238   |
|    | Total                    | 1246   | 359      | 677  | 188    | 865   | 320  | 103    | 423   | 93   | 20       | 113   | 147  | 30     | 177   | 1276     | 202         | 1776  | 2513 | 848         | 3361  |
|    |                          |        |          |      |        |       |      |        |       |      |          |       |      |        |       |          |             |       |      |             |       |

N Y K S

Annexure - 13

14 Meetings of State Advisory Committee on Youthy Programme (SACYP)

| Ū  |                          | Tarroct | Target   |      | S        |       |      | 5      |            | Minority |          |      | OBC    |       |      | Gen./Others | ers   |      | Grand Total | <u> </u> |
|----|--------------------------|---------|----------|------|----------|-------|------|--------|------------|----------|----------|------|--------|-------|------|-------------|-------|------|-------------|----------|
| 2  | State                    | Set     | Achieved | Male | <u>a</u> | Total | Male | e<br>e | Total Male |          | le Total | Male | Female | Total | Male | Female      | Total | Male | Female      | Total    |
| н  | Andhra Pradesh           | 2       |          |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0          |          |          | 0    |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0        |
| 7  | Arunachal Prad esh       | 2       |          |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0          |          |          | 0    |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0        |
| m  | Assam                    | 2       |          |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0          |          |          | 0    |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0        |
| 4  | Bihar                    | 2       | н        |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0          |          |          | 0    |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0        |
| 2  | Chattisgarh              | 2       |          |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0          |          |          | 0    |        | 0     | 6    | 2           | 11    | 6    | 2           | 11       |
| 9  | Delhi                    | 2       |          |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0          |          |          | 0    |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0        |
| 7  | Gujarat & Daman & Diu    | 2       |          |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0          |          |          | 0    |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0        |
| ∞  | Haryana                  | 2       | 2        |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0          |          |          | 0    |        | 0     | 33   | 12          | 45    | 33   | 12          | 45       |
| 6  | Himachal Pradesh         | 2       |          |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0          |          |          | 0    |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0        |
| 10 | J&K                      | 2       |          |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0          |          |          | 0    |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0        |
| 11 | Jharkhand                | 2       |          |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0          |          |          | 0    |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0        |
| 12 | Karnataka                | 7       | 1        |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0          |          |          | 0    |        | 0     | 37   | 2           | 44    | 37   | 7           | 4        |
| 13 | Kerala & Lakshdweep      | 2       |          |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0          |          |          | 0    |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0        |
| 14 | Madhya Pradesh           | 2       |          |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0          |          |          | 0    |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0        |
| 15 | Maharashtra & Goa        | 4       |          |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0          |          |          | 0    |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0        |
| 16 | Manipur                  | 2       |          |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0          |          |          | 0    |        | 0     |      |             | 0     |      | 0           | 0        |
| 17 | Meghalaya                | 2       |          |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0          |          |          | 0    |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0        |
| 18 |                          | 7       | 2        |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0          |          |          | 0    |        | 0     | 22   | 2           | 53    | 22   | 7           | 29       |
| 19 | Nagaland                 | 7       | 2        |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0          |          |          | 0    |        | 0     | 8    | 12          | 20    | 8    | 12          | 20       |
| 20 | Orissa                   | 7       | 1        |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0          |          |          | 0    |        | 0     | 9    | 1           | 2     | 9    | 1           | 7        |
| 21 | Punjab & Chandigarh      | 7       |          |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0          |          |          | 0    |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0        |
| 22 | Rajasthan                | 7       |          |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0          |          |          | 0    |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0        |
| 23 | Sikkim                   | 7       | 1        |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0          |          |          | 0    |        | 0     | 8    | 3           | 11    | 8    | 3           | 11       |
| 24 | Tamil Nadu & Pondicherry | 7       |          |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0          |          |          | 0    |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0        |
| 25 |                          | 7       |          |      |          |       |      |        |            |          |          |      |        |       |      |             |       | 0    | 0           |          |
| 56 | Tripura                  | 7       |          |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0          |          |          | 0    |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0        |
| 27 | -                        | 7       |          |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0          |          |          | 0    |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0        |
| 28 | Uttrakhand               | 7       |          |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0          |          |          | 0    |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0        |
| 29 | West Bengal & A& N       | 2       |          |      |          | 0     |      |        | 0          |          |          | 0    |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0        |
|    | Total                    | 09      | 10       | 0    | 0        | 0     | 0    | 0      | 0          | 0        | 0        | 0    | 0 0    | 0     | 123  | 4           | 167   | 123  | 4           | 167      |
|    |                          |         |          |      |          |       |      |        |            |          |          |      |        |       |      |             |       |      |             |          |



| Section   Sect | Ū          |       |     |    |     | S      |       |      | 15     |       |   | Minority |       |   | OBC    |       | Ğ    | Gen./Others | ফ     |      | Grand Total | Ī     |
|--|------------|-------|-----|----|-----|--------|-------|------|--------|-------|---|----------|-------|---|--------|-------|------|-------------|-------|------|-------------|-------|
| Activity Providesh         4   | <u>n</u> 2 | State | Set |    |     | Female | Total | Male | Female | Total | Н | Female   | Total | H | Female | Total | [    |             |       | Male | Female      | Total |
| Authors Processis 4 4 4 4 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9  | ,          |       |     |    |     | )<br>) |       | 2    | )      |       |   | )        |       |   | 2      |       | Male | Female      | Total |      |             | 1     |
| Amonther Processes         4   | -          |       | 4   | 4  |     |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |   |          | 0     |   |        | 0     | 14   |             | 14    | 14   | 0           | 14    |
| Absent         4 <th>7</th> <td></td> <td>4</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td>   | 7          |       | 4   |    |     |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |   |          | 0     |   |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0     |
| Chartesymmone  | m          |       | 4   | 4  |     |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |   |          | 0     |   |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0     |
| Deficitionary 1 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4  | 4          |       | 4   | 4  |     |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |   |          | 0     |   |        | 0     | 104  | 4           | 108   |      | 4           | 108   |
| Oplith         4         5         36         14         6         6         6         6         1         5         1         5         7         1         5         1         5         1         5         1         1         5         1<  | 2          |       | 4   |    |     |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |   |          | 0     |   |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0     |
| Guljandt & Dimmint R Dim         4         5         36         14         6         7         6         6         6         7 </th <th>9</th> <td></td> <td>4</td> <td>4</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>0</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>0</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>0</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>0</td> <td>24</td> <td>12</td> <td>36</td> <td>24</td> <td>12</td> <td>36</td>   | 9          |       | 4   | 4  |     |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |   |          | 0     |   |        | 0     | 24   | 12          | 36    | 24   | 12          | 36    |
| Hemotrial Padesh   | ^          |       | 4   |    |     |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |   |          | 0     |   |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0     |
| Make Levin Le                      | ∞          |       | 4   | 2  | 36  |        | 20    |      |        | 0     |   |          | 0     |   |        | 0     | 40   | 15          | 55    | 9/   | 29          | 105   |
| Methods of Particles         4   | 6          |       | 4   | 2  |     |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |   |          | 0     |   |        | 0     | 23   | 5           | 28    | 23   | 5           | 28    |
| Methodrick of Septimination         4         2         2         2         2         4         7         4         7         4         7         4         7         4         3         3         26         59            | 10         |       | 4   | 4  |     |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |   |          | 0     |   |        | 0     | 36   | 2           | 38    | 36   |             | 38    |
| Kentlakele         4         3         3         26         59         9         9         9         9         9         10         6         11         49         110         49         77           Kerala & Läckfürkweit         4         2         3         26         9   | Ξ          |       | 4   |    |     |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |   |          | 0     |   |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0     |
| Kerale & Lakschöwerengen 4 2.         2         0  | 12         | _     | 4   | 3  | 33  |        | 59    |      |        | 0     |   |          | 0     |   |        | 0     | 61   | 49          | 110   | 2    | 75          | 169   |
| Medity a Prodesth         4         2         0  | 13         | _     | 4   | 2  |     |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |   |          | 0     |   |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0     |
| Meharasktra & Goal         4         6         0         0         0         0         29         13         42         29         13           Menipur         4         4         4         4         4         4         4         4         4         4         9         0         29         13         42         29         13           Meghalapiya         4 <th>14</th> <td>_</td> <td>4</td> <td>2</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td>  | 14         | _     | 4   | 2  |     |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |   |          | 0     |   |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0     |
| Mellolut         4         3         6         0<  | 15         |       | 4   | 9  |     |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |   |          | 0     |   |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0     |
| Meghallaya         4         ————————————————————————————————————  | 16         |       | 4   | 4  |     |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |   |          | 0     |   |        | 0     | 29   | 13          | 42    | 29   | 13          | 42    |
| Microram         4         4         4         4         4         4         4         4         4         4         4         4         4         4         4         4         4         4         4         3         4         3         6         6         6         6         12         3         15         12         3         12         3         15         12         3         12         3         12         3         12         3         12         3         12         3         12         3         12         3         12         3         12         3         12         3         12         3         12         3         4         4         4         4         4         3 </th <th>17</th> <td></td> <td>4</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td>   | 17         |       | 4   |    |     |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |   |          | 0     |   |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0     |
| Nagalend         4         3         6         0         0         1         1         3         15 <th>18</th> <td>-</td> <td>4</td> <td>4</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>0</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>0</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>0</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>0</td> <td>2</td> <td>2</td> <td>4</td> <td>2</td> <td>2</td> <td>4</td>   | 18         | -     | 4   | 4  |     |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |   |          | 0     |   |        | 0     | 2    | 2           | 4     | 2    | 2           | 4     |
| Orisea         4         4         34         4         38         9         0         0         71         8         79         105         11           Punjab & Chandigarh         4         4         4         31         8         39         9         0         8         1         1         8         79         105         10         9         1         9         10         1         9         1         9         10         9         1         9         1         9         1         9         1         9         1         9         1         9         9         1         9         9         1         9         9         9         9         1         9         9         9         9         1         9         9         9         9         9         1         9  | 19         |       | 4   | 3  |     |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |   |          | 0     |   |        | 0     | 12   | 3           | 15    | 12   | 3           | 15    |
| Punyab & Chandigarth         4   | 20         |       | 4   | 4  | 34  |        | 38    |      |        | 0     |   |          | 0     |   |        | 0     | 71   | 8           | 79    | 105  | 12          | 117   |
| Rajasthan         4  | 21         |       | 4   | 4  | 31  | 8      | 39    |      |        | 0     |   |          | 0     |   |        | 0     | 81   | 12          | 93    | 112  | 20          | 132   |
| Sikkim 4 4 4 6 6 7 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  | 22         | -     | 4   | 4  |     |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |   |          | 0     |   |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0     |
| Tamil Nadu & Pondicherry         4         6         1         0 <th>23</th> <td>-</td> <td>4</td> <td>4</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>0</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>0</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>0</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>0</td> <td>10</td> <td>4</td> <td>14</td> <td>10</td> <td></td> <td>14</td>   | 23         | -     | 4   | 4  |     |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |   |          | 0     |   |        | 0     | 10   | 4           | 14    | 10   |             | 14    |
| Telangana         4         4         4         4         4         4         4         4         4         4         4         4         4         4         4         5         4         3         63   | 24         |       | 4   | 9  |     |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |   |          | 0     |   |        | 0     |      |             | 0     | 0    | 0           | 0     |
| Tripura         4         3         63  | 25         |       | 4   | 4  |     |        |       |      |        |       |   |          |       |   |        |       | 10   | 18          | 28    | 10   | 18          | 28    |
| Uttar Pradesh         4         4         63  | 56         |       | 4   | 3  |     |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |   |          | 0     |   |        | 0     | 5    | 3           | 8     | 5    | 3           | 8     |
| Uttrakhand         4         3         0         0         0         0         0         0         29         5         34         29         5           West Bengal & A&N         4         3         0         197         52         249         0   | 27         | _     | 4   | 4  | 63  |        | 63    |      |        | 0     |   |          | 0     |   |        | 0     | 97   | 8           | 105   | 160  | 8           | 168   |
| West Bengal & A& N         4         3         0         197         52         249         0  | 28         | _     | 4   | 3  |     |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |   |          | 0     |   |        | 0     | 29   | 5           | 34    | 29   | 5           | 34    |
| 116   90   197   52   249   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0  | 29         |       | 4   | 3  |     |        | 0     |      |        | 0     |   |          | 0     |   |        | 0     | 90   | 2           | 92    | 06   | 2           | 92    |
|  |            | Total | 116 | 06 | 197 |        | 249   | 0    | 0      | 0     | 0 | 0        | 0     | 0 | 0      | 0     | 738  | 165         | 903   |      |             | 1152  |



### **AUDITED ACCOUNTS**



### ANNUAL ACCOUNTS BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31ST, 2017

(Amount in Rs.)

| As at 31.03.16 | Liabilities                               | Schedule | As at 31.03.17 |
|----------------|---|----------|----------------|
| 9,99,20,715    | CORPUS / CAPITAL FUND                     | 1        | 7,22,81,854    |
| 46,15,00,835   | EARMARKED / ENDOWMENT FUNDS (MYAS)        | 2        | 74,19,64,245   |
| 96,03,82,574   | EARMARKED/ENDOWMENT FUNDS(Special Prog.)  | 3        | 89,39,01,100   |
| 23,26,31,914   | EARMARKED / ENDOWMENT FUNDS (Spon. Prog.) | 4        | 22,11,95,326   |
| 65,36,17,037   | CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS        | 5        | 79,53,62,407   |
|                |   |          |                |
| 2,40,80,53,075 | Total                                     |          | 2,72,47,04,932 |
|                |   |          |                |
| As at 31.03.16 | Assets                                    |          | As at 31.03.17 |
|                |   |          |                |
| 9,99,20,715    | FIXED ASSETS                              | 6        | 7,22,81,854    |
| 2,30,81,32,360 | CURRENT ASSETS LOANS AND ADVANCES         | 7        | 2,65,24,23,078 |
|                |   |          |                |
| 2,40,80,53,075 | Total                                     |          | 2,72,47,04,932 |

Schedule 1 to 18 and Annexures to Schedules attached to the Final Accounts are an integral part thereof.

For BNPSY & Associates Chartered Accountants

sd/-sd/-Brajesh BansalB.P. KushwahaN. Raja(Partner)(Joint Director F,B &A)(Director General)

Date :31/03/2018 Place :New Delhi



### ANNUAL ACCOUNTS INCOME & EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31ST MARCH, 2017

(Amount in Rs.)

| Previous Year ending 31.03.2016 | Income  | Schedule | As at 31.03.17 |
|---------------------------------|---|----------|----------------|
|                                 | INCOME  |          |                |
| 4,40,822                        | Income from sales                                     | 8        | 1,36,371       |
| 1,93,75,00,000                  | Grants/Subsidies                                      | 9        | 2,14,85,00,000 |
| -                               | Fees/ Subscription                                    | 10       | -              |
| 6,49,48,107                     | Interest Earned                                       | 11       | 11,64,14,160   |
| 4,15,429                        | Other Income  | 12       | 19,69,911      |
| 2,00,33,04,358                  | TOTAL (A)   |          | 2,26,70,20,442 |
|                                 | EXPENDITURE   |          |                |
| 1,13,68,11,314                  | Establishment Expenses                                | 13       | 1,21,04,50,064 |
| 18,83,71,854                    | Other Administrative Expenses etc.                    | 14       | 17,91,49,397   |
| 67,63,73,599                    | Expenditure (Programme)                               | 15       | 55,73,07,936   |
| 1,25,281                        | Bank Charges  | 16       | 2,76,778       |
| 2,00,16,82,048                  | TOTAL (B)   |          | 1,94,71,84,175 |
| 16,22,310                       | Balance being excess of Income over Expenditure (A-B) |          | 31,98,36,267   |
|                                 | Transfer to Special Reserve                           |          | -              |
|                                 | Transfer to / from General Reserve                    |          | -              |
|                                 | BALANCE BEING SURPLUS/ (DEFICIT)                      |          | -              |
| 16,22,310                       | CARRIED OVER TO CORPUS / CAPITAL FUND                 |          | 31,98,36,267   |
| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIN           | IG POLICIES/NOTES ON ACCOUNTS                         | 18       |                |

Schedule 1 to 18 and Annexures to Schedules attached to the Final Accounts are an integral part thereof.

For BNPSY & Associates Chartered Accountants

sd/- sd/- sd/Brajesh Bansal B.P. Kushwaha N. Raja
(Partner) (Joint Director F,B &A) (Director General)

Date :31/03/2018 Place :New Delhi



# NEHRU YUVA KENDRA SANGATHAN RECEIPT AND PAYMENT ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2017

| For the        |   |                | For the        | For the        |  |      | Lor the        |
|----------------|---|----------------|----------------|----------------|--|------|----------------|
| Year ended     | Receipts  | Sch            | Year ended     | Year ended     | Payments S                               | Sch. | Year ended     |
| 31.03.2016     |   |                | 31.03.2017     | 31.03.2016     |  |      | 31.03.2017     |
|                | Opening Balance                                       |                |                |                | Estb.& other Expenses                    |      |                |
| 2,39,238       | Cash  |                | 67,651         | 1,13,68,11,314 | Etablishment Expenses                    |      | 1,21,04,50,064 |
| 1,42,03,16,921 | Bank  |                | 1,51,47,69,732 | 18,83,71,854   | rative Expenses                          | 4    | 17,91,49,397   |
| 7,39,290       | Funds in transit                                      |                | •              | 1,25,281       | Bank Charges                             | 16   | 2,76,778       |
|                | Fund recd.from GOI                                    |                | •              |                | Programme Expenditure                    |      |                |
|                | Grant of the year                                     |                | •              | 67,63,73,599   | Regular Programs                         | 15   | 55,73,07,936   |
| 1.93.75.00.000 | Regular Grant /Subsidies                              | တ              | 2.14.85.00.000 | 43,82,09,240   |  | က    | 64,93,43,292   |
| 76,15,93,801   | Special Program                                       | ო              | 58,01,78,000   | 12,51,91,166   | sw                                       | 4    | 12,00,81,993   |
| 10,45,78,353   | Sponsord Program                                      | 4              | 2.89.93,454    |                | -  |      |                |
|                | Add : Receivable at the beg. Of the year              |                | 3,32,23,116    |                |  |      | 1              |
| (3,32,23,116)  | Less:Receivable at the end of the year                | 4              | (14,75,00,000) | 31,24,95,951   | Increase in Advance from previous year   |      | 9,12,52,157    |
|                | Other Agencies/Zones                                  |                | 7,89,61,856    | 73,96,390      | Cost of Assets Purchased during the year |      | 3,93,72,857    |
|                | Grant for Land purchases                              |                | •              |                |  |      | 1              |
|                |   |                | •              | 19,993         | Increase in Deposit during the Year      |      | 1,90,000       |
|                |   |                | •              |                |  | 4    | 1              |
|                |   |                | •              | 5,61,458       | Refund Special Program                   | က    | 28,25,589      |
| 4,15,429       | Misc.Income   | 12             | 19,69,911      |                | Refund Sponsord Program                  | 4    | 6,00,536       |
| 4,17,58,422    | Interest on Saving Bank                               | =              | 7,45,81,721    |                |  |      | 1              |
|                | Interest on Saving Bank(Spon. +                       |                |                |                |  |      |                |
| 1,70,53,961    | SpecialProg.)   | 3+4            | 68,00,037      |                | Trf. To Schedule 5 as DG Relief Fund     |      | •              |
| 2,31,89,685    | Interest on Long Term Deposits                        |                | 4,17,89,094    |                |  |      | '              |
|                | Interest on Long Term Advances                        | (              | 43,344         |                | Closing Balance:                         |      | 0              |
| 4,40,822       | Sale of Scrap / Youth Manual<br>Affiliation Fees      | ∞ <del>C</del> | 1,5,95,1       | 166,16         | Cash                                     |      | 20,304<br>-    |
|                | Sale of unserviceable assets                          | !              | 1              | 1,51,47,69,732 | Bank                                     |      | 1,60,40,44,737 |
|                |   |                | •              |                | :  |      |                |
|                |   |                | •              |                | Funds in Transit                         |      | 4,94,49,650    |
|                |   |                |                |                |  |      |                |
| 12,57,90,822   | Increase in Current Liability :                       |                | 14,18,57,003   |                |  |      | 1 1            |
| 4,40,03,93,628 |   |                | 4,50,43,71,290 | 4,40,03,93,628 | •  | 7    | 4,50,43,71,290 |
| poor to Don    | Management Daniel Comment of the Market State Comment | 2              |                |                |  |      |                |

Schedule 1 to 18 and Annexures to Schedules attached to the Final Accounts are an integral part thereof.

For BNPSY & Associates Chartered Accountants

sd/-Brajesh Bansal (Partner)

sd/-B.P. Kushwaha (Joint Director F,B &A)

sd/-N. Raja (Director General)

> Date:31/03/2018 Place:New Delhi



Schedules forming part of Balance sheet as at March 31st, 2017

| SCHEDULE 1- CORPUS / CAPITAL FUND             | TOTAL          | TOTAL          |
|---|----------------|----------------|
| SCHEDOLE 1- CORPOS / CAPITAL FOND             | As at 31.03.17 | As at 31.03.16 |
| Balance at the beginning of the year          | 9,99,20,715    | 10,23,34,517   |
| Effect of Change in accounting policy         | (5,31,16,099)  | -              |
| WDV as on 01/04/2016                          | 4,68,04,616    | 10,23,34,517   |
| Add:Capital Expenditure incurred/Adj Made     | 3,93,72,857    | 73,96,390      |
| Add:Fixed Assets Transferred from Head Office |                |                |
| Less Depreciation during the year             | 1,38,95,619    | 98,10,192      |
| Less:Deductions during the year               | -              |                |
| BALANCE AS AT THE YEAR-END                    | 7,22,81,854    | 9,99,20,715    |

| CCUEDIUE 2 FARMARIZED FUNDS (MVAS)                       | TOTAL          | TOTAL          |
|--|----------------|----------------|
| SCHEDULE 2-EARMARKED FUNDS (MYAS)                        | As at 31.03.17 | As at 31.03.16 |
|  |                |                |
| a) Opening balances                                      | 46,15,00,836   | 46,72,74,915   |
| b) Add : Excess of Income over Expenditure trnasferred   | -              |                |
| from Income & Expenditure Account                        | 31,98,36,267   | 16,22,311      |
|  |                |                |
|  |                |                |
| TOTAL (a+b)  | 78,13,37,103   | 46,88,97,225   |
|  |                |                |
| c) Utilization / Expenditure towards objectives of funds | -              |                |
| I. Capital Expenditure                                   | -              |                |
| - Fixed Assets   | 3,93,72,857    | 73,96,390      |
| - Others   |                |                |
| Total (C )   | 3,93,72,857    | 73,96,390      |
|  |                |                |
| NET BALANCE PAYABLE / (-) RECEIVABLE AT THE YEAR END     | 74,19,64,245   | 46,15,00,835   |
| ( a+b-c)   | ,==,==,===     | -, -,,-,,-,    |



Schedules forming part of Balance sheet as at March 31st, 2017

|   |                                  | ,  |                           |                               |                   |                           |              |              |  |
|---|----------------------------------|--|---------------------------|-------------------------------|-------------------|---------------------------|--------------|--------------|--|
| SCHEDULE 3-EARMARKED FUNDS<br>(Spl. Prog. MYAS)                   | National<br>Intergration<br>Camp | Youth<br>Leadership<br>Personality<br>Development<br>Program | Inter State<br>Youth Meet | National<br>Youth<br>Festival | NYF - NSS<br>Cont | Jagrit<br>Bharat<br>Utsav | NSV Scheme   | RSY/NRC      | Adolescent<br>Program<br>MYA&S (Life<br>Skill Trg) |
| a) Opening balances of the funds                                  | 2,41,81,802                      | 1,67,18,044  | (3,98,133)                | 65,49,686                     | 17,55,917         | 17,39,977                 | 13,46,76,111 | 11,23,82,237 | (28,78,894)  |
| b) Adjustment during year   |                                  |  |                           |                               |                   |                           |              |              |  |
| c) Additions to the funds   |                                  |  |                           |                               |                   |                           |              |              |  |
| Grants Received (inc received at PAO)                             |                                  |  |                           | 1,30,37,000                   |                   |                           |              |              |  |
| ii. Other additions (Interest earned)                             | 62,985                           |  |                           |                               |                   |                           |              | 2,42,833     | 10,950   |
| iii Trf to sch 4 being sponsored prog                             |                                  |  |                           |                               |                   |                           |              |              |  |
| iv) Trf to sch 2 being regular prog wef 1/4/09                    |                                  |  |                           |                               |                   |                           |              |              |  |
| v) Genrated at PAO Level  |                                  |  |                           |                               |                   |                           |              |              |  |
| vi) Transferred from Sch 4  |                                  |  |                           |                               |                   |                           |              |              |  |
| TOTAL (a+b+c)   | 2,42,44,787                      | 1,67,18,044  | (3,98,133)                | 1,95,86,686                   | 17,55,917         | 17,39,977                 | 13,46,76,111 | 11,26,25,070 | (28,67,944)  |
| d) Utilization / Expenditure towards objectives of funds          |                                  |  |                           |                               |                   |                           |              |              |  |
| I. Capital Expenditure  |                                  |  |                           |                               |                   |                           |              |              |  |
| - Fixed Assets  |                                  |  |                           |                               |                   |                           |              |              |  |
| - Others  |                                  |  |                           |                               |                   |                           |              |              |  |
| Sub Total   | 1                                | -  | 1                         | 1                             | 1                 | •                         | 1            | 1            | 1  |
| ii. Revenue Establishment<br>Expenditure                          |                                  |  |                           |                               |                   |                           |              |              |  |
| - Salaries, Wages and allowances etc.                             |                                  |  |                           |                               |                   |                           |              |              |  |
| - Rent  |                                  |  |                           |                               |                   |                           |              |              |  |
| - Other Administrative expenses                                   |                                  |  |                           |                               |                   |                           |              |              |  |
| Sub Total   | -                                | -  | 1                         | -                             | -                 | -                         | -            | _            | -  |
| iii. Revenue Programme Expenditure                                | 2,59,72,349                      | 77,02,522  | -                         | 42,76,760                     | 38,11,000         |                           | 27,16,998    | 3,23,558     | 4,02,288   |
| Sub Total   | 2,59,72,349                      | 77,02,522  | 1                         | 42,76,760                     | 38,11,000         | •                         | 27,16,998    | 3,23,558     | 4,02,288   |
| e) Amount refunded to agencies                                    |                                  |  |                           | 10,69,672                     | 17,55,917         |                           |              |              |  |
| TOTAL (d+e)   | 2,59,72,349                      | 77,02,522  | •                         | 53,46,432                     | 55,66,917         | •                         | 27,16,998    | 3,23,558     | 4,02,288   |
| NET BALANCE PAYABLE / (-) RECEIVABLE AT THE YEAR END ( a+b+c-d-e) | (17,27,563)                      | 90,15,523  | (3,98,133)                | 1,42,40,254                   | (38,11,000)       | 17,39,977                 | 13,19,59,113 | 11,23,01,512 | (32,70,232)  |



Schedules forming part of Balance sheet as at March 31st, 2017

| SCHEDULE 3-EARMARKED FUNDS (Spl.<br>Prog. MYAS)                      | Adventure<br>Prog. | National<br>Youth Corp | Panchayat<br>Yuva Krida<br>Abhiyan | Know<br>India<br>Program | Neighbour-<br>hood Youth<br>Parliament | NPYAD<br>Scheme<br>(Monitoring<br>& Printing) | Other<br>Prog. Exp. | NSS<br>Reimb<br>(Run for<br>Unity<br>30.10.15) | As on March<br>31, 2017 |
|--|--------------------|------------------------|------------------------------------|--------------------------|--|---|---------------------|--|-------------------------|
| a) Opening balances of the funds                                     | 16,09,616          | 26,14,65,653           | (53,26,997)                        | 1,37,144                 | 40,60,44,945                           | 20,00,000                                     | (3,30,470)          | 55,936   | 96,03,82,574            |
| b) Adjustment during year  |                    |                        |                                    |                          |  |   |                     |  |                         |
| c) Additions to the funds  |                    |                        |                                    |                          |  |   |                     |  |                         |
| I. Grants Received (inc received at PAO)                             |                    | 40,00,00,000           |                                    |                          | 16,71,41,000                           |   |                     |  | 58,01,78,000            |
| ii. Other additions (Interest earned)                                |                    | 37,98,004              |                                    |                          | 13,94,635                              |   |                     |  | 55,09,407               |
| iii Trf to sch 4 being sponsored prog                                |                    |                        |                                    |                          |  |   |                     |  | •                       |
| iv) Trf to sch 2 being regular prog wef 1/4/09                       |                    |                        |                                    |                          |  |   |                     |  | •                       |
| v) Genrated at PAO Level   |                    |                        |                                    |                          |  |   |                     |  | •                       |
| vi) Transferred from Sch 4   |                    |                        |                                    |                          |  |   |                     |  | •                       |
| TOTAL (a+b+c)  | 16,09,616          | 66,52,63,657           | (53,26,997)                        | 1,37,144                 | 57,45,80,580                           | 20,00,000                                     | 3,30,470)           | 55,936   | 1,54,60,69,981          |
|  |                    |                        |                                    |                          |  |   |                     |  |                         |
| d) Utilization / Expenditure towards objectives of funds             |                    |                        |                                    |                          |  |   |                     |  |                         |
| I. Capital Expenditure   |                    |                        |                                    |                          |  |   |                     |  |                         |
| - Fixed Assets   |                    |                        |                                    |                          |  |   |                     |  |                         |
| - Others   |                    |                        |                                    |                          |  |   |                     |  |                         |
| Sub Total  | 1                  | 1                      | 1                                  | 1                        | 1                                      | •   | -                   | 1  | 1                       |
| ii. Revenue Establishment Expenditure                                |                    |                        |                                    |                          |  |   |                     |  |                         |
| - Salaries, Wages and allowances etc.                                |                    |                        |                                    |                          |  |   |                     |  |                         |
| - Rent   |                    |                        |                                    |                          |  |   |                     |  |                         |
| - Other Administrative expenses                                      |                    |                        |                                    |                          |  |   |                     |  |                         |
| Sub Total  | -                  | -                      | -                                  | -                        | -                                      | -   | -                   | -  | 1                       |
| iii. Revenue Programme Expenditure                                   | 8,70,015           | 46,11,42,042           | 51,11,761                          |                          | 13,64,96,802                           |   | 5,17,197            |  | 64,93,43,292            |
| Sub Total  | 8,70,015           | 46,11,42,042           | 51,11,761                          | _                        | 13,64,96,802                           | _   | 5,17,197            |  | 64,93,43,292            |
| e) Amount refunded to agencies                                       |                    |                        |                                    |                          |  |   |                     |  | 28,25,589               |
| TOTAL (d+e)  | 8,70,015           | 46,11,42,042           | 51,11,761                          | _                        | 13,64,96,802                           | -   | 5,17,197            |  | 65,21,68,881            |
| NET BALANCE PAYABLE / (-) RECEIVABLE<br>AT THE YEAR END ( a+b+c-d-e) | 7,39,601           | 20,41,21,615           | (1,04,38,758)                      | 1,37,144                 | 43,80,83,778                           | 20,00,000                                     | (8,47,667)          | 55,936   | 89,39,01,100            |
|  |                    |                        |                                    |                          |  |   |                     |  |                         |



Schedules forming part of Balance sheet as at March 31st, 2017

| the funds the fu | SCHEDULE 4-EARMARKED FUNDS (Spon. Prog.)  | Awareness<br>Programme | Ad'cent<br>UNFP | yes        | Councling<br>J & K NYC | Aware-<br>ness Plan-<br>tation | Base Line<br>Survey | Distt. Level<br>Agencies | Drug Abuse<br>Programme<br>(Min. of So-<br>cial Justice) |
|--|---|------------------------|-----------------|------------|------------------------|--------------------------------|---------------------|--------------------------|--|
| Expenditure towards objectives of funds         (37,78,719)         5,88,88,132         (1,86,500)         9,22,269         3,53,499         (29,09,103)         6,76,39,493         2,35           Expenditure towards objectives of funds         State Assets         Expenditure towards objectives of funds         State Assets  | a) Opening balances of the funds b) Additions to the funds  I.Grants Received ii. Income fron Investments made on accounts of funds/Interest iii. Trf to Schedule 2 being part of core prog iii. Trf to Schedule 3 being part of spl. prog iii.Shifted to Other similar Column iv.Fund generated at State Offices PAO | (37,78,719)            | 5,88,88,132     | (1,86,500) | 9,22,269               | 3,53,499                       | (29,09,103)         | 7,89,61,856              | 2,35,65,220  |
| Expenditure Expenditure Expenditure Expenditure Expenditure The Assets         Fig. 8  | TOTAL (a+b)   | (37,78,719)            | 5,88,88,132     | (1,86,500) | 9,22,269               | 3,53,499                       | (29,09,103)         | 6,76,39,493              | 2,35,65,220  |
| thment Expenditure Salaries, Wages and allowances etc.  Acent Other Administrative expenses  Inded to agencies  Inded to agenci | c) Utilization / Expenditure towards objectives of funds I. Capital Expenditure - Fixed Assets - Others   |                        |                 |            |                        |                                |                     |                          |  |
| inment Expenditure Salaries, Wages and allowances etc.  Rent Other Administrative expenses   | Sub Total   | -                      | 1               | 1          | •                      | •                              | -                   | •                        | 1  |
| me Expenditure         -         70,48,173         -         1,95,466         6,15,031         7,19,04,562         2           Inded to agencies         -         70,48,173         -         1,95,466         -         6,15,031         7,19,04,562         21           PAYABLE / (-) RECEIVABLE AT THE YEAR         (37,78,719)         5,18,39,959         (1,86,500)         7,26,803         3,53,499         (35,24,134)         (42,65,069)         2,10   | <ul><li>ii. Establishment Expenditure</li><li>- Salaries, Wages and allowances etc.</li><li>- Rent</li><li>- Other Administrative expenses</li></ul>  |                        |                 |            |                        |                                |                     |                          |  |
| Inded to agencies  - 70,48,173 - 1,95,466 - 6,15,031 7,19,04,562 21  - 70,48,173 - 1,95,466 - 6,15,031 7,19,04,562 24  - 70,48,173 - 1,95,466 - 6,15,601 7,19,04,562 24  - 70,48,173 - 1,95,466 - 6,15,601 7,19 | Sub Total iii. Programme Expenditure  |                        | 70,48,173       | 1          | 1,95,466               | 1                              | 6,15,031            | 7,19,04,562              | 21,56,590  |
| inded to agencies  - 70,48,173 - 1,95,466 - 6,15,031 - 71,9,04,562 - 24  PAYABLE / (-) RECEIVABLE AT THE YEAR (37,78,719) 5,18,39,959 (1,86,500) 7,26,803 (35,24,134) (42,65,069) 2,10   | Sub Total   | •                      | 70,48,173       | •          | 1,95,466               | •                              | 6,15,031            | 7,19,04,562              | 21,56,590  |
| PAYABLE / (-) RECEIVABLE AT THE YEAR (37,78,719) 5,18,39,959 (1,86,500) 7,26,803 3,53,499 (35,24,134) (42,65,069) 2,   | d) Amount refunded to agencies  | 1                      | 70 40 173       |            | 1 05 466               |                                | 100 11 0            | 7 10 04 562              | 3,18,859   |
|  | NET BALANCE PAYABLE / (-) RECEIVABLE AT THE YEAR END (a+b-c-d)  | (37,78,719)            | 5,18,39,959     | (1,86,500) | 7,26,803               | 3,53,499                       | (35,24,134)         | (42,65,069)              | 2,10,89,771  |



| SCHEDULE 4-EARMARKED FUNDS (Spon. Prog.)   | Foreign<br>Contribution | Swachch<br>Bharat Abhi-<br>yan | HESCO    | ICDS        | Innocent<br>Smile | ISHM<br>(AYUSH) | Jan Shiksha<br>(JSSK) | Jang e<br>Azadi |
|--|-------------------------|--------------------------------|----------|-------------|-------------------|-----------------|-----------------------|-----------------|
| a) Opening balances of the funds b) Additions to the funds                                       | 1,57,17,916             |                                | (69,550) | (16,59,702) | 3,03,750          | (12,31,715)     | (20,27,174)           | 1,59,06,217     |
| I.Grants Received  |                         | 70,53,900                      |          |             |                   |                 |                       |                 |
| II. Income fron Investments made on accounts of funds/Interest T. C. C                           | 1,23,254                |                                |          |             |                   |                 |                       |                 |
| III. Iff to Schedule 2 being part of core prog<br>III. Iff to Schedule 3 being part of spl. prog |                         |                                |          |             |                   |                 |                       |                 |
| iii.Shifted to Other similar Column  |                         |                                |          |             |                   |                 |                       |                 |
| iv.Fund generated at State Offices PAO   |                         |                                |          |             |                   |                 |                       |                 |
| TOTAL (a+b)  | 1,58,41,170             | 70,53,900                      | (69,550) | (16,59,702) | 3,03,750          | (12,31,715)     | (20,27,174)           | 1,59,06,217     |
| c) Utilization / Expenditure towards objectives of funds   |                         |                                |          |             |                   |                 |                       |                 |
| I. Capital Expenditure   |                         |                                |          |             |                   |                 |                       |                 |
| - Fixed Assets   |                         |                                |          |             |                   |                 |                       |                 |
| - Others   |                         |                                |          |             |                   |                 |                       |                 |
| Sub Total  | •                       | 1                              | •        | •           | •                 | 1               | 1                     | 1               |
| ii. Establishment Expenditure  |                         |                                |          |             |                   |                 |                       |                 |
| - Salaries, Wages and allowances etc.  |                         |                                |          |             |                   |                 |                       |                 |
| - Rent   |                         |                                |          |             |                   |                 |                       |                 |
| - Other Administrative expenses  |                         |                                |          |             |                   |                 |                       |                 |
| Sub Total  | 1                       | •                              | 1        | •           | 1                 | 1               | •                     | 1               |
| iii. Programme Expenditure   | 46,900                  |                                | 1        | 2,37,840    |                   | 92,310          | 1                     | 5,85,394        |
| Sub Total  | 46,900                  | •                              | -        | 2,37,840    | -                 | 92,310          | •                     | 5,85,394        |
| d) Amount refunded to agencies   |                         |                                |          |             |                   |                 |                       |                 |
| TOTAL (c+d)  | 46,900                  | •                              | •        | 2,37,840    | •                 | 92,310          | •                     | 5,85,394        |
| NET BALANCE PAYABLE / (-) RECEIVABLE AT THE YEAR END ( a+b-c-d)                                  | 1,57,94,270             | 70,53,900                      | (69,550) | (18,97,542) | 3,03,750          | (13,24,025)     | (20,27,174)           | 1,53,20,823     |



| SCHEDULE 4-EARMARKED FUNDS (Spon. Prog.)  | KRYCEP             | KVIC       | MG NREGA    | Min. of I &<br>B(Azadi Ex-<br>press ) Prog. | My Earth<br>My duty | Nanhe<br>GuNgroo | National<br>Youth Par-<br>liament | NE CULTEX                |
|---|--------------------|------------|-------------|---|---------------------|------------------|-----------------------------------|--------------------------|
| <ul> <li>a) Opening balances of the funds</li> <li>b) Additions to the funds         <ul> <li>I.Grants Received</li> <li>ii. Income fron Investments made on accounts of funds/<br/>Interest</li> </ul> </li> </ul> | <b>(36,34,155)</b> | (1,38,682) | (26,47,918) | 11,94,750                                   | (11,11,061)         | (4,89,680)       | (5,12,390)                        | <b>38,17,342</b>         |
| iii. Trf to Schedule 2 being part of core prog iii. Trf to Schedule 3 being part of spl. prog iii.Shifted to Other similar Column iv.Fund generated at State Offices PAO  |                    |            |             |   |                     |                  |                                   |                          |
| TOTAL (a+b) c) Utilization / Expenditure towards objectives of funds  | (36,33,990)        | (1,38,682) | (26,47,918) | 11,94,750                                   | (11,11,061)         | (4,89,680)       | (5,12,390)                        | 38,17,507                |
| I. Capital Expenditure - Fixed Assets - Others  |                    |            |             |   |                     |                  |                                   |                          |
| <ul> <li>Sub Total</li> <li>ii. Establishment Expenditure</li> <li>- Salaries, Wages and allowances etc.</li> <li>- Rent</li> <li>- Other Administrative expenses</li> </ul>  | 1                  | 1          | •           | 1   | 1                   | 1                | 1                                 | 1                        |
| Sub Total iii. Programme Expenditure  | - 98,611           | - 000′2    | 3,82,629    | 3,13,295                                    | 2,82,981            | 1                | 1                                 | 1,91,110                 |
| Sub Total d) Amount refunded to agencies  | 98,611             | 7,000      | 3,82,629    | 3,13,295                                    | 2,82,981            | •                | 1                                 | <b>1,91,110</b> 2,81,677 |
| TOTAL (c+d)   | 98,611             | 7,000      | 3,82,629    | 3,13,295                                    | 2,82,981            | 1                | •                                 | 4,72,787                 |
| NET BALANCE PAYABLE / (-) RECEIVABLE AT THE YEAR END ( a+b-c-d)   | (37,32,601)        | (1,45,682) | (30,30,547) | 8,81,455                                    | (13,94,042)         | (4,89,680)       | (5,12,390)                        | 33,44,720                |



| SCHEDULE 4-EARMARKED FUNDS (Spon. Prog.)   | Nirantar<br>Workshop | Nirmal<br>Bihar San-<br>itation Prog. | NLM       | NRHM     | NRI(Know<br>India Prog.) | Northern<br>Eastern Various<br>Programme | Other<br>Prog. Exp. | Pancha-<br>yati Raj<br>Rally |
|--|----------------------|---------------------------------------|-----------|----------|--------------------------|--|---------------------|------------------------------|
| a) Opening balances of the funds b) Additions to the funds   | (2,08,532)           | 2,04,883                              | 42,88,760 | 2,22,780 | (3,03,975)               | (2,06,64,196)                            | (1,44,187)          | 8,90,031                     |
| I.Grants Received  ii. Income fron Investments made on accounts of funds/Interest  iii. Trf to Schedule 2 being part of core prog  iii. Trf to Schedule 3 being part of spl. prog  iii.Shifted to Other similar Column  iv.Fund generated at State Offices PAO |                      |                                       |           |          |                          | 24,03,250                                |                     |                              |
| TOTAL (a+b)  | (2,08,532)           | 2,04,883                              | 42,88,760 | 2,22,780 | (3,03,975)               | (1,82,60,946)                            | (1,44,187)          | 8,90,031                     |
| c) Utilization / Expenditure towards objectives of funds I. Capital Expenditure - Fixed Assets - Others  |                      |                                       |           |          |                          |  |                     |                              |
| Sub Total  | •                    | •                                     | •         | •        | •                        | •  | •                   |                              |
| <ul><li>ii. Establishment Expenditure</li><li>- Salaries, Wages and allowances etc.</li><li>- Rent</li><li>- Other Administrative expenses</li></ul>   |                      |                                       |           |          |                          |  |                     |                              |
| <b>Sub Total</b><br>iii. Programme Expenditure   | 1                    | 21,906                                | 1         | 1 1      | 1,84,049                 | 12,24,510                                | ı                   | 1                            |
| Sub Total d) Amount refunded to agencies   | 1                    | 21,906                                | 1         | 1        | 1,84,049                 | 12,24,510                                | 1                   | 1                            |
| TOTAL (c+d)  | 1                    | 21,906                                | 1         |          | 1,84,049                 | 12,24,510                                | •                   | 1                            |
| NET BALANCE PAYABLE / (-) RECEIVABLE AT THE YEAR END (a+b-c-d)   | (2,08,532)           | 1,82,977                              | 42,88,760 | 2,22,780 | (4,88,024)               | (1,94,85,456)                            | (1,44,187)          | 8,90,031                     |



| SCHEDULE 4-EARMARKED FUNDS (Spon. Prog.)   | Red Rib-<br>bon Exp. | RG<br>National<br>Youth Day<br>(RGNIYD) | SGSY               | Suprabha<br>Ganga Yatra | Tribal Ex-<br>change Prog.   | UNDP<br>(TAHA-<br>YPPTA)   | UNICEF    | V.T.A     |
|--|----------------------|---|--------------------|-------------------------|------------------------------|----------------------------|-----------|-----------|
| a) Opening balances of the funds b) Additions to the funds I.Grants Received ii. Income fron Investments made on accounts of funds/Interest iii. Trf to Schedule 2 being part of core prog iii. Trf to Schedule 3 being part of spl. prog iii.Shifted to Other similar Column iv.Fund generated at State Offices PAO | 45,30,496            | (6,01,405)                              | <b>8,82,05,180</b> | (2,3 4,231)             | (1,07,99,863)<br>1,95,36,304 | <b>44,27,166</b><br>22,417 | 30,55,202 | 12,81,467 |
| TOTAL (a+b)  c) Utilization / Expenditure towards objectives of funds  I. Capital Expenditure - Fixed Assets - Others  | 45,30,496            | (6,01,405)                              | 8,93,49,809        | (2,34,231)              | 87,36,441                    | 44,49,583                  | 30,55,202 | 12,81,467 |
| Sub Total  ii. Establishment Expenditure  - Salaries, Wages and allowances etc.  - Rent  - Other Administrative expenses   | 1                    | 1                                       | 1                  | 1                       | 1                            | 1                          | 1         | ı         |
| <b>Sub Total</b><br>iii. Programme Expenditure   | 1,83,614             | 1                                       | 83,82,597          | 20,37,972               | 2,00,11,254                  | 1                          |           | 167       |
| Sub Total d) Amount refunded to agencies   | 1,83,614             | 1                                       | 83,82,597          | 20,37,972               | 2,00,11,254                  | 1                          | 1         | 167       |
| TOTAL (c+d)  | 1,83,614             | '                                       | 83,82,597          | 20,37,972               | 2,00,11,254                  | '                          | '         | 167       |
| NET BALANCE PAYABLE / (-) RECETVABLE AT THE YEAR END ( a+b-c-d)  | 43,46,882            | (6,01,405)                              | 8,09,67,212        | (22,72,203)             | (1,12,74,813)                | 44,49,583                  | 30,55,202 | 12,81,300 |



| SCHEDULE 4-EARMARKED FUNDS (Spon. Prog.)   | VTC<br>(Ankur) | water<br>resource<br>mgt. | WHO<br>(Youth Run) | World Aid<br>Day | World<br>Health Day | Youth For<br>Pulse Polio | Bharat<br>parikrama | World<br>Population<br>Day | Youth Initia-<br>tive |
|--|----------------|---------------------------|--------------------|------------------|---------------------|--------------------------|---------------------|----------------------------|-----------------------|
| a) Opening balances of the funds b) Additions to the funds I.Grants Received ii. Income fron Investments made on accounts of funds/Interest iii. Trf to Schedule 2 being part of core prog iii. Trf to Schedule 3 being part of spl. prog iii.Shifted to Other similar Column iv.Fund generated at State Offices PAO | 26,129         | (1,14,385)                | (14,95,909)        | (5,27,621)       | 51,483              | (3,51,400)               |                     | 16,52,412                  | (82,88,135)           |
| TOTAL (a+b)  c) Utilization / Expenditure towards objectives of funds  I. Capital Expenditure - Fixed Assets - Others  | 26,129         | (1,14,385)                | (14,95,909)        | (5,27,621)       | 51,483              | (3,51,400)               |                     | 16,52,412                  | (82,88,135)           |
| Sub Total  ii. Establishment Expenditure - Salaries, Wages and allowances etc Rent - Other Administrative expenses   | •              | 1                         | ı                  | 1                | •                   |                          |                     |                            |                       |
| <b>Sub Total</b><br>iii. Programme Expenditure   |                | . '                       | -                  | 1,80,000         |                     |                          | -                   | 1,00,000                   |                       |
| Sub Total  d) Amount refunded to agencies  TOTAL (c+d)   |                | 1                         |                    | 1,80,000         | 1                   |                          | 6,89,675            | 1,00,000                   |                       |
| NET BALANCE PAYABLE / (-) RECEIVABLE AT THE YEAR END ( a+b-c-d)  | 26,129         | (1,14,385)                | (14,95,909)        | (7,07,621)       | 51,483              | (3,51,400)               | (6,89,675)          | 15,52,412                  | (82,88,135)           |



| SCHEDULE 4-EARMARKED FUNDS (Spon. Prog.)   | Dr B R<br>Ambedkar<br>Jayanti | Prog Fund<br>at PAO | Seat Flame | Ekta Rally | TCS Train- | RRE Bal-<br>ance of BS | National<br>Human<br>Right<br>Commis- | YFD-NC     | World<br>Skill Day<br>by NSDC | Balance as on<br>31.03.2017     |
|--|-------------------------------|---------------------|------------|------------|------------|------------------------|---------------------------------------|------------|-------------------------------|---------------------------------|
| a) Opening balances of the funds   | 50,70,405                     | 6,71,30,566         | (2,01,969) | (70,894)   | (1,02,870) | 53,28,285              | 3,90,000                              | (4,64,141) | 15,00,000                     | 23,26,31,914                    |
| I.Grants Received ii. Income fron Investments made on accounts of funds/Interest iiii. Trf to Schedule 2 being part of core prog |                               |                     |            |            |            |                        |                                       |            |                               | <b>2,89,93,454</b><br>12,90,630 |
| iii. Trf to Schedule 3 being part of spl. prog<br>iii.Shifted to Other similar Column<br>iv.Fund generated at State Offices PAO  |                               |                     |            |            |            |                        |                                       |            |                               | 7,89,61,856                     |
| TOTAL (a+b)  | 50,70,405                     | 6,71,30,566         | (2,01,969) | (70,894)   | (1,02,870) | 53,28,285              | 3,90,000                              | (4,64,141) | 15,00,000                     | 34,18,77,854                    |
| c) Utilization / Expenditure towards objectives of funds   |                               |                     |            |            |            |                        |                                       |            |                               |                                 |
| I. Capital Expenditure<br>- Fixed Assets   |                               |                     |            |            |            |                        |                                       |            |                               | 1                               |
| - Others   |                               |                     |            |            |            |                        |                                       |            |                               | 1                               |
| Sub Total  |                               | •                   | 1          | 1          | 1          | 1                      | •                                     | 1          | 1                             | •                               |
| ii. Establishment Expenditure<br>- Salarias Wanse and allowances etc   |                               |                     |            |            |            |                        |                                       |            |                               | ,                               |
| - Rent   |                               |                     |            |            |            |                        |                                       |            |                               | 1                               |
| Sub Total  |                               |                     | 1          | •          | •          | •                      |                                       |            | •                             |                                 |
| iii. Programme Expenditure   | 28,78,357                     |                     |            | 30,000     | •          | ,                      | •                                     | ,          | ,                             | 12,00,81,993                    |
| Sub Total  | 28,78,357                     | •                   | •          | 30,000     | 1          | ,                      | 1                                     | 1          | •                             | 12,00,81,993                    |
| d) Amount refunded to agencies   |                               |                     |            |            |            |                        |                                       |            |                               | 6,00,536                        |
| TOTAL (c+d)  | 28,78,357                     |                     | 1          | 30,000     | 1          | 1                      | •                                     | 1          | 1                             | 12,06,82,529                    |
| NET BALANCE PAYABLE / (-) RECEIVABLE AT THE YEAR END ( a+b-c-d)  | 21,92,048                     | 6,71,30,566         | (2,01,969) | (1,00,894) | (1,02,870) | 53,28,285              | 3,90,000                              | (4,64,141) | 15,00,000                     | 22,11,95,326                    |
|  |                               |                     |            |            |            |                        |                                       |            |                               |                                 |



Schedules forming part of Balance sheet as at March 31st, 2017

|   | TOTAL          | TOTAL  |
|---|----------------|--|
| SCHEDULE 5-CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISONS        | As at 31.03.17 | As at 31.03.16                               |
| CURRENT LIABILITIES                                 |                |  |
| 1.Statuatory Liabilities                            |                |  |
| Super Annuation Fund                                | 16,84,67,477   | 12,84,67,477                                 |
| Pension   | 11,74,62,020   | 10,09,16,023                                 |
| GPF/CPF   | 23,22,77,635   | 17,48,79,304                                 |
| GPF (Deputation)                                    | (4,210)        | 790  |
| PF Amount Received                                  | 17,600         |  |
| TDS   | 3,20,736       | 2,77,737                                     |
| Employee contribution to GPF Payable                | 2,24,000       |  |
| Salary and Allowance,Bonus,Leave Encashment Payable | 8,15,23,592    | 7,80,17,107                                  |
| EPF Payable   | 7,84,148       | 2,94,417                                     |
| Benevolent Fund                                     | 4,65,494       | 4,74,131                                     |
| GIS Payable   | 34,332         | , ,  |
| DG Relief Fund                                      | -              |  |
| DG Relief Fund                                      | 76,39,208      | 75,04,448                                    |
| 2. Other Liabilities                                | -              | -,-,   |
| House Building Advances                             | 1,600          |  |
| Hon to Staff  | 1,63,904       |  |
| Gratuity Payable                                    | -              | 1,36,15,654                                  |
| Insurance Premium Payable                           | 830            | 77   |
| Expenses Payable                                    | 33,97,789      | 42,17,770                                    |
| Pension Payable                                     | -              | 86,78,550                                    |
| Professional Tax                                    | 1,00,640       | 90,490                                       |
| Advance from NE Guwahati                            | 2,000          | 2,000  |
| Other Security Deposit                              | 75,744         | ,  |
| Group Insurance policy                              | 1,10,264       | 3,42,586                                     |
| Group Insurance policy (Deputation)                 | 880            | 360  |
| Amount Payable (RRE)                                | 3,71,200       | 3,71,200                                     |
| SUB TOTAL   | 61,34,36,883   | 51,81,50,044                                 |
| 3. Current Liabilities for Expenses                 | -              | <u>, , , ,                              </u> |
| Audit fee   | 32,32,568      | 35,32,169                                    |
| Stale Cheques                                       | 8,04,159       |  |
| Children Education Allowance Payable                | 38,030         |  |
| Security Deposit                                    | 92,912         | 1,73,656                                     |
| Rent Payable  | 23,000         | , ,  |
| Hon to NYC Payable                                  | 4,30,13,674    |  |
| SUB TOTAL   | 4,72,04,343    | 37,05,825                                    |
| TOTAL (A)   | 66,06,41,226   | 52,18,55,869                                 |
| B. PROVISIONS                                       | -              |  |
|   | -              |  |
| 1.Accumulated Leave Encashment                      | 1,19,21,181    | 89,61,168                                    |
| 2.Others-Provs for MACPs Arrear                     | 12,28,00,000   | 12,28,00,000                                 |
| TOTAL (B)   | 13,47,21,181   | 13,17,61,168                                 |
| TOTAL (A+B)   | 79,53,62,407   | 65,36,17,037                                 |



Schedules forming part of Balance sheet as at March 31st, 2017

|  | TOTAL          | TOTAL          |
|--|----------------|----------------|
| SCHEDULE 6- FIXED ASSETS                                       | As at 31.03.17 | As at 31.03.16 |
| Fixed Assets   |                |                |
| As per last year closing                                       | 9,99,20,715    | 10,23,34,517   |
| Effect of Change in accounting policy                          | (5,31,16,099)  | -              |
| WDV as on 01/04/2016   | 4,68,04,616    | 10,23,34,517   |
| Add:Addition/Adjustment during the year                        | 3,93,72,857    | 73,96,390      |
| Add: Transfer from Head Office                                 | -              |                |
| Less:Depreciation during the year                              | 1,38,95,619    | 98,10,192      |
| Less:Deductions during the year                                | -              |                |
| Less : Transfer from Head Office                               | -              |                |
| TOTAL  | 7,22,81,854    | 9,99,20,715    |
|  |                |                |
| SCHEDULE 7-CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS, ADVANCES                     | TOTAL          | TOTAL          |
| SCHEDOLE 7-CORRENT ASSETS, LOANS, ADVANCES                     | As at 31.03.17 | As at 31.03.16 |
| A.CURRENT ASSTS  |                |                |
| 1.Grant receivable   | -              |                |
| From MYAS (Special Prog)                                       | 5,00,00,000    | 3,32,23,116    |
| From MYAS (Sponsored Prog)                                     | 9,75,00,000    |                |
| 2.Cash balances in hand( including cheques/drafts and imperest | 26,304         | 67,651.00      |
| SUB TOTAL  | 14,75,26,304   | 3,32,90,767    |
| 3. Bank Balances   |                |                |
| With Scheduled Banks:  | -              |                |
| -In Savings Accounts ( SBI/UBI)                                | 1,60,40,44,737 | 1,51,47,69,732 |
| -Funds in transit  | 4,94,49,650    |                |
| SUB TOTAL  | 1,65,34,94,387 | 1,51,47,69,732 |
| TOTAL (A)  | 1,80,10,20,691 | 1,54,80,60,498 |
|  |                |                |
| B.LOANS,ADVANCES AND OTHER ASSETS                              |                |                |
| 1.Advances   | -              |                |
| a) Staff and others  | 5,80,452       | 41,31,335      |
| b) Petty Cash Advances   | 16,82,679      |                |
| c) Advances to Supplier & Others                               | 78,77,484      | 2,38,80,024    |
| d) Other Advances  | 1,67,14,860    |                |
| e) House Building Advances                                     | 6,30,293       | 12,87,877      |
| f) Travelling Advances   | 5,12,643       |                |



| g) Medical Advance  | 11,90,963      | 3,89,016       |
|---|----------------|----------------|
| h) LTC Advance  | 9,07,604       | 2,29,677       |
| i) Long Term advances (Computer /Vehicle/Scooter)           | (35,94,549)    | (26,75,971)    |
| j) Festival Advance   | 1,73,180       | 13,500         |
| k) TA/DA Advance  | 60,245         | 4,75,589       |
| I) Employee Provident Fund                                  | 1,400          | 1,400          |
| 2) Advances of RRE  | -              |                |
| 3) With Kendras (RRE)                                       | -              | -              |
| SUB TOTAL   | 2,67,37,254    | 2,77,32,446    |
| 2.Advances and other amounts recoverable in cash or in kind |                |                |
| or for value to be received                                 | -              |                |
| Deposits :  | -              | -              |
| Fixed Deposit/Term Deposit                                  | 59,62,54,663   | 50,94,99,023   |
| Telephone deposits  | 1,73,375       | 1,73,375       |
| TDS On STD/I.T/Extra Deposit                                | 1,62,96,352    | 1,22,25,804    |
| Ex Gratia   | 8,000          |                |
| Others deposits   | 17,84,144      | 15,94,144      |
| Computer Advance  | (62,486)       | 1,54,800       |
| Scooter Advance   | (3,42,681)     | (4,24,151)     |
| Adv to West Zone  |                | 961            |
| Adv from East Zone  | 961            |                |
| Advances to Kendra  | 5,93,348       |                |
| - Programme   | (23,65,182)    |                |
| - Establishment   | (21,61,012)    |                |
| - N L M   | (1,56,088)     |                |
| SUB TOTAL   | 61,00,23,394   | 52,32,23,955   |
| a) Advances with Kendras pending utilisation certificates   | 10,03,89,629   | 11,63,38,244   |
| b) Advances to PAO/Zones pending reconcilation              | 3,60,65,788    | 3,60,65,788    |
| c) Advances with kendra for district level generated fund   | 1,07,08,056    | 1,57,56,648    |
| -,  | -              |                |
| SUB TOTAL   | 14,71,63,474   | 16,81,60,680   |
| 3.Income Accrued;   | -              |                |
| a) On Investments from Earmarked                            | -              |                |
| b) On Investments-Fund A/c                                  | 6,74,78,265    | 4,09,54,780    |
| 4.Accrued Income  | -              |                |
| SUB TOTAL   | 6,74,78,265    | 4,09,54,780    |
| TOTAL (B)   | 85,14,02,387   | 76,00,71,862   |
| TOTAL (A+B)   | 2,65,24,23,078 | 2,30,81,32,360 |



Schedules forming part of Balance sheet as at March 31st, 2017

| Schedules forming part of balance sheet as at i                | ,                                       | TOTAL                |
|--|---|----------------------|
| COMEDINE O INCOME EDOM CALES / CEDVICES                        | TOTAL As at 31.03.17                    | TOTAL As at 31.03.16 |
| SCHEDULE - 8 INCOME FROM SALES/ SERVICES  1) Income from Sales | AS at 31.03.17                          | AS at 31.03.10       |
| a) Sale of Scraps/ Youth Club Manual                           | 1,36,371                                | 4,40,822             |
| TOTAL  | 1,36,371                                | 4,40,822             |
| TOTAL  | 1,30,371                                | 7,70,022             |
|  | TOTAL                                   | TOTAL                |
| SCHEDULE - 9 GRANTS / SUBSIDIES                                | As at 31.03.17                          | As at 31.03.16       |
| a) Central Grovernment ( Earmarked MYAS)                       | AS de SiloSily                          | A5 4t 51105110       |
| Plan   | 2,14,85,00,000                          | 1,58,75,00,000       |
| Non Plan   | , ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, | 35,00,00,000         |
| TOTAL  | 2,14,85,00,000                          | 1,93,75,00,000       |
|  | , | ,, -,,               |
|  | TOTAL                                   | TOTAL                |
| SCHEDULE-10 - FEES/SUBSCRIPTIONS                               | As at 31.03.17                          | As at 31.03.16       |
| 1) Affiliation Fee   | -                                       |                      |
| 2) Nehru Yuva Sandesh  | -                                       |                      |
| TOTAL  | -                                       | -                    |
|  |   |                      |
|  | TOTAL                                   | TOTAL                |
| SCHEDULE-11 - INTEREST EARNED                                  | As at 31.03.17                          | As at 31.03.16       |
| 1) On Term Deposits/Fixed Deposit:                             |   |                      |
| a) With Scheduled Banks  | 4,17,89,094                             | 2,31,89,685          |
|  | -                                       |                      |
| 2) On Savings Account  |   |                      |
| a) With Scheduled Banks  | 7,40,67,408                             | 4,17,58,422          |
| 3) On Long Term Advances (HBA/LTA)                             | 43,344                                  |                      |
| SUB TOTAL (A)  | 11,58,99,847                            | 6,49,48,107          |
| Reconciliation effect  | -                                       |                      |
|  | -                                       |                      |
| Interest on Saving Accounts                                    | 5,14,313                                | -                    |
| SUB TOTAL (B)  | 5,14,313                                |                      |
| TOTAL  | 11,64,14,160                            | 6,49,48,107          |
|  | 70741                                   |                      |
| CCHEDINE 12 OTHER INCOME                                       | TOTAL As at 31.03.17                    | TOTAL As at 31.03.16 |
| SCHEDULE - 12 OTHER INCOME                                     | AS at 31.03.17                          | AS at 31.03.10       |
| 1) Profit - loss on sale / disposal of assets                  |   | 16,700               |
| 1) From 1000 off balle / disposal of assets                    |   | 10,700               |
| 2)Recov. Of UnAuth.Exp   |   |                      |
| Zinecon of officiality   | _                                       |                      |
| 3) Other Receipts  | 16,81,802                               | _                    |
| -,   | -                                       |                      |
| 4) scrap sale (Newspaper/Magzine)                              | _                                       |                      |
| 5) Miscellaneous Income  | 3,20,309                                | 3,98,729             |
| SUB TOTAL (A)  | 20,02,111                               | 4,15,429             |
| Reconciliation effect  | -                                       |                      |
| Miscellaneous Income   | (32,200)                                |                      |
| SUB TOTAL (B)  | (32,200)                                | -                    |
| TOTAL  | 19,69,911                               | 4,15,429             |



Schedules forming part of Balance sheet as at March 31st, 2017

|   | TOTAL                    | TOTAL          |
|---|--------------------------|----------------|
| SCHEDULE - 13 ESTABLISHMENT EXPENSES  | As at 31.03.17           | As at 31.03.16 |
|   |                          |                |
| a) Salaries and Wages   | 95,48,34,489             | 90,79,85,840   |
| b) Bonus  | 65,30,306                | 32,28,741      |
| c) Contribution to Provident Fund   | 2,36,98,279              | 2,25,32,289    |
| d) Medical Reimbrushment  | 2,15,24,526              | 1,91,23,988    |
| e) Expenses on Employees,Retirement and Terminal Benefits                     | 19,17,26,433             | 16,79,91,080   |
| f) LTC  | 47,69,528                | 54,69,339      |
| g) Liveries   | 4,46,925                 | 3,67,503       |
| h) Children Education Allowance   | 55,25,996                | 91,97,258      |
| i) Leave Encashment   | 13,74,531                | 9,15,275       |
| (A)   | -                        |                |
| TOTAL (A)   | 1,21,04,31,013           | 1,13,68,11,314 |
| <u>Establishment Expenses : Reconciliation Effect (Prior Period Expenses)</u> |                          |                |
| a) Calavias and Manas   | 16 200                   |                |
| a) Salaries and Wages   | 16,300                   |                |
| b) Liveries   | 1,316                    |                |
| c) Medical Reimbursement  | 1,435                    |                |
| d) Children Education Allowance   | - 40.054                 |                |
| TOTAL (B) TOTAL (A+B)   | 19,051<br>1,21,04,50,064 | 1,13,68,11,314 |
| IOTAL (ATD)   | 1,21,04,50,064           | 1,13,00,11,314 |
|   | TOTAL                    | TOTAL          |
| SCHEDULE - 14 OTHER ADMIN. EXPENSES   | As at 31.03.17           | As at 31.03.16 |
|   | 7.0 0.0 0.100.129        |                |
| a) Postage & printing   | 1,54,01,434              | 1,59,15,522    |
| b) Miscellanous expenses  | 61,07,617                | 86,00,274      |
| c) Travelling expenses  | 3,09,58,186              | 4,26,73,641    |
| d) Administration Charges   | 12,38,25,628             | 12,11,82,418   |
| ,   | , , ,                    |                |
| TOTAL (A)   | 17,62,92,866             | 18,83,71,854   |
| Establishment Expenses : Reconciliation Effect (Prior Period Expenses)        |                          |                |
| a) Postage & printing   | 61,746                   |                |
| b) Miscellanous expenses  | 15,132                   |                |
| c) Travelling expenses  | 21,18,471                |                |
| d) Administration Charges   | 6,61,182                 |                |
| TOTAL (B)   | 28,56,531                | -              |
| TOTAL (A+B)   | 17,91,49,397             | 18,83,71,854   |



|  | TOTAL                 | TOTAL          |
|--|-----------------------|----------------|
| SCHEDULE - 15 PROGRAMME EXPENSES                                 | As at 31.03.17        | As at 31.03.16 |
| Regular Programme  |                       |                |
| District / State Youth Club Award                                | -                     | 1,09,17,378    |
| Pravasi Bhartiya Diwas   | 5,57,924              | 2,46,51,338    |
| District / State Youth Convention                                | 1,33,35,452           | 1,69,91,323    |
| Youth Facilation Centre (YFC) For Urban District                 | 54,36,521             |                |
| Need Based Programme   | 81,97,278             | 9,51,863       |
| Skill Upgradation  | 10,32,60,661          | 8,06,95,999    |
| Training on Youth Leadership & Community Development             | 13,32,37,105          | 5,49,29,340    |
| Handicraft Mela and Folk Lore Festival (for Urban Distics NYKS)  | 19,05,000             |                |
| SPORTS MATERIAL PURCHASE   | 6,41,24,014           | 7,99,27,894    |
| YCDP   | 2,23,79,475           | 2,76,99,581    |
| Block / District Folk Cultural Programme                         | 5,75,49,413           | 5,76,46,854    |
| Observation of Days & Weeks                                      | 4,14,29,683           | 4,23,36,559    |
| Award for outstanding Youth Club                                 | 99,00,398             | 18,00,000      |
| Exhibition for Youth on Handicrafr (Yuva Kriti)                  | -                     | 91,68,358      |
| International Yoga Day   | 63,06,011             | 53,55,963      |
| Distt Advisory Committee (DACYP)                                 | 3,08,147              | 4,23,766       |
| State level advisory committee (SACYP)                           | 35,566                | 20,410         |
| Documentation  |                       | 2,66,955       |
| Hindi Raj Bhasha   | 21,85,570             | 17,41,387      |
| Cluster / District Level Inter Youth Club Sports Meet            | 4,79,97,155           | 1,51,63,834    |
| Punarjagaran   | 59,000                | 14,12,24,329   |
| Review , Planning and Follow up Meeting                          | 5,79,421              | 12,79,907      |
| Declamation Contest  | 54,77,112             | 92,05,150      |
| Yoga and Physical Fitness Programme (for Urban Distics NYKS)     | 73,32,921             | 3,31,982       |
| Yuva Adarsh Gram Vikas Karyakram<br>MG Yuva Swatchta Abhiyaan    | 8,53,698<br>18,26,060 |                |
| Theme Base Programme   | 4,54,000              | 4,49,05,881    |
| Yuva Karvan/ Tiranga Yatra                                       | 7,07,637              | 31,000         |
| Skill Development Prg Under AITDC / NSDC                         | 7,07,037              | 3,32,43,059    |
| Youth Conclave   | 20,31,143             | 3,32,73,039    |
| Touth conclude   | 20,51,115             |                |
| Other Regular Prog   | 78,86,116             | 36,63,458      |
| Youth Activity & Training  | -                     | 95,64,300      |
| Bharat Parikrama   | 25,201                |                |
| SSHE Unicef  | -                     | 3,09,273       |
| YFD-NC   | -                     | 19,26,456      |
| Sub Total ( Regular Programme)                                   | 54,53,77,682          | 67,63,73,599   |
| Regular Programme Expenses : Reconciliation Effect (Prior Period |                       |                |
| Expenses)  Youth Club Evehance Programme                         | 62,000                |                |
| Youth Club Exchange Programme                                    | 63,000                |                |
| Youth Club Development Programme (YCDP)                          | 55,069                |                |
| District Youth Convention Schome of Montor Youth Club (MYCs)     | 32,000                |                |
| Scheme of Mentor Youth Club (MYCs)                               | 1,32,500              |                |



| TOTAL  | 2,76,778              | 1,25,281       |
|--|-----------------------|----------------|
| C) Outers  |                       |                |
| b) Bank Charges<br>c) Others                           | 2,76,778              | 1,25,281       |
| h) David Chauses                                       | 2.76.770              | 4.05.004       |
| a) On Fixed Loans                                      | -                     |                |
| SCHEDOLE TO DAIN CHANGES                               | A3 dt 31.03.17        | A3 at 31.03.10 |
| SCHEDULE - 16 BANK CHARGES                             | As at 31.03.17        | As at 31.03.16 |
|  | TOTAL                 | TOTAL          |
| Total ( Regular Programme)                             | 55,73,07,936          | 67,63,73,599   |
| Total ( Bogulay Broggeries)                            | FF 72 07 02C          | 67 62 72 500   |
| Sub Total ( Regular Programme)                         | 1,19,30,254           | -              |
|  |                       |                |
| Award to outstanding Youth Club                        | 1,69,650              |                |
| Review , Planning and Follow up Meeting                | 72,402                |                |
| Distt Advisory Committee (DACYP)                       | 2,000                 |                |
| Need based Program                                     | 2,47,653              |                |
| Hindi Rajbhasa   | 1,34,777              |                |
| Yuva Kriti   | 50,000                |                |
| Declamation Contest                                    | 13,000                |                |
| Tally Training   | 27,100                |                |
| Punarjagaran   | 2,18,500              |                |
| Youth Activity and Training                            | 15,42,125             |                |
| Provision of sports material for Youth Clubs TYLCD     | 16,14,454<br>2,68,831 |                |
| Youth Facilitaion Centre (For Urban Districts NYK's)   | 2,45,000              |                |
| YFD-NC   | 1,00,000              |                |
| Other Regular Programme                                | 62,15,544             |                |
| Cluster / District Level Inter Youth Club Sports Meet  | 99,582                |                |
| Observation of Days & Weeks                            | 71,431                |                |
| Block / District Folk Cultural Programme               | 98,000                |                |
| Skill Up-gradation Training Programme for Women (SUTP) | 4,57,636              |                |



Schedules forming part of Balance sheet as at March 31st, 2017

|   |                                       |                      |                                      | Sched                 | dule -17 Cc              | Schedule -17 Cost Of Assets                               |  |                                     |   |                                 |
|---|---------------------------------------|----------------------|--------------------------------------|-----------------------|--------------------------|---|--|-------------------------------------|---|---------------------------------|
| Opening<br>balance as<br>per SLM on<br>01.04.2016 | Effect of change in accounting policy | WDV as on 01.04.2016 | Particulars                          | Block of assets       | Rate of Depreciation (%) | Addition<br>during the<br>year<br>(more than<br>180 days) | Additions<br>during the<br>Year<br>(less than<br>180 days) | De-<br>letion<br>during<br>the year | Depercia-<br>tion<br>during the<br>year | Closing Value<br>as at 31.03.17 |
|   |                                       |                      | Land and Building                    |                       |                          |   |  |                                     |   |                                 |
| 1,23,65,644                                       | 1,921                                 | 1,23,67,565          | Cost of Land - KENDRA                | Land                  | 1                        |   |  |                                     |   | 1,23,67,565                     |
| 2,10,04,415                                       | (1,20,22,837)                         | 89,81,578            | Building Cost - KENDRA               | Building              | 10                       | 82,83,525   | 33,98,076  | 1                                   | 18,96,571                               | 1,87,66,608                     |
| 69,28,278   | (55,42,415)                           | 13,85,863            | Cars                                 | Machinery and Plant   | 15                       | I   | •  | 1                                   | 2,08,154                                | 11,77,708                       |
| 87,857  | (23,088)                              | 64,769               | Jeeps                                | Machinery and Plant   | 15                       | ľ   | •  | 1                                   | 9,331                                   | 55,438                          |
| 776,72  | (3,928)                               | 24,049               | Motor Cycle and Scooter              | Machinery and Plant   | 15                       | ľ   | 1  | 1                                   | 214                                     | 23,835                          |
| 1,11,532  | (37,567)                              | 73,965               | Cycle                                | Machinery and Plant   | 15                       | ľ   | 14,585   | 1                                   | 15,691                                  | 72,859                          |
| 2,03,854  | (1,21,518)                            | 82,336               | Typewriter/Calculator                | Machinery and Plant   | 15                       | ľ   | 1  | 1                                   | 12,350                                  | 986'69                          |
| 13,72,483   | (7,27,590)                            | 6,44,893             | Refr. Cooler A/C                     | Machinery and Plant   | 15                       | 18,400  | 35,300   | '                                   | 1,02,141                                | 5,96,452                        |
| 1,26,64,855                                       | (1,10,27,554)                         | 16,37,301            | EDP Machine(Comp./Print./UPS)        | Machinery and Plant   | 09                       | 42,89,196   | 2,17,95,848  | •                                   | 94,45,928                               | 1,82,76,417                     |
| 36,74,506   | (21,83,232)                           | 14,91,274            | Other Office Equip./Invertor         | Machinery and Plant   | 15                       | ľ   | 1,77,627   | 1                                   | 1,92,392                                | 14,76,508                       |
| 15,84,141   | (4,17,094)                            | 11,67,047            | Office EquipElectric Corp.           | Machinery and Plant   | 15                       | 250   | •  | ı                                   | 1,64,959                                | 10,02,608                       |
| 1,64,393  | (1,62,376)                            | 2,017                | Equipment Sports                     | Machinery and Plant   | 15                       | ,   | 1  | ı                                   | 303                                     | 1,714                           |
| 11,08,035   | (9,28,078)                            | 1,79,957             | Vocational Training Assets           | Machinery and Plant   | 10                       |   | 1  | 1                                   | 17,996                                  | 1,61,961                        |
| 1,00,65,088                                       | (22,03,328)                           | 78,61,760            | Furniture                            | Furniture and Fixture | 10                       | 37,436  | 5,23,384   | 1                                   | 8,36,151                                | 75,86,429                       |
| 25,71,912   | (8,98,373)                            | 16,73,539            | Fixtures and Fittings                | Furniture and Fixture | 10                       | ľ   | •  | '                                   | 27,705                                  | 16,45,834                       |
| 2,13,90,959                                       | (1,80,08,388)                         | 33,82,571            | Capital Purchase Kendra (Plan)       | Furniture and Fixture | 10                       | ı   | 72,717   | '                                   | 3,58,781                                | 30,96,508                       |
| 40,55,938   | 13,95,225                             | 54,51,163            | Capital Pur. Kendra ( Non - Plan)    | Furniture and Fixture | 10                       | 15,123  | 6,96,902   | '                                   | 5,71,857                                | 55,91,331                       |
| 2,90,673  | (71,050)                              | 2,19,623             | Fan                                  | Machinery and Plant   | 15                       | 2,240   | 11,979   | '                                   | 34,928                                  | 1,98,914                        |
| 20,098  | (3,842)                               | 46,256               |                                      | Machinery and Plant   | 15                       | ,   | 1  | '                                   | ,                                       | 46,256                          |
|   |                                       | ı                    | Capital Purchase Kendra (Plan)<br>PY | Furniture and Fixture | 10                       | 1   | 1  | 1                                   | ı                                       | 1                               |
| 008'99  | 224                                   | 67,024               | Other Fitting                        | Furniture and Fixture | 10                       | ,   | 1  | 1                                   | 158                                     | 998'99                          |
| 92,198  | (92,194)                              | 4                    | Donated Assets                       | Furniture and Fixture | 1                        | 1   | 1  | 1                                   | 1                                       | 4                               |
| 39,079  | (39,017)                              | 62                   | Equip Audio / Video                  | Machinery and Plant   | 15                       | ,   | ı  | ı                                   | 6                                       | 53                              |
|   |                                       | •                    |                                      |                       |                          |   |  |                                     |   | 1                               |
|   |                                       | 1                    |                                      |                       |                          | 1 1   | 1 1  |                                     |   | , ,                             |
|   |                                       |                      |                                      |                       |                          | 1   | •  | 1                                   | 1                                       | -                               |
| 9,99,20,715                                       | (5,31,16,099)                         | 4,68,04,616          | TOTAL                                |                       |                          | 1,26,46,440   | 2,67,26,417  | •                                   | 1,38,95,619                             | 7,22,81,854                     |
|   |                                       |                      |                                      |                       |                          |   |  |                                     |   |                                 |



#### Schedule 18 (2016-17)

#### Notes on Accounts and significant accounting policies

- 1) Basis of preparation of Financial Statements: The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
- 2) **Accounting policy:** The Sangathan adopts accrual system of accounting unless otherwise stated. There is change in accounting policy for calculation of depreciation on Fixed Assets due to recommendation of C&AG and to adopt Written down Value method for better recording and presentation.

Depreciation as per Written down value have been re-calculated and WDV as on 01.04.2016 have been figured out as opening WDV to consider for 2016-17. Difference of opening value on 01.04.2016 between the two methods has been recognised as effect of change in accounting policy and separately disclosed under Schedule 1 and schedule 6 of the Balance Sheet. Relevant figures are summarised as under -:

Opening Balance of Fixed Assets following SLM method : 9,99,20,715

Opening Balance of Fixed Assets following WDV method: 4,68,04,616

Net effect in value due to change in accounting policy : (5,31,16,099)

#### 3) Fixed Assets and Depreciation:

- a) The assets created out of Grants are expensed from General Funds and are transferred to the capital funds.
- b) The Assets purchased after the formation of the Sangathan are stated on historical cost basis. These have been re-valued in previous years and consequently depreciated / adjusted and transferred to the Capital Fund. Due to change in accounting policy now Assets are being stated following Written down Value method.
- c) The depreciation charged on Written down Value (WDV) method is as follows:

| (1)   | Furniture & Fixture                  | 10.00% |
|-------|--------------------------------------|--------|
| (ii)  | Machinery and Plant (Vehicle)        | 15.00% |
| (iii) | Machinery and Plant (EDP & Computer) | 60.00% |
| (iv)  | Land & Building (only building)      | 10.00% |

10 000/



The depreciation was charged earlier on Straight Line Method (SLM) as follows:

| (i)   | Computer & EDP Machine              | 16.21% |
|-------|-------------------------------------|--------|
| (ii)  | Office Furniture                    | 6.33%  |
| (iii) | Other Electronic Equipments         | 4.75%  |
| (iv)  | Vehicle                             | 9.50%  |
| (v)   | Vocational Training & Sports equip. | 4.75%  |
| (vi)  | Land & building (only building)     | 1.63%  |

- d) The Assets pertaining to the period prior to formation of Sangathan were revalued at notional amount of Rs. 1. Similarly Assets received through donations were valued at notional amount of Rs. 1 except the value of land received from the local agencies.
- e) The Sangathan is wholly aided by Government of India under budgetary support. A capital fund equivalent to cost of fixed assets has been created.
- f) All the wasting assets have been accounted for into the books and depreciation on WDV is being charged. Expenditure on the construction of NYK buildings has been capitalized and added to the value of the assets under construction/ constructed. Donated land to district level NYKs has been shown at its historical cost.

#### 4) Recognition of Income / Expenditure

- a) Grant in Aid The grant in aid received from Ministry of Youth Affairs and Sports, Government of India and from other agencies for the year considered on accrual basis.
  - Grants received under NYKS scheme have been considered as income and taken in Income and Expenditure account.
  - Grants received for the special / sponsored programs have been considered as `Earmarked funds' and taken in special fund account. The unspent funds at the yearend have been reported under liability side of the Balance Sheet.
- b) Interest accrued on FDRs has been recognised on Accrual basis.
- c) Interest on Saving Fund account, affiliation fee, sale of youth manuals have been accounted for on cash basis.
- d) Interest earned on funds of major special / sponsored programmes namely Adolescent UNFPA, SGSY, Foreign Contribution, CULTEX, UNDP-TAHA, NIC, NSV scheme, RSY/NRC and NYC have been credited to respective programmes.
- e) Employee's benefits like Leave Encashment and Bonus are accounted on provisional basis.



f) The Expenses incurred by the HO and State Offices (PAOs) have been compiled at Head quarter level on the basis of the information and explanation provided by PAOs through their Financial Statements for the corresponding period. At PAOs, expenses have been booked on the basis of UCs received from Kendras.

- 5) **Provisions for Expenses:** During the year provisions of Rs. 1.91 crore for Accumulated Leave Encashment and 8.15 crore for Salary for March 2017 and Bonus for 2016-17 to be paid in 2017-18 has been made.
- 6) **Balances in Fund Accounts:** There is balance of Rs 16.85 crore in Superannuation Fund, Rs 23.23 crore in GPF and Rs 11.75 crore in pension fund. The General Provident Fund, Superannuation fund and Pension Fund are shown under current liabilities pending approval of the Ministry on formation of Trust.
- 7) Actuarial valuation of retirement dues: Actuarial valuation for retirement dues as at 31.03.2017 has not been done. However, liability of Rs 69.91 crore for Gratuity, Rs 52.87 crore for leave encashment and Rs 539.14 crore for Pension of all employees under CCS (Pension) Rules 1972 as on 31.03.2015 was valued by actuary. Approval from the Administrative Ministry to show this liability in annual accounts statement is awaited. Funds have also been demanded from the Ministry to meet out these liabilities.
- 8) Loans and Advances: Loans and Advances includes (a) Rs. 13.65 crore lying unspent with the field offices and Rs 1.07 crore advances with Kendras for district level generated fund. Since these figures are under further reconciliation, it may include expenditure already incurred but not accounted for.
- 9) Adjustment of advances & prior period expenditure: Adjustment against outstanding advances to the tune of Rs 4.54 crore pertaining to PAO Bangalore, Lucknow, Alipur and Gandhinagar has resulted in occurrence of "Prior Period Expenditure" under establishment expenditure, core programmes, special and Sponsored programmes has been made.
- 10) Balances outstanding with Agencies, Suppliers, Zones, Kendras and employees are subject to confirmation.
- 11) Previous year figures have been regrouped where ever considered necessary. Figures in financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest rupees.
- 12) There were 2 outstanding para of Internal Audit Wing, Ministry of Human Resource Development and 18 of DGA(CE) for which replies have been submitted to the auditors.



By: SPEED POST



कार्यालय महानिदेशक लेखापरीक्षा (केंद्रीय व्यय) इन्द्रप्रस्थ एस्टेट, नई दिल्ली - 110002

OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR GENERAL OF AUDIT (CENTRAL EXPENDITURE)

INDRAPRASTHA ESTATE, NEW DELHI - 110002

दरमाप/Phone: 011-23454316 फैक्स/Fax 23702271

संख्या/No.

AMG-II/4-13/SAR/NYKS/2019-20/756.

दिनांक/Dated

16.10.2019

सेवा में

सचिव, भारत सरकार, युवा कार्यक्रम विभाग, युवा कार्यक्रम एवं खेल मंत्रालय, कमरा सख्या 1, सी -विंग, शास्त्री भवन, नई दिल्ली

विषय: वर्ष 2016-17 के लिए नेहरु युवा केंद्र संगठन, नई दिल्ली के लेखाओं पर पृथक लेखांपरीक्षा प्रतिवेदन |

महोदय

में , नेहरु युवा केंद्र संगठन, नई दिल्ली के वर्ष 2016-17 के प्रमाणित वार्षिक लेखे की प्रति, उसके प्रतिवेदन तथा लेखापरीक्षा प्रमाणपत्र की प्रति संसद के पटल पर रखने के लिये संलग्न करता हूँ।

संसद को प्रस्तुत कर दस्तावेज की दो प्रतियाँ उस तिथि को दर्शाते हुए, जब वे संसद को प्रस्तुत किए गए थे, इस कार्यालय को तथा भारत के नियंत्रक महालेखापरीक्षक के कार्यालय को भेजी जाए। कृपया यह सुनिश्चित करें कि पृथक लेखापरीक्षा प्रतिवेदन को संसद के दोनों सदनों के समक्ष प्रस्तुत करने से पहले वार्षिक लेखाओं को शारी निकाय द्वारा अवश्य अनुमोदित करा लिया जाए।

लेखापरीक्षा प्रतिवेदन का हिन्दी अनुवाद एवं इसे जारी करने से संबंधित सभी कार्यों को आपके निकाय द्वारा किया जाना ही अपेक्षित हैं। पृथक लेखापरीक्षा प्रतिवेदन का हिन्दी अनुवाद जारी करते समय निम्नलिखित अस्वीकरण (Disclaimer) अकित करें:

"प्रस्तुत प्रतिवेदन मूल रूप से अंग्रेजी में लिखित पृथक लेखापरीक्षा प्रतिवेदन का हिन्दी अनुवाद है। यदि इसमें कोई विसंगति परिलक्षित होती है तो अंग्रेजी में लिखित प्रतिवेदन मान्य होगा।"

यह पत्र महानिर्देशक लेखापरीक्षा (केन्द्रीय व्यय), के अनुमोदन से जारी किया जा रहा है।

भवदीय

अनुलग्नक: यथोपरि |

हस्ता।/-

उप-निर्देशक ( ए.एम.जी.-III )



#### 17 OCT 2019

By: SPEED POST

संख्या/No. AMG-III/4-13/SAR/NYKS/2019-20/757.

दिनांक/Dated 16.10.2019

प्रतिलिपि: महानिदेशक, नेहरु युवा केंद्र संगठन, भूमि तल, 4, जीवन दीप बिल्डिंग, संसद मार्ग, नई दिल्ली 110001 को लेखापरीक्षा प्रतिवेदन तथा लेखापरीक्षा प्रमाणपत्र की प्रति आवश्यक कार्यवाही हेतु अग्रेषित की जाती है | यह अनुरोध किया जाता है कि संसद को प्रस्तुत दस्तावेजो की दो प्रतियां उस तिथि को दर्शाते हुए जब वे संसद को प्रस्तुत किए गए थे इस कार्यालय को तथा भारत के नियंत्रक एवं महालेखापरीक्षक के कार्यालय को भेजी जाएं |

कृपया यह सुनिश्चित करें कि पृथक लेखापरीक्षा प्रतिवेदन को संसद के दोनों सदनों के समक्ष प्रस्तुत करने से पहले वार्षिक लेखाओं को शासी निकाय द्वारा अवश्य अनुमोदित करा लिया जाए | यह भी अनुरोध किया जाता है कि पृथक लेखापरीक्षा प्रतिवेदन के हिन्दी अनुवाद की एक प्रति शीघ्र इस कार्यालय को भेजी जाएं |

अन्लग्नक : यथोपरि |

उप-निदेशक ( ए.एम.जी.-III )



### Separate Audit Report of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India on the Accounts of the Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan for the year ended 31 March 2017

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of the Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan (NYKS), as at 31 March 2017, the Income & Expenditure Account and Receipts & Payments Account for the year ended on that date under Section 20 (1) of the Comptroller and Auditor General's (Duties, Powers & Conditions of Service) Act, 1971. The audit has been entrusted for the period up to 2020-21. NYKS had country-wide network of 623 District level Nehru Yuva Kendras, out of which, comments of 14 Kendras and 4 Zonal offices are included in this report. These financial statements are the responsibility of the NYKS's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

- 2. This Separate Audit Report contains the comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India on the accounting treatment only with regard to classification, conformity with the best accounting practices, accounting standards and disclosure norms, etc. Audit observation on financial transactions with regard to compliance with the Law, Rules & Regulations (Propriety and Regularity) and efficiency-cum-performance aspects, etc., if any, are reported through Inspection Reports/CAG's Audit Reports separately.
- 3. We have conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidences supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the management as well as evaluating the overall presentation of financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
- 4. Based on our audit, we report that:
  - i. We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit, except mentioned in comment nos. A.1.1.1(b) and C.5.10 of the Audit Report.
  - ii. The Balance Sheet, Income & Expenditure/Receipts & Payments Accounts dealt with by this report have not been drawn up in the Uniform format of accounts approved by the Ministry of Finance.
  - iii. In our opinion, proper books of accounts and other relevant records have been maintained by NYKS, in so far as it appears from our examination of such books except for the audit comments mentioned at A.1.1.1 to 1.1.3, A.2.1.1 to 2.1.5, C.5.1, C.5.5 and para 2 (iii) and 2(vi) of Annexure to Audit Report.
  - iv. We further report that:



- A. Balance sheet
- A.1 Liabilities
- A.1.1 Earmarked Fund (Schedule-2, 3 and 4)

**A.1.1.1 (a)** In Schedule-3: Earmarked Funds (Special Programs MYAS) and Schedule-4: Earmarked Funds (Sponsored Programs) forming part of Balance Sheet as at 31.3.2017, there were negative opening and closing balances under the programmes as detailed in *Annexure-A*. The aggregate of negative balances worked out to Rs.194.35 lakh under 17 programmes of NYKS.

The details are indicative of the facts that NYKS had incurred excess expenditure over the grants received and the amounts are receivable. However, the same were not shown as receivable but shown as negative figures under liability, which needs to be corrected.

- **A.1.1.1 (b)** Closing balances of Earmarked Funds (Special Programme) and Earmarked Funds (Sponsored Programme) shown under Schedule-3 and Schedule-4 respectively could not be verified, as the basic records such as Utilisation certificate, Performance cum achievement reports and subsidiary accounts of special and sponsored programme as stipulated in sanction order etc, in support of closing balances were not shown to audit.
- **A.1.1.2** There was expenditure incurred/ transferred/ refunded under the programmes which were showing negative opening balances and received no grant for additional expenditure during the year resulting in increase of negative balances. The aggregate of these negative balances worked out to ₹299.04 lakh under 13 programmes of NYKS. The details are given in *Annexure-B*.
- **A.1.1.3** There was expenditure incurred/ transferred in several cases (shown in *Annexure-C*) in excess of funds available/grant received resulting in negative closing balance. The aggregate of these negative balances worked out to Rs. 402.59 lakh under 6 programmes.

Necessary adjustments/reconciliation in respect of negative balances should be made in accounts.

In light of above comments, it is not possible to form an opinion on the correctness of the figure shown as negative balance. These discrepancies were also reported in the previous years, no sincere remedial action were taken.

- **A.1.1.4** The programmes mentioned in *Annexure-D* had positive opening balances but no interest income was depicted in the schedules against the programmes. Non-depiction of interest income towards these programmes had resulted into understatement of liability by the amount of interest earned on the opening balances of these programmes and overstatement of interest income of NYKS for the year 2016-17. The monetary value of these 30 programmes works out to ₹33.56 crore.
- **A.1.1.5** As per the Income & Expenditure account, the excess of income over expenditure was to be transferred to the 'Corpus/capital fund'. However, the excess of income over expenditure was transferred to the 'Earmarked Fund-MYAS (Sch. 2)'. This is not in consonance with the Uniform format



of accounts and thus, the entire balance of Rs.78.13 crore is incorrectly shown under 'Earmarked Fund'. This has resulted in overstatement of Earmarked Fund and understatement of Capital Fund by the like amount. This was also reported in the previous year's report, however, no remedial action was taken by NYKS.

#### A.2 Assets

#### A.2.1 Current assets Loan and Advances - (Schedule-7)

**A.2.1.1** Loans, Advances and Other Assets of NYKS showed a negative balance of Rs. 35,94,549 under head Long Term Advances (Computer/Vehicle/Scooter) and negative balance of Rs. 3,42,681 under head Scooter advance, Rs. 62,486 under head computer advance. These negative figures need to be reconciled.

**A.2.1.2** Under the head Advances some negative balances were clubbed with outstanding advances of other PAOs. The details are given below:

| SI. No. | Head                              | PAO       | Amount (In Rupees) |
|---------|-----------------------------------|-----------|--------------------|
| 1.      | Staff and Others                  | Bangaluru | (1,950.00)         |
| 2.      | Petty Cash Advances               | Lucknow   | (2,97,489.50)      |
| 3.      | Other Advances                    | Alipur    | (1,12,262.00)      |
| 4.      | House Building Advances           | Bangaluru | (2,90,916.00)      |
| 5.      | Medical Advance                   | Lucknow   | (1,30,768.00)      |
| 6.      | LTC Advance                       | NYKS HQs  | (1,13,448.00)      |
| 7.      | Advances with Kendras pending UCs | Alipur    | (69,94,209.15)     |

The negative balances under advances need to be reconciled.

**A.2.1.3** Under head Others deposits Rs.10,00,000/- were shown as deposits in NYKS headquarters accounts were actually investment in shares of National Yuva Co-operative society Ltd. (NYCS Ltd.) and should have been classified under Long Term investments of NYKS.

**A.2.1.4** At NYKS Headquarters, audit noted that exactly the same amount of advance appeared in the accounts in several similar heads of accounts during 2015-16 as well as 2016-17.

| Account Head                                     | Delhi (Hqrs) (in Rupees) |
|--|--------------------------|
| Advances to Zonal offices pending reconciliation | (-)1659315               |
| Advances with Zonal offices                      | 59600296                 |
| Advances to PAOs/Zones pending reconciliation    | (-)66632091              |
| Petty Cash Advance                               | 1875041                  |
| Advances with Zonal offices – Carry Forward      | 44756898                 |
| Advances with Kendras                            | (-)46,82,282             |

As funding and expenditure are a continuous process, apparently no effort was made by NYKS to reconcile these advances.



**A.2.1.5** Under the head 'Loan and Advances' (Schedule-7), Rs.13.65 crore were shown as advances with Kendras, pending utilization certificates and advances with PAO/zones pending reconciliation.

**A.2.1.6** Nine saving bank accounts having bank balance of Rs.4.74 crore in respect of schemes like National Reconstructive Corp (NRC), Youth Services-IV, Swaran Gram Sadak Yojana (SGSY), Kashmiri Rural Youth Cultural Exchange Programme (KRYCEP), Cultural Exchange (CULTEX), Adolescent, UNDP Project, Red Ribbon Express (RRE) and Foreign Contribution (FC) were lying dormant as on 31.03.2017 due to the same being non-operative. Seven bank accounts have been lying dormant since 2011-12 whereas two were dormant since 2012-13 as the schemes were non-operative.

#### B. Income and Expenditure Account:

**B.1** As per bank statements of Red Ribbon Express (RRE) scheme, an interest of Rs. 2.68 lakh was earned on bank account of RRE but it was depicted under interest on saving Accounts. This resulted in understatement of Earmarked Fund (RRE) and overstatement of interest income of NYKS for the year 2016-17.

#### C. General:

- **C.1** Investment of pension fund, provident fund and superannuation fund was not made as per the pattern of investment prescribed by Ministry of Finance. All the investment amounting to ₹59.62 crore (100%) was made under fixed deposits/term deposits. This was pointed out in the previous audit report, however no action was taken by NYKS.
- **C.2** NYKS did not make the provisions for retirement benefits. The provision based on actuarial basis needs to be made for retirement benefits as required by uniform format of accounts and AS-15 of ICAI.
- **C.3** The accounts of NYKS show continuous availability of unadjusted surplus funds under the head Earmarked Fund (Sch. 2) lying with PAOs. Examination of these funds from previous years' accounts show lack of effort on part of NYKS for utilizing/adjusting the same. This has led to accumulation of funds and surplus funds of Rs. 74.19 crore remained blocked up to 31.3.2017. (The amount was Rs. 46.15 crore at the end of 31.3.2016). This issue was also reported in the previous year's report, however, no remedial action was taken.
- **C.4** During 2016-17, a fire broke out in the office premises of NYKS and the loss thereof was mentioned in the physical verification report as on 31.03.2017. Examination of annual accounts disclosed that neither the loss due to fire was quantified by NYKS nor the same taken in annual accounts of 2016-17.
- **C.5** NYKS had a countrywide network of 623 district level Nehru Yuva Kendras (NYKs) each headed by a District Youth Coordinator (DYC). The audit comments relating to 14 Kendras, 4 Zonal Directorate and 1 State Directorate of NYKS are given below:
- **C.5.1** Cash Book was not properly maintained in NYKs at Jalandhar, Ludhiana (Punjab), Kalahandi,



Bhawanipatna (Orissa) and irregularities noticed in maintenance of cash book at Rangat (Middle Andaman) and Chandigarh (Punjab).

- **C.5.2** Physical verification of stores/assets was not conducted at Ludhiana, Jalandhar, Chandigarh (Punjab), Mangan (Sikkim), Zonal Director-Rohinipuram, Raipur (Chhattisgarh) and Chandigarh units in NYKS.
- **C.5.3** Non reconciliation of deposits of Rs. 0.14 lakh at NYK Jalandhar (Punjab), Rs. 9.49 lakh at NYK Ludhiana (Punjab), Rs. 1.26 lakh at Zonal Director-Chandigarh, and non-reconciliation of bank statement at NYK Jalandhar & Zonal Director- Chandigarh (Punjab), Keylong Lahoul & Spiti (Himachal Pradesh).
- **C.5.4** Stale cheque of ₹ 0.66 lakh was pending at NYK Jalandhar (Punjab) and of Rs.0.14 lakh at Kullu (Himachal Pradesh)
- **C.5.5** Records/registers relating to Expenditure Control, Pay Bill and Water & Electricity were not maintained at Zonal Directorate, Mumbai and records/registers of valuables, fixed assets, cheques and PBR were also not maintained at NYK Keylong Lahoul & Spiti (Himachal Pradesh).
- **C. 5.6** Internal control system was inadequate at NYKs Kullu (Himachal Pradesh), Chandigharh (Punjab), Keylong Lahoul & Spiti (Himachal Pradesh) and Zonal Director- Rohinipuram, Raipur (Chattisgarh).
- **C.5.7** No depreciation was charged on capital assets at NYK Keylong, Lahoul & Spiti (Himachal Pradesh) unit of NYKS.
- **C.5.8** There was difference of Rs. 2000 under receipts between accounts and bank book at NYK Hassan, Bengaluru.
- **C.5.9** Examination of Bank Reconciliation Statement of NYKS Headquarters and PAO, Bangalore revealed that several payment instruments/cheques which were long expired were not taken back into accounts and continued as balances pending settlement.
- **C.5.10** Bank Reconciliation Statement of NYKS Headquarters & PAO Bangaluru revealed that various payments made by NYKS at the end of financial year were realised after long delays ranging from 5 to 82 days despite using Core Banking facilities like RTGS/NEFT. Documents in support of timely initiating fund transfer process were not provided to audit.

#### D. Grants-in-aid:

NYKS receives grant from the Ministry of Youth Affairs and Sports for general purpose and special programmes. It also receives grants from other ministries/ departments/ agencies for sponsored programmes. The position of Grants in aid received and utilized by NYKS during the year 2016-17 is given below:



#### (Rupees in crore)

| Purpose   | Opening balance as on 1.4.2016 |              |       | d during<br>6-17 |                              | Total        | Amount<br>utilized | Amount refunded | Unspent<br>balance<br>as on |
|---|--------------------------------|--------------|-------|------------------|------------------------------|--------------|--------------------|-----------------|-----------------------------|
|   |                                | Plan         | NER   | Non<br>Plan      | Interest/<br>Other<br>income |              |                    |                 | 31.3.2017                   |
| (1)   | (2)                            | (4)          | (5)   | (6)              | (7)                          | (8)          | (9)                | (10)            | (11)                        |
| Earmarked Fund (MYAS)-[Sch.2]                           | 46.15                          | 153.00       | 17.00 | 44.85            | 11.84                        | 272.84<br>** | 198.65             | 0.00            | 74.19                       |
| Earmarked Fund<br>(Special Programmes-<br>MYAS)-[Sch.3] | 96.04                          | 58.02<br>*** | 0.00  | 0.00             | 0.55                         | 154.61       | 64.93              | 0.28            | 89.40                       |
| Earmarked Fund<br>(Sponsored<br>programme)-[Sch.4]      | 23.26                          | 2.90         | 0.00  | 0.00             | 8.03                         | 34.19        | 12.01              | 0.06            | 22.12                       |
| Total   | 165.45                         | 213.92       | 17.00 | 44.85            | 20.42                        | 461.64       | 275.59             | 0.34            | 185.71                      |

mmmmmmmmm

- **E. Management letter:** Deficiencies which have not been included in the audit report have been brought to the notice of the Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan through a management letter issued separately for remedial/corrective action.
  - v. Subject to our observations in the preceding paragraphs, we report that the Balance Sheet, Income & Expenditure Account and Receipts & Payments Account dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of accounts.
  - vi. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said financial statements subject to the significant matters stated at comment A.1.1.1(a) to A.1.1.3 and A.2.2.1 to A.2.2.5 above and other matters mentioned in Annexure to this Audit Report did not give a true and fair view in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in India;
    - a. In so far as it relates to the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan as at 31 March 2017; and
    - b. In so far as it relates to Income and Expenditure Account of surplus for year ended on that date.

For and on behalf of C& AG of India

Place: New Delhi Director General of Audit
Date: 16.10.2019 Central expenditure

<sup>\*\*</sup> NYKS was sanctioned Rs. 214.85 crore as GIA under NYKS scheme for the year 2016-17 but received only Rs. 205.10 crore till 31.03.2017. The balance grant of Rs. 9.75 crore was received on 03.04.2017.

<sup>\*\*\*</sup> NYJKS was sanctioned Rs. 58.02 crore as GIA under Special Programme MYA&S for the year 2016-17 but received only Rs. 53.02 crore till 31.03.2017. The balance grants of Rs. 5.00 crore was received on 03.04.2017.



#### **Annexure**

#### 1. Adequacy of Internal Audit System:

The Internal audit by the Internal Audit Wing, Ministry of Human Resource Development was conducted only up to 2012-13 and 2 paras were outstanding as of August 2017.

#### 2. Adequacy of Internal Control System:

The internal control system of NYKS was found deficient due to the following issues reported at comment C.8 of the report:

- (i) The accounts of NYKS show continuous availability of unadjusted surplus funds under the head Earmarked Fund (Sch. 2) lying with PAOs. Examination of these funds from previous years' accounts show lack of effort on part of NYKS for utilizing/adjusting the same. This has led to accumulation of funds and surplus funds of Rs.74.19 crore remained blocked up to 31.3.2017. (The amount was Rs.46.15 crore at the end of 31.3.2016).
- (ii) During 2016-17, a fire broke out in the office premises of NYKS and the loss thereof was mentioned in the physical verification report as on 31.03.2017. Examination of annual accounts disclosed that neither the loss due to fire was quantified by NYKS nor the same taken in annual accounts of 2016-17.
- (iii) Register of valuables (GAR 5), advances and contracts were not maintained. Further, register of fixed assets, TA & LTC Bill, Medical claim and grant in aid registers were not properly maintained.
- (iv) Physical verification of stores was not conducted at Ludhiana, Jalandhar, Chandigarh (Punjab), Mangan (Sikkim), Zonal Director-Rohinipuram, Raipur (Chhattisgarh) and Chandigarh.
- (v) Internal control system was inadequate at NYKs Kullu (Himachal Pradesh), Chandigharh (Punjab), Keylong Lahoul & Spiti (Himachal Pradesh) and Zonal Director- Rohinipuram, Raipur (Chattisgarh).
- (vi) Cash Book was not properly maintained in NYKs at Jalandhar, Ludhiana (Punjab), Kalahandi, Bhawanipatna (Orissa) and irregularities noticed in maintenance of cash book at Rangat (Middle Andaman) and Chandigarh (Punjab).

#### 3. System of Physical verification of fixed assets:

- The physical verification of fixed assets relating to NYKS, Headquarter was conducted up to March 2017.
- Physical verification of assets was not conducted at Ludhiana, Jalandhar, Chandigarh (Punjab), Mangan (Sikkim), Zonal Director-Rohinipuram, Raipur (Chhattisgarh) and Chandigarh.

#### System of Physical verification of inventory:

- The physical verification of inventory was conducted for the period 2016-17.
- Regularity in payment of statutory dues: As per the annual accounts, no statutory dues over six months were outstanding as on 31.03.2017.



## Annexure-A

## (Negative opening and Closing Balances)

| S. No. | Name of the Programme          | Opening Balance       | <b>Grant Received</b> | Expenditure | Closing Balance | Remarks |
|--------|--------------------------------|-----------------------|-----------------------|-------------|-----------------|---------|
| 1      | Inter State Youth Meet         | (398,133)             | -                     | -           | (398,133)       |         |
| 2      | Aids Awareness Programme       | (3,778,719.00)        | -                     | -           | (3,778,719.00)  |         |
| 3      | Yes                            | (186,500.00)          | _                     | 1           | (186,500.00)    |         |
| 4      | HESCO                          | (69,550.00)           | -                     | ı           | (69,550.00)     |         |
| 5      | Jan Shiksha (JSSK)             | (2,027,174.00)        | -                     | -           | (2,027,174.00)  |         |
| 9      | Nanhe GuNgroo                  | (489,680.00)          | -                     | 1           | (489,680.00)    |         |
| 7      | National Youth Parliament      | (512,390.00)          | -                     | -           | (512,390.00)    |         |
| 8      | Nirantar Workshop              | (208,532.00)          | -                     | 1           | (208,532.00)    |         |
| 9      | Other Prog. Exp.               | (144,187.00)          | _                     | -           | (144,187.00)    |         |
| 10     | RG National Youth Day (RGNIYD) | (601,405.00)          | _                     | -           | (601,405.00)    |         |
| 11     | Water Resource management      | (114,385)             | -                     | -           | (114,385)       |         |
| 12     | WHO (Youth Run)                | (1,495,909.00)        | -                     | 1           | (1,495,909.00)  |         |
| 13     | Youth For Pulse Polio          | (351,400.00)          | -                     | -           | (351,400.00)    |         |
| 14     | Youth Initiative               | (8,288,135.00)        | _                     | -           | (8,288,135.00)  |         |
| 15     | Seat Flame                     | (201,969.00)          | -                     | -           | (201,969.00)    |         |
| 16     | TCS Training                   | (102,870)             | _                     | -           | (102,870)       |         |
| 17     | YFD-NC                         | (464,141.00)          | -                     | ı           | (464,141.00)    |         |
|        |                                | Total Amount Involved | þ                     |             | (1,94,35,079)   |         |



Annexure-B

(Expenditure/Transfer to other funds despite having negative opening balances)

| S.<br>No. | Name Of the<br>Programme        | Opening<br>Balance | <b>Grant Received</b> | Interest | Transfer made/<br>Other additions<br>at PAO | Expenditure                  | Refund   | Closing<br>Balance |
|-----------|---------------------------------|--------------------|-----------------------|----------|---|------------------------------|----------|--------------------|
|           | Panchayat Yuva Krida<br>Abhiyan | (5,326,997)        | 1                     | 1        | 1   | 5,111,761                    | 1        | (10,438,758)       |
|           | Other Prog. Exp.                | (330,470)          | 1                     | 1        | 1   | 517,197                      | 1        | (847,667)          |
|           | Base Line Survey                | (2,909,103.00)     | 1                     | 1        | 1   | 615,031.00                   | ı        | (3,524,134.00)     |
|           | ICDS                            | (1,659,702.00)     | 1                     | 1        | 1   | 237,840.00                   | ı        | (1,897,542.00)     |
|           | ISHM (AYUSH)                    | (1,231,715)        | 1                     | 1        | 1   | 92,310                       | 1        | (1,324,025)        |
|           | KRYCEP                          | (3,634,155.00)     | 1                     | 165.24   | 1   | 98,611.00                    | ı        | (3,732,600.76)     |
|           | KVIC Workshop                   | (138,682.00)       | 1                     | 1        | ı   | 7,000.00                     | ı        | (145,682.00)       |
|           | MG NREGA                        | (2,647,918.00)     | 1                     | ı        | 1   | 382,629.00                   | ı        | (3,030,547.00)     |
|           | My Earth My Duty                | (1,111,061.00)     | 1                     | 1        | 1   | 282,981.00                   | ı        | (1,394,042.00)     |
|           | NRI (Know India Prog.)          | (303,975.00)       | 1                     | 1        | 1   | 184,049.00                   | 1        | (488,024.00)       |
|           | Suprabha Ganga Yatra            | (234,231.00)       | 1                     | ı        | 1   | 2,037,972.00                 | 1        | (2,272,203.00)     |
|           | World Aid day                   | (527,621.00)       | 1                     | 1        | 1   | 180,000.00                   | 1        | (707,621.00)       |
|           | Ekta Rally                      | (70,894.00)        | 1                     | ı        | 1   | 30,000.00                    | ı        | (100,894.00)       |
|           |                                 |                    |                       |          |   | <b>Total Amount Involved</b> | Involved | (2,99,03,739)      |



Annexure-C (Expenditure in excess of available balances/grant received)

| Closing<br>Balance                                | (1727563)                    | (3811000)    | (3270232)                                       | (19485456)                         | (11274812)                   | (689675)         | 100101   |
|---|------------------------------|--------------|---|------------------------------------|------------------------------|------------------|----------|
| B C   | (173                         | (38)         | (32)  | (194                               | (112                         | 89)              | (001001) |
| Refund  | -                            | 1755917      | 1   |                                    |                              | -                |          |
| Expenditure                                       | 25972349                     | 3811000      | 402288  | 1224510                            | 20011253                     | 689675           |          |
| Transfer<br>made/<br>Other<br>additions at<br>PAO | ı                            | ı            | 1   | 1                                  | 1                            | -                |          |
| Interest  | 62985                        |              | 10950   |                                    |                              | -                |          |
| Grant Received                                    | 1                            | ı            | 1   | 2403250                            | 19536304                     | -                |          |
| Opening<br>Balance                                | 24181802                     | 1755917      | (2878894)                                       | (20664196)                         | (10799863)                   | -                |          |
| Name of the Programme                             | National Integration<br>Camp | NYF-NSS Cont | Adolescent Program<br>MYA&S (Life Skill<br>Trg) | North eastern<br>various Programme | Tribal Exchange<br>Programme | Bharat Parikrama |          |
| S. No.  | 1                            | 2            | е   | 4                                  | 2                            | 9                |          |



Annexure-D (Nil Interest income despite positive balances)

| S.  | Name of the Programme                            | Opening   | Grant    | Interest | Expenditure | Refund | Closing   |
|-----|--|-----------|----------|----------|-------------|--------|-----------|
| No. |  | Balance   | Received | Earned   |             |        | Balance   |
| П   | Youth Leadership Personality Development Program | 16718044  |          |          | 7702522     |        | 9015523   |
| 2   | Jagriti Bharat Utsav                             | 1739977   |          |          |             |        | 1739977   |
| 3   | NSV Scheme                                       | 134676111 |          |          | 2716998     |        | 131959113 |
| 4   | Adventure Program                                | 1609616   |          |          | 870015      |        | 739601    |
| 2   | Know India Program                               | 137144    |          |          |             |        | 137144    |
| 9   | NPYAD Scheme (Monitoring & Printing)             | 2000000   |          |          |             |        | 2000000   |
| 7   | NSS Reimb (Run for Unity 30.10.15)               | 55936     |          |          |             |        | 55936     |
| 8   | Ad'cent UNFP                                     | 58888132  |          |          | 7048173     |        | 51839959  |
| 6   | Councling J & K NYC                              | 922269    |          |          | 195466      |        | 726803    |
| 10  | Awareness Plantation                             | 353499    |          |          |             |        | 353499    |
| 11  | Drug Abuse Programme ( Min. Of Social Justice)   | 23565220  |          |          | 2156590     | 318859 | 21089771  |
| 12  | Swachch Bharat Abhiyan                           | 7053900   |          |          |             |        | 7053900   |
| 13  | Innocent Smile                                   | 303750    |          |          |             |        | 303750    |
| 14  | Jang e Azadi                                     | 15906217  |          |          | 585394      |        | 15320823  |
| 15  | Min. Of I & B (Azadi express) Prog.              | 1194750   |          |          | 313295      |        | 881455    |
| 16  | Nirmal Bihar sanitation Prog.                    | 204883    |          |          | 21906       |        | 182977    |
| 17  | NLM  | 4288760   |          |          |             |        | 4288760   |
| 18  | NRHM   | 222780    |          |          |             |        | 222780    |
| 19  | Panchayati Raj rally                             | 890031    |          |          |             |        | 890031    |
| 20  | Red Ribbon Exp.                                  | 4530496   |          |          | 183614      |        | 4346882   |
| 21  | UNICEF   | 3055202   |          |          |             |        | 3055202   |
| 22  | V.T.A.   | 1281467   |          |          | 167         |        | 1281300   |
| 23  | VTC (Ankur)                                      | 26129     |          |          |             |        | 26129     |
| 24  | World Health Day                                 | 51483     |          |          |             |        | 51483     |
| 25  | World Population Day                             | 1652412   |          |          | 100000      |        | 1552412   |
| 56  | Dr. B R Ambedkar Jayanti                         | 5070405   |          |          | 2878357     |        | 2192048   |
| 27  | Prog Fund at PAO                                 | 67130566  |          |          |             |        | 67130566  |
| 28  | RRE Balance of BS                                | 5328285   |          |          |             |        | 5328285   |
| 29  | National Human Rights Commsission                | 390000    |          |          |             |        | 390000    |
| 30  | World skill Day by NSDC                          | 1500000   |          |          |             |        | 1500000   |
|     |  | Total     |          |          |             |        | 335656109 |



## Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan

# Comments on observation of DGA(CE) in the audit report on accounts of NYKS for 2016-17

| SN      | Comments on Audit observations  |
|---------|---|
| A.1.1.1 | A.1.1.1 NYKS has a structure going down to the 623 District level offices, 29 State Level Offices and its national headquarters at Delhi. Against |
| (a)     | total sanction of 2273 posts, 50% posts are vacant. No new staff was deployed in last two decades.  |
|         | For settlement of Negative balances, scheme-wise accounts of these schemes for last 15 years are to be reconciled with the positives              |
|         | entries of advances from HQ to PAOs in respective years booked under other head.  |
|         | Despite of acute shortage of manpower, observation of audit is being complied. Reconciliation of advances at field offices was taken up           |
|         | and quantum of advances was gradually reduced from Rs 23.23 crore in 2014-15 to Rs 16.82 cr. in 2015-16 and Rs 14.72 crore in 2016-17.            |
|         | Process of recruitment of new staff for district and state level offices has been started in 2018. It is expected that by the end of the finan-   |
|         | cial year 2019-20, NYKS will function with full strength and thereby will be able to reconcile the negative balances and make necessary           |
|         | rectification   |
| A.1.1.1 | A.1.1.1 Copies of Balance Sheets of six PAOs and HQ alongwith compilation sheets wherein opening balances, addition, expenditure and refund       |
| (q)     | made in each such scheme were provided to the audit team during the course of audit in reply of audit memos. All Clarifications sought            |
|         | by the Audit were also given.   |
|         | It was also informed to the audit that NYKS is having 623 district offices and 28 State Offices beside its HQ. For financial control, six of its  |
|         | State Offices have been designated as Pay & Accounts Offices (PAO).   |
|         | Each district office submit its financial report to their respective PAO where these figures are consolidated and Balance sheet of with           |
|         | Income & Expenditure Account, Receipt and Payment Account alongwith all relevant schedules as per Common Format of Accounts Pre-                  |
|         | scribed by C&AG/ MOF are drawn.   |
|         | Accounts of all District, State and PAO offices of NYKS are audited by State AG as normal procedure.  |
|         | On the basis of Balance Sheets of Six PAOs and HQ, consolidated accounts of NYKS are drawn.   |
|         | As such, required details were provided to the audit.   |
|         |   |



| A.1.1.2 | The following position was explained vide reply of Audit memo no. 5 dated 08.03.2019 that the negative opening balances has been carried forwarded from previous year.   |
|---------|--|
|         | No new expenditure was incurred under the schemes.   |
|         | During reconciliation of advances at PAO level, few un-adjusted UCs were detected and adjusted against schemes having negative balances.   |
|         | Adjustments against these prior periods UCs have been incorporated in accounts. However, no new expenditure is booked.   |
|         | As reported in reply of point A.1.1.(a) serious efforts have been made for settlement of these negative balances however due to paucity of manpower at PAOs/ field offices it could not be reached to finality.  |
| A.1.1.3 | Process of reconciliation of advances over field offices was carried out by PAOs in compliance of observation of Audit.  |
|         | During reconciliation of advances few un-adjusted UCs were detected and adjusted against relevant schemes. Adjustments against these prior periods UCs have been incorporated in accounts. However, no new expenditure is booked. The action was taken in compliance of the observation of Audit.  |
|         |  |
| A.1.1.4 | As per policy, all the field offices have only one bank account and interest earned in such saving bank account has been taken under schedule 11 of the Income & Expenditure Account as per instructions contained in Uniform Format of Accounts for Autonomous bodies. The interest income transferred to schedule 2 of the Balance Sheet.                          |
|         | Separate scheme-wise accounts of some of the schemes have been opened in HQ, interest earned in such accounts have been reported to concerned scheme. Interest on NSV/RSY balances has been shown under NYC column as the scheme is merged with NYC. Similarly, scheme-wise interest is shown in HQ books where designated scheme-wise bank accounts are maintained. |
|         | It is further to submit that part of the opening balances pertains to advances against which expenditure have already incurred but could not be accounted due to non submission of UCs. UCs for such advances are being identified and adjusted during reconciliation exercise. Therefore, complete amount of opening balance is not in cash to earn interest.       |
|         |  |



| A.1.1.5 | Depiction of transfer of excess of income over expenditure under NYKS scheme to Earmarked / Endowment Fund MYA&S instead of Corpus/ Capital Fund is in consonance with the Uniform Format of Accounts for the Autonomous Bodies' as NYKS has not been provided with any Corpus Fund by the Administrative Ministry.  |
|---------|--|
|         | As per schedule of instructions attached to the 'Uniform Format of Accounts for the Autonomous Bodies' the Corpus/ Capital tal Fund is describes as per following, "Corpus/Capital Fund is akin to Capital, Share Capital or Owners Fund. It comprises amount received by way of contribution specifically to the Corpus, as increased/decreased by the net operating results shown in the Income and Expanditure Account Cother than surplus if any transferred to any position or Extraorded Eurobe.   |
|         | The instructions also describes Earmarked / Endowment Funds, " Amount received as grants or assistance, or retained by the entity to be utilized for specific or earmarked purposes and remaining to be expended/ utilized for the specific purpose for which those are intended and one cannot be an expended from the Control and for State Control and Cont |
|         | ernment are to be shown as distinct category of Fund." It is further clarified in the instructions that, " The following shall not<br>be rekoned as part of Earmarked funds  |
|         | a) Grants / fund which have the characteristics of promoters' contribution which are of the nature of additions/ accretion to the Corpus Fund."  |
|         | The grants provided to NYKS are not specifically for creation of Corpus.   |
|         | The Plan/ Non Plan grants provided to NYKS by the Administrative Ministry under 'NYKS Scheme' are for specific and earmarked purpose on stipulated terms and conditions. It has condition to either spent or refund with interest.   |
|         | Therefore, surplus/ deficit of it transferred to Earmarked Fund (MYA&S) is in consonance with the Uniform Format of Accounts for the Autonomous Bodies'.   |
| A.2.1.1 | Long term advances including HBA, Car, Scooter/ Motorcycle, Computer advances are sanctioned by the HQ and disbursed by PAOs.  |
|         | Recovery of principal amount of advances and interest is made by PAOs from monthly salary of concerned employees and remitted to HQ.   |
|         | Negative balance of Rs 35.94 lakh for LTA Rs 0.62 lakh computer advance and Rs 3.42 lakh scooter advances includes amount of interest recovered on such long term advances   |



| A.2.1.2 | Employees of NYKS are transferable in 623 district and 29 state level offices. Their transfer and posting may involve change in the jurisdiction of one PAO to another.   |
|---------|---|
|         | Advances drawn while working with one PAO are adjusted in another PAO which leads to positive balance in PAO where advances were drawn and negative balance in PAO where advances are adjusted. These positive and negative figures are compiled and net effect of advances is shown in annual accounts statement.  |
|         | Negative balance of HBA at PAO Bangalore also includes amount of HBA interest recovered from salary of employees but not remitted to HQ.  |
| A.2.1.3 | The deposit is realized 2017-18.  |
| A.2.1.4 | Figure appearing in HQ accounts pertains to un-reconciled advances between HQ & PAO. This will be adjusted against the outcome of reconciliation of negative balances appearing in PAOs balance sheet. This could not be done due to acute shortage of manpower.  |
| A.2.1.4 | NYKS has a structure going down to the 623 District level offices, 29 State Level Offices and its national headquarters at Delhi. Against total sanction of 2273 posts, 50% posts are vacant. No new staff was deployed in last two decades.  |
|         | Despite of acute shortage of manpower, observation of audit is being complied. Reconciliation of advances at field offices was taken up and quantum of advances was gradually reduced from Rs 23.23 crore in 2014-15 to Rs 16.82 cr. in 2015-16 and Rs 13.65 crore in 2016-17. The process is still continuing with the target to bring down the advances to the minimum. |
|         | Process of recruitment of new staff for district and state level offices has been started in 2018. It is expected that by the end of the financial year 2019-20, NYKS will function with full strength and thereby will be able to reconcile the advances and bring down the quantum of un-adjusted advances to the minimum.  |
| A.2.1.6 | These accounts are opened in HQ during previous years for specific schemes. No grants were received under these schemes for years and no expenditure is incurred under the schemes as these are non operative.  |
|         | Decision for closing / resuming the operation will be taken after final settlement of balances under these schemes in concurrence with the respective Ministry/ Department/ Agency.   |
| B.1     | Noted for rectification   |



|   | C.1    | Investment of funds in term deposit schemes of nationalized banks is also permissible in the pattern of investment prescribed by the Ministry of Finance.  |
|---|--------|--|
|   |        | It is provided in the para 6 of the notification by the Ministry of Finance dated 14.08.2008 that the investment of the funds of the Trust is the fiducians according to a minimal formal funds. |
|   |        | available and liquidity requirement in near future, it was not appropriate to invest the same in Government Securities and Bonds which   |
|   |        | are long term investment (8 yrs. and above).   |
|   |        | Keeping into consideration of above and small capital available with NYKS investment of funds in long term securities is not feasible.   |
|   | C.2    | Actuarial valuation of retirement dues, as on 31.03.2015 was made. This includes valuation of liability towards pension, gratuity and  |
|   |        | leave encashment.  |
|   |        | Concurrence of the Administrative Ministry was sought to show liability under retirement benefits as per actuarial valuation. The con-   |
|   |        | currence of the Ministry is awaited. However, its reference was made in notes of accounts.   |
| J | C. 3   | The balance of Rs 74.19 crore under Earmarked Fund – MYA&S (NYKS Scheme) includes Rs 46.90 crore towards interest and misc income  |
|   |        | earned during 2008-09 to 2016-17.  |
|   |        | NYKS had requested the administrative Ministry for revalidation of amount of accumulated interest. As per the directions of the Min-   |
|   |        | istry of Youth Affaris & Sports vide letter dated 25.04.2019 NYKS has remitted the accumulated interest and miscellaneous income to  |
|   |        | Consolidated fund of India in July 2019.   |
| 0 | C.4    | Quantum of amount of lose could not be assessed till compilation of annual accounts for 2016-17.   |
| J | C.4    | Noted for rectification in the annual accounts of 2018-19 which are under compilation.   |
| 0 | C. 5.1 | Noted for compliance.  |
| 0 | C. 5.2 | Noted for compliance.  |
| 0 | C.5.3  | Noted for compliance.  |
| J | C.5.4  | Noted for compliance.  |
| 0 | C.5.5  | Noted for compliance.  |
| J | C.5.6  | Noted for compliance.  |
| 0 | C.5.7  | Depreciation on assets are charged at PAO level while compiling the balance sheet.   |
| 0 | C.5.8  | Noted for compliance.  |
| 9 | C.5.9  | Noted for compliance.  |
| 9 | C.5.10 | Noted for compliance.  |
|   |        |  |





#### Nehru Yuva Kendra Sangathan

4, Jeewandeep Building, Sansad Marg New Delhi-110001, Ph.: 011-23442800